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Dear Sirs

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 under the above file reference number, I am enclosing herewith copjes’of
the following material press releases or other material public documents issued by OM plc or its
subsidiaries since our letter to the SEC dated 27 May 2004:

¢ Announcement by Nedcor Ltd dated 18 June 2004 of the appointment of a new Chief Financial
Officer;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 21 June 2004 of settlement agreements between Pilgrim Baxter &
Associates and the SEC and the Office of the New York State Attorney;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 24 June 2004 of the appointment of Mr R. P. Edey as a non-executive
director of Old Mutual plc;

¢ Announcement by Mutual & Federal Insurance Company Ltd dated 23 July 2004 of its interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2004;

¢ Announcement by Nedcor Ltd dated 5 August 2004 of its interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2004;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 10 August 2004 of the Group’s interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2004;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 10 August 2004 regarding the interim dividend for the six months to
30 June 2004;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 23 August 2004 regarding the extension of arrangements for claiming
demutualisation benefits;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 23 August 2004 of the release to Julian Roberts, Finance Director, of
50,200 shares in the Company under the Company’s Restricted Share Plan;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 13 September 2004 that Public Investment Commissioners of South
Africa had an interest in 9.97% of OM plc¢’s issued share capital;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 4 October 2004 of the retirement of Mr C.F. Liebenberg as a non-

executive director of OM plc;
ot

Old Mutual plc is a public company limited by shares, incorporated in England and Wales under registered number 3591559,
Registered office as above.
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¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 8 October 2004 of the currency conversion rates for the interim
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2004;

¢ Announcement by OM plc dated 12 October 2004 of the total shares in issue at 30 June 2004;

Announcement by OM plc dated 18 October 2004 of the total shares in issue at 8 October 2004; and

¢ Announcement dated 25 October 2004 of the assets under management at the end of the third quarter of
2004 of Old Mutual Asset Management.

*

Yours faithfully

Wluvzr—

M C Murray
Group Company Secretary

Old Mutual plc




NEDCOR LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
. Registration number: 1966/010630/06

JSE share code: NED

ISIN code: ZAEOO0004875

(“Nedcor” or “the group”)

NEDCOR LIMITED — APPOINTMENT OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The board of directors of Nedcor has pleasure in announcing the appointment of
Mike Brown as Chief Financial Officer (“CFQO”) of the group with effect from

17 June 2004. He has been appointed as an executive director to the boards of
Nedcor and Nedbank Limited, and also joins the group executive committee
(“Exco”).

Mike, 38, is currently managing director of Property Finance in Nedbank
Corporate and has extensive experience in the banking industry. His
appointment follows an intensive executive search process both locally and

internationally over the past six months.

A commerce graduate from Natal University, Mike completed his articles with
Deloitte & Touche in Durban and qualified as a chartered accountant in 1988.
After working in the United States and London, he joined the NBS Treasury
department in 1993. He then moved to NBS Corporate (later BoE Corporate) and
was instrumental in establishing the Specialised Finance and Private Equity
divisions. Following the merger of NBS Corporate and the commercial and
industrial lending division of BoE Private Bank, Mike was appointed Deputy
Managing Director of BoE Corporate and then Managing Director of the division
in 1999,




He was appointed an executive director of BoE Limited in October 2001 and to
his current position as head of Property Finance following the Nedcor / BoE
merger.

Nedcor’s search for a new CFO was extended to include international
candidates, but after reviewing a number of these candidates it was clear that
South Africa has abundant financial skills and talent. The process included a
comprehensive evaluation of all candidates’ skills, knowledge and leadership

abilities.

The board of directors extends its thanks to Bob Head of Old Mutual plc who has
been acting CFO of Nedcor since January this year. He provided an objective,
outsider’s view and played an invaluable role in the comprehensive review of the
group’s financial management structure and systems. His secondment has
allowed Nedcor additional time to search for the most suitable CFO. Bob will
complete his secondment in July to ensure an orderly handover of
responsibilities to Mike Brown.

For further information contact
Tier 1 Investor Relations
Tel: +27 (0) 21 702-3102

Sandton
18 June 2004

Sponsors to Nedcor
Merrill Lynch South Africa (Pty) Limited
Nedbank Capital



Old Mutual plc

Pilgrim Baxter & Associates confirms Settlement Agreements with the SEC and
New York Attorney General

Ol1d Mutual plc today confirmed that its US asset management affiliate Pilgrim Baxter
& Associates (“PBA”) has reached agreements with the US Securities and Exchange
Commission and the Office of the New York State Attorney General which settle all
charges brought by these authorities against PBA in relation to market timing in the
US Mutual Fund business. PBA neither admits nor denies any wrongdoing.

PBA has accepted to pay $40 million disgorgements of past fees plus $50 million in
penalties, all of which will be paid as restitution to shareholders of the PBHG Funds
according to a plan to be developed by an independent consultant. In addition it will
reduce fees to investors by approximately $10 million over the next five years.

The agreements settle charges brought against PBA in November 2003 in relation to
past trading activity in the PBHG Funds permitted by the former management of the
firm. New leadership appointed at PBA in November has instituted significant
reforms at the firm and worked with authorities to settle the charges.

The full text of PBA’s announcement is attached.

Commenting on the settlement, Jim Sutcliffe, Chief Executive of Old Mutual plc,
said:

“I am pleased that PBA has now reached a settlement with the regulators and am keen
to put this matter behind us. Our strategy of maintaining a diversity of separate
specialist affiliates has ensured that the affair has had no material impact outside
PBA, which only accounts for 3.2 per cent of total US funds under management.

“Qverall, US funds under management for the first quarter to 31 March 2004 rose by
3.9 per cent to $160 billion. Our US Asset Management business has grown steadily
and is an important part of our international growth. We can now move on and
continue to develop our activities in this market.”

- ends -
21 June 2004
Enquiries
Old Mutual plc - London
James Poole +44 (0) 7768 991096

Miranda Bellord +44 (0) 7002 7133

College Hill & Associates (UK)
Tony Friend +44 (0) 20 7457 2020

Old Mutual plc — South Africa
Nad Pillay +27 82 553 7980
Julie Saxton: +27 72 553 7366




OLD MUTUAL PLC

Board Appointment

0Old Mutual plc is pleased to announce that Russell Edey has been appointed as a non-
executive director with effect from 24 June 2004,

Russell Edey (aged 61) is deputy chairman of N M Rothschild Corporate Finance
Limited, a non-executive director of FKI plc and Chairman of Anglogold Ashanti Ltd.
He has also previously served on the boards of English China Clays plc, Wassall plc,
Northern Foods plc and Express Dairies plc.

Russell Edey’s career began in the Finance Division of the Anglo American
Corporation of South Africa Ltd in Johannesburg. In the 1970s he was General
Manager — Corporate Finance of Capel Court Corporation in Melbourne. He joined
Rothschild in 1977 and was Head of Corporate Finance from 1991-1996.

Mr. Edey, who is a Chartered Accountant, will also be joining the Company’s Audit
Committee.

Commenting on his appointment, Mike Levett, Chairman of Old Mutual plc, said:

“I am delighted that Russell Edey has agreed to join the Old Mutual Board. He
has a tremendous reputation in the City and is also well known in South Africa
through his association with AngloGold Ashanti. His long and distinguished
track record in investment banking, together with his wealth of experience as a
non-executive director, will be invaluable in developing Old Mutual’s business in
the future.”

24 June 2004

ENQUIRIES:

Old Mutual plc, UK
Miranda Bellord Tel: +44 (0)20 7002 7133

Old Mutual ple, SA
Nad Pillay Tel: +27 21 504 8026/+27 11 217 1606

College Hill (UK)
Tony Friend Tel: +44 (0)20 7457 2020




Interim Results July 2004 - final

MUTUAL & FEDERAL FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR

THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30 JUNE 2004

MUTUAL & Federal today (Monday, July 26) announced the group’s results for the
six-month period ended 30™ June 2004.

Gross Premium Income amounted to R3.6 billion (2003: R3.0 billion) which is an
increase of 19% over the previous year. The General Insurance Result improved from
R213 million to R445 million as a result of the increase in underwriting surplus for the
6-month period from R111 million in 2003 to R336 million in 2004. This reflects an
improvement in the operating ratio from 95.9% to 89.3%.

The Operating earnings per share for the six-months increased by 47% from 134
cents to 197 cents.

The company has declared an interim dividend of 25 cents (2003: 25 cents) per share
as well as a special dividend of 350 cents per share. Both of these dividends will be
paid on 6" September 2004.

Comments on results

In referring to the special dividend, Managing Director Bruce Campbell noted that this
would have the effect of returning R860 million to shareholders. The solvency margin
after the payment would remain strong at 43% and the Board was satisfied that the
capital position would be sufficient to support the current operations and facilitate
further development of the business.

Turning to the financial results, Campbell commented that the 19% growth in premium
income was satisfactory and reflected new business acquired as well as corrective
action and rating adjustments in unprofitable segments of the business.

He reflected that trading conditions for the period had been abnormal and
characterised by lower claims volumes and in particular the absence of significant
weather-related losses. He stressed that the improvement in the value of the Rand
had furthermore reduced the cost of imported goods and moderated claims costs in
some areas. These factors had resulted in an exceptionally positive underwriting
environment which could not be expected to continue.

He stated that the company had progressed certain strategic initiatives to manage
supplier costs, particularly in the field of building, household goods and automotive
services. These initiatives are expected to result in an improvement in the control of
claims costs and ultimately the containment of the level of future premium increases.
“A specific focus of the company has been directed towards both the quality and
speed of claims settlement” commented Campbell, “and Mutual & Federal is
substantially ahead of industry standards. Approximately 213 000 claims were
processed during the six month period at an average cost of R15m per working day”.



Referring to investment income, Campbell said that interest income had declined as a
result of the reduction in interest rates whilst dividend income from listed equities had
increased. The value of listed equities had declined slightly during the period, in line
with the JSE.

Looking ahead, Campbell indicated that the large corporate market was showing signs
of rate reductions, which threatened to undermine profitability in the sector. He
accordingly reaffirmed the group policy of maintaining responsible underwriting
standards. It was anticipated that market conditions in general would remain
conducive to achieving a profitable underwriting result but he cautioned that short-term
insurance results fluctuate and the results for the first six months were not necessarily
indicative of the outturn for the remainder of the year.

The strong loyalty and ongoing support of clients and intermediaries was appreciated
and was reflected in the recent award by SAFSIA to Mutual & Federal, of Best
Commercial, Best Corporate and Best Personal Insurer of the Year.

In conclusion he thanked the group’s clients, intermediaries and staff for their ongoing
support. '



MUTUAL & FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Unaudited financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2004 and special dividend announcement

Total equity and liabilities 7,581

INCOME STATEMENT 30/6/04 30/6/03 Change  31/12/03
R'm R'm % R'm
Gross premiums 3,592 3,010 19 6,486
Net underwriting surpius ' 3% SR A
Net investment income / (deficit) 103 (24) 555
Goodwill (11) (11) (21)
income before taxation 428 76 T 926
Taxation (135) (67) (250)
Income after taxation 293 9 GO
Income attributable to preference shareholders in subsidiary (note 2) (19) - (36)
Share of associated companies retained income / (loss) 9 (5) 33
Net income — 283 3 6713
Earnings per share
{a) Headline earnings per share are calculated on net income adjusted for goodwill.
Determination of headline earnings
Net income 283 4 673
Goodwill 11 11 21
Headline earnings 294 15 694
Headline eamings per share (cents) 120 6 284
(b) Basic earnings per share are based on net income.
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (cents) 115 2 276
Ordinary dividend per share (cents) 25 25 73
Special dividend per share (cents) 350 - -
Combined ratio (%) (note 3) 89.3 95.9 93.1
Net asset value per share (cents) 1477 1,163 1,410
Number of shares in issue (million)
- at period end 2456 2441 2452
- weighted average 245.3 243.6 244.1
“BALANCE SHEET As at As at As at
30/6/04 30/6/03 31/12/03
R'm R'm R'm
Assets
Non-current assets 4,468 2,837 4,552
Fixed assets 215 170 186
Investments at fair value 3,941 2,378 4,024
Ordinary shares . 2,688 1,985 2,707
Government stock 66 84 84
Money market deposits and other 1,187 309 1,233
nvestment in associated companies 180 118 180
Goodwill 132 152 142
Deferred taxation - 19 -
Technical assets 1,048 1,013 1,006
Current assets 2,065 2,759 1,645
Trade and other receivables 621 596 708
Cash and cash equivalents 1,444 2,163 937
Total assets 7,581 6,609 7,203
Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves 3,627 2,840 3,458
Interest of outside shareholders in subsidiaries 2 2 2
Interest of preference shareholders in subsidiary 55 - 36
Non-current liabilities 150 163 182
Technical provisions 3,391 3,156 3,169
Current liabilities and provisions 356 448 356
6,600 —_ 7,203




MUTUAL & FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Unaudited financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2004 and special dividend announcement (continued)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY Share  Contingency Retained
R'm capital Reserve income Total
Balance at 31 Decembaer 2002 124 423 2,379 2,926
Change in accounting policy (note 4) ’ 7 7
Net income for the period 4 4
Transfer to contingency reserve 12 (12) 0
Dividends paid (102) (102)
Issue of shares 5 5
Balance at 30 June 2003 129 435 2,276 2,840
Net income for the period 669 669
Transfer to contingency reserve 88 (88) (¢
Dividends paid (681) (61)
Issue of shares 10 10
Balance at 31 December 2003 139 523 2,796 3458
Net income for the period 283 283
Transfer to contingency reserve 77 (77) -
Dividends paid (118) (118)
Issue of shares 4 4
Balance at 30 June 2004 143 600 2,884 3,627
CASH FLOW STATEMENT 30/6/04 30/6/03 31/12/03
R'm R'm R'm
Cash generated by operations 589 420 592
Net underwriting surplus 336 T 392
Increase in net technical provisions 180 129 148
Depreciation of fixed assets 37 21 45
Loss/(profit) on sale of fixed assets - 3 (2)
Decrease in other working capital 36 156 8
Investment income 162 339
Cash generated by operating activities 751 604 931
Taxation paid (115) (84) (261)
Cash available from operating activities 636 520 670
Dividends paid (118) (102) (163)
Cash retained from operating activities 518 318 507
Cash utilised in investing activities (15) ( 45) (1370)
Decrease/(increase) in funding requirements 503 373 (863)
Cash effects of financing activities
Proceeds from issue of shares 4 5 15
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 507 378 {848y
"NOTES

1. Accounting policies
These financial results for the period have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are consistent with those used in the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2003 with the exception
of item 4 below.
2. Preference shareholders
The group operates an insurance subsidiary which offers cell captive facilities to clients. Underwriting surpluses which
accrue in respect of these arrangements ultimately belong to clients and are therefore excluded from group earnings.
Combined ratio
This reflects the ratio of total insurance expenditure to net earned premiums.
4. Change in accounting policy
During the period the company changed its accounting policy with regard to deferred tax on STC credits in terms of AC §01. The
cumulative effect of this change amounting to R7 million has been made against the opening balance of retained income
in 2003.

fad



MUTUAL & FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
Unaudited financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2004 and special dividend announcement (continued)

SUPPLEMENTARY INCOME STATEMENT 30/6/04 30/6/03 Change 31/12/03
(Reflecting long-term rate of return adjustment) R'm R'm % R'm

Technical account (note A)

Gross premiums : 3,592 3,010 19 6,486

Net premiums 3,198 2,666 20 5,608

Eamed premiums net of reinsurance 3,138 2,678 5,683

‘Claims incurred net of reinsurance (1,966) (1,932) (3,878)

Acquisition expenses (561) (416) e71)

Management expenses (275) (219) (442)

Net underwriting surplus 336 111 392

Attributable to ordinary shareholders 309 M 178 340
Attributable to preference shareholders in subsidiary (note 2) 27 - 52
Investment return on insurance funds (note B) 109 102 7 210
General insurance result 445 213 109 602
Long-term investment return on sharehoiders' funds {note B) 206 190 8 395
Operating income based on long-term investment return 651 403 62 997

Non-technical account (note A)

Short-term investment fluctuations (212) (316) (50)
Dividends, interest and property income 163 184 339
Realised surplus on investments 20 1 56
Unrealised (deficit)/surplus on investments (80) (209) 160
Allocated investment retumn transferred to technical account (note B) (315) (292) (605)

Goodwill (11) (11) (21)

Income before taxation 428 76 926

Taxation (including secondary tax on companies) (135) (67) (250)

Income after taxation 293 9 676

Income attributable to preference shareholders in subsidiary (note 2) (19) - (36)

Share of associated companies retained income / (loss) 9 (5) 33

Net income 283 4 GA

Operating earnings per share

Operating earnings per share are calculated on net income adjusted for goodwill,
associated company earnings, short-term investment fluctuations net of taxation and secondary tax on companies.

Determination of operating earnings

Net income 283 4 673
Goodwilt 11 11 21
Share of associated companies retained (income) / loss (9 5 (33)
Short-term investment fluctuations 212 316 50
Taxation effect of short-term investment fluctuations (19) (16) 34
Secondary tax on companies <] 6 8
Operating earnings 484 326 48 753
Operating earnings per share (cents) 197 134 47 308

NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY INCOME STATEMENT
A. Presentation
The results for the year are shown in the income statement. To present these in a meaningful way, a supplementary income
statement is provided and separated into :
(a) A technical account
The technical account includes a long-term investment return of 13,4% on both:
{1) funds generated by the insurance activities; (2) shareholders' funds
(b) A non-technical account
The non-technical account includes-ali non-insurance related activities including investments, and above mentioned
allocated investment returns transferred to the technical account.
B. Allocation
The investment return on investments supporting insurance activities is allocated to the technical account in determining
the General Insurance Result. In addition the long-term investment return on investments supporting shareholders’
funds is allocated from the non-technical account to the technical account in determining an operating income based on the
lang-term investment return. The allocations accordingly negate one another in the determination of income before tax.
The long-term investment retum on shareholders’ funds is an estimate of the long-term trend investment return for the
relevant category of investments having regard to past performance, current trends and future expectations.



MUTUAL & FEDERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Unaudited financial results for the six months ended 30 June 2004 and special dividend announcement (continued)

COMMENTS

Growth in premium income was satisfactory and reflected new business acquired as well as corrective action and rating adjustments in
unprofitable segments of the business. The favourable trading conditions experienced in 2003 continued during the first half of 2004.
Results were strongly influenced by low levels of claims following benign weather patterns and the absence of large commercial and
industrial fires. it must be recognised that these abnormal claims patterns cannot be expected to continue and changes to more normal
claim patterns must be anticipated.

The company has progressed certain strategic initiatives to manage supplier costs, particularly in the fields of building, household goods
and automotive services resulting in an improvement in the control of claims costs and ultimately the containment of the level of future
premium increases.

Interest income declined during the period following the reduction in rates whilst dividend income from listed equities has increased. The
value of listed shares declined marginally during the period in line with movements on the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa ("JSE").

The net asset value per share increased by 5% during the period and the solvency margin (being the ratio of net assets to net
premiums), after payment of the special dividend mentioned below, remains satisfactory at 43%.

The jarge corporate market is showing signs of rate reductions which threaten to undermine profitability in this sector. The group will
nevertheless continue to adhere to prudent underwriting standards. it is accordingly anticipated that market conditions will remain
conducive to achieving profitable underwriting results and the Board is therefore cautiously optimistic regarding prospects for the balance
of the year. It must be noted however that short-term insurance results fluctuate and the results for the first six months are not
necessarily indicative of the outturn for the remainder of the year.

COMPLIANCE
The company complies in all material respects with the JSE Listings Requirements and the King Report Code of Corporate
Practices and Conduct.

DECLARATION OF DIVIDEND (NUMBER 69)

An interim dividend of 25 cents per share has been declared payable to shareholders in respect of the six months to
30 June 2004,

SPECIAL DIVIDEND ANNOUNCEMENT

The Board of Directors has declared a special dividend of 350 cents per share which will have the effect of returning R860 million to
shareholders. The Board is satisfied that the capital remaining after this dividend will be sufficient to support the current operations and
facilitate future development of the business.

SAILENT DATES

In accordance with the trading requirements under the STRATE environment, the last day to trade to participate in both of the above
dividends will be Friday, 27 August 2004. The shares will commence trading ex-dividend on Monday, 30 August 2004, and the record date
will be Friday, 3 September 2004. Payments will be made on Monday, 6 September 2004.

Share certificates may not be dematerialised or rematerialised between Monday, 30 August and Friday, 3 September 2004, both days
inclusive.

On behalf of the Board

K T M Saggers (Chairman) B Campbell (Managing Director)
23 July 2004

Registered Office: 18th Floor, Mutual & Federal Centre, 75 President Street, Johannesburg, 2001

Transfer Secretaries: Computershare Investor Services 2004 (Pty) Ltd, 70 Marshall Street, Johannesburg, 2001
Sponsor: Nedbank Capital, 135 Rivonia Road, Sandown, 2196

Mutual & Federal Insurance Company Limited (incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 1970/006619/06)

JSE Share code: MAF ISIN:ZAEQ00010823 NSX share code: MTF

Website: www.mf.co.za



E-mail: investor @mf.co.za




NEDCOR gM’ Reviewed financial results

siXx months ended

30 June 2004

] Headline earnings R500 million
£ Earnings volatility significantly reduced
a Capital base strengthened by R5,15 billion
O Recovery programme delivering tangible benefits
Merger and recovery programme expected to lift earnings from 2005
i Earnings impacted by once-off recovery programme costs of R234 million

and merger costs of R94 million

=

i Overvisw

T st 8 mocana of ine 2004 g yolr have sean Nadoor mae good P/OGAS 1 oG e Dodonmance of e

GOUD B0 12)VG 8 Oundiaon K Grown, AN N1ENSve COvery POGUATING FiZs Deen 1igied. Al wor Rreams Nave
Boan 853480 ACCOUTADLYY W SOBCLE IiTehame, and the programne 8 beng Montored and ngormusty managed.

SO0GC BUIUEOMEnts aganst LN ve-poxl rcowsry HOgraTine 24 21 lalowa;

1 Reviow strategy and positon for oamings - CADAa DAse Sirenginened IVDUGh ngits e and sale of

ON-COM DUSIESIAS; EXCHANQA 121D 2 STEES; Ble voiaiily BCuCad; RSX CroCesses sipnginened;
2 Dot mear bandi - e ook e e, Bk s e conoieon: ntegraton of Peopies

anm easm = compaston of naw Group Execuinve Commias Enzised;

Focus on clont Bervice - mmmuwmmw clent saiisiacon ieveis si0a;
ocusing On Mprovay tavels of Cross-seing;

Ackopt open nd transparent policies - OB Mmade v LAY both rtemaly and sxanely, win

IOy BAIER A0 MEaNNGR egEal GYXS Dy yoer-ond.

mnw:mmumumamm«ymmmmwwmva e progress and

moveats {3 six-monin perod Nas Dem 1 kg

It more nead 1o D8 actieved (0 et

.o

«

The consokdiied taacs sizteman:s i rEDA’Bd ¢ BCCOTIANCE with, and COMBly wilh, Sauin Aincan Stalaments of
~-_'=7Awu:ldmmPra:ummwmammmmurmcammwwuﬁq he
PG pOSOSS A00DIBG 819 30 &l SN MESPACIS COBET win those appkad al 31 Dacemoer 2003, wi
Jon of iro change @ mesdmmmfvmm(mamumwmmdwnemwm
aBlaTeNia 3 NCES N e LAANGE MRS,

o Delivery on 1o sharehold
Nadcor s gvon Shorencicieny L ComyTMen! o 090V 0 SaeQC, fnancal end Ak manageien: ssues st
afacied e pedormanca of the goup. Good rOgress Nas baon maste N SOEEKNG Mase $3Ues Ovir (18 past Sx Maatns.
Stabilising the group's uepml base and proactively monopmg capital
‘other snarmnoiders ensued that e Nedoor rgnis amus was
, Gy

mmmdmm!wzmmmmmmumdunmm hereby
“TOrTven X DEweRR Tha Dars by ; and el 2 A
hmwmmmmmnwmwdmmmomanmmmubtaqnummmmm
renairaed, mEsnctsod 8 Medged Cfihone CEB1A' (0 CUCE KNEGN CUTENCY BXp0sise (rom R7, | becox 10 4 1Y

R3,1 o200 Qursig the past sx monns. The Cagesl voditly arsng rom lomgh &ExChangs movemernns has now Deen
sDstanlaly nenaisd.

Capasl A00GACY /I0S NIve D08 finer Mpved Dy L BAuCion 0 Iow-yB0ng &vances snd ihe dspesal Of Ao
‘core 258023, Tha GAURE NOC2INE GO G206 & 30 June 2004 was 12.3%, win Ge | Capial & 7.8%. Nedoank's
Lar 1 cactal & cumenly 7,2% 870 4 6 00 ACH (0 acheve 5 7,5% ber  Cap!al 1a7gat by tna &nd ol 2004

Olsposal of non-carn operations and assets

The pamed 320053 6 RON-COM DPEAZONS A1 335613 1S POGressing wad, The group has s0id £3 OfiENo subsaary
Crswe! Associies tor £20,0 mimon (pook vaiue £9 mion, The Sienham GrOup has deen K, SuBieci 10 BABA
cowbuons praceasr, kor €19 mon focox ke 119 mison). BoE Uie Irternationa! nas impumentad 2 caons) MdLcion
DTQATITA PY 10 838, Fhoauntay 1o £22 mBon.

Orsnors on-o0re rwvestients (B8posed 01 10 088 Ny 1he vace Land gt the Centusry Ciy development near Capo
Town (500 for RB2 mson, m.mmmmmmnammn&mmmuMmm wn
bock vaiue of 17 miory. Fotowng the furiel 529 and resiruciurng of Nat1 Adpked Technaiogy

Nett UEPS Tacnoiog:es (NEUP), Nacoor nas ettacivey cucsd i3 RN growp by 40%. Tn:rumx:mq
o800 1 & makelo-makel N8 of R439 Milon N the vaius Of 1he remaing rvesnen &l 30 hune 2004 and
thergio N2 oen axan GSBCly [0 ESOVES 1 183 Of GOU BOCOUNAG OGRS,

Tri group & 1o raducs non-core Bssets, KNG the Lensacions concluded 16 dite, by 2oproximalely R2 Daon over
(0% et o yB&TS,

Risk and financial t
Wmﬂwmm&mwmmaﬂnwwmlmmmmuc’!ﬁﬁnxo‘u'TM
Drocetses have 0een racesgNd 10
mmummﬂrmmmmmmm proper govemance. bieres: raie, KUKy,

0 2001 andd 2002 has baen Ly NOGged aganst furiner imores! raie MOVemen's.
The gD Ny compaied &4 Finana: Advacry 87 Intermedary Semices Act (FAIS) icenvsag requrements. Prograss nas
boan made n compyag wen tne Francil Fiekgence Cane ACL (AGA), tne deaine for whh nus been exiencad 0
31 Ociooer 2004, The group @ 09 track 16 Mest 18 Jaruary 2007 B2sai F commiments.
Improved mansgement information systems
Tha graup haa commeiad cef ta emprove anca) dackosus, Progress nas ean made win ing pnased mpaMenizian
of & naw FIEND Lands ransler prcing SyS:BT, WhTh i SChBckiad 10 08 CompRaied by 1ne end of 2004,
Tha mpamantaton of activiy-Asied trensler prorg Deween dmeons for ind Group 10 BXICA GOS8 ON & MO ACUTER
basy 0 kDAl COMOTE Imﬂwammmwt.mmmmﬁww
A rsk-whgniad capdsl Socalion snd chag % viroduced belore year-and. T3 wii be usod 2 &
mbmwmmnmsmnmnmmwnmm

38 orocesses wil FesSt 0 Morg accura:d &l Mesnngt segmental anayss lrom 2005, nmlmywp\

amummmmmwxmmnuymm 2d evestors 0

Mmpvwrp

"unmdmBKNWWMMW]WC@'MGMNNM(W)EML&RW
earing Compzon. During the penod one o (ha mast cucial prases o! e - 119 sysiecn migraton of al

Manmammmm was successidly comgigted. Tha transter of NBS clents s schaduad

10 e (2208 curng Tnm second has of 2004. The rabonaisa: on of Ine ata GRres 1 Pazr 270 Duan wi oe compiensd

1 aany 2005,

As commiied, Rl steady -BEle Smerges of R70D mdon wil De acneved, Management esumates it RE24 milon of

s wil NSV 168N achuaved Dy e end of 2004, Totat merger Costs will be wann budga:.

Integration of Pecples Bank

Prnvung lor the rtegraton s wek-advenced mewﬂwbvmmdm«umm

1ne MEnagamend nes boen ningraisd <uo (ne Retal and Wesih Divison 8

Mm'hommmuuwwmm.nnwanuuvmrmsamnn-mm

Nedtank Limaad.

oCovEry programme - 2004

TS VaR0S venus TANCEMENt i ZIveS, which &8 arlGosIed 10 NCTRsE TveN.E DY

R204 miton 11 2004, weh furhr ymorovements hermaller. Thess incuds:

* CBING (18 e o Chonts Kr WhoT We &7 the paTary Danker

* Coss-seRny,
* redaglon N revenus ieakage: and
* bancesssznce.
Deas of LW recovery (YOgFETIME DineLia 20 COS'E B Enown N 1he (e DEow:
Hacovery benefits (Rm - pretax) Jum Doc Total
Ravenut gowt [ 161 204
Cosi raducion 137 8 S48
Total vacias 180 5 750
Once-oft recovery cost 12%) 225 1458)
Nt fcosd/benaty 84 X5 il

A3 g% poC0UN o the 2-DeS! COTPONAN Gl COS1S, & 1 MYUBIIBGIA that N8 MDr COMADULON 1D SIWQS 4l Of NBCESSAY &
“20uction 1 8151 numDes., Tha fcuCKNE COME Manty £0M $1a 1 1ha CeAl Sevees areas &nd ol those n chen-
tacing roies. Permanent sL2 numbers ward AXIosd by  ngt 1 033, and 1emporary sie! numoers By 121, ¢ 8 st nal.
Toial reenchmens for e year ara esimated & 2 300 Ym,mmmnmadmmq.nnnmurmmnm
of usness G0z, wil RE 0 3 ReRdceun! BUCLoN of 2ppromarely 2

These erisives &77 acussed N Mor 34181 1 179 visons) averview.

o Financial performance

ncame af R380 mon aftati2ai 10 oringry SAERNCIDACE 8hows 8 SIGNACEN! lurnaround krom the 6ss of R1,8 520 for

£ year 10 31 December 2003, At mome lor the panod showed & 5.9% decreass Lom tha R&DS maion

fRsizied ORDRAD eaTgS noried ko una 2003,

Headtnie B8mngs of RSD0 /Ao showed & SIMIE! MBAUN, comEarad wiih the RSS mdon reporisd » Decembar

2003, Howgver, heacing 8amogs snowed 2 Gecraase of 20,6% from the R7 13 mion reporied 1 June 2003.

recovEry pgGraTIT L2ble, BarTing3 rom 2005 orwETS Wl ba @nnanced, & mosi of 1n8
mwwmmm wil R2va 88 1L, 810 (18 NDONg EYNATGEs w siat

20i0n, h Creg 01 et VLRS! COMe rom expensve fundrg nas decraesed.

Trve puished Jna 2003 {Gures hevd been adusied 0 teCh T efiecia ol e Ao POy adustmants dacosad

& tne end o Cecemoe’ 2000, Tne erpact of thess Changes s leciod n g fESi4180 (0O sxement.

Net intorest incoms

Nt meres neome (N for tha group vereated Dy 10,4% £om R3 245 mition lof the penod 10 June 2000 to R 585 mion.

The groud's et mierest Mg rmeroved tror 2,06% for 1na sw montns 10 Juse 2003 10 3,05% tor tha penod 10 June

2004, Trs 4 0 e weh (T 2l upKizie SUBS A May.

» 9 rgrTS 0%ar IunCS rERENG 1 3 PUBIE ECowMent etiecl;
* offsOrm c2nizi Dang rapated; A
+ (e haagng of Ind fxad-ale suborTinaiad G801 2 €5 MLy prolia.

Non-interest rovenus

Nornigres! ravend (NR), exciuding orsgn currancy Lansizion bsses, Oscined oy 12,2% fom R4 119 miion Jor ke
2003 to R 617 mizon, TR @ PrEmany &t 10 & CCON 0 Orokis borm excnange 4nd 880t 3G, whdn
nciuden a sgnicant changs < thg AC133 {airvelus adustmant kom K344 miton i the st nat of 2003 o R114 mBon.
Management had ariceled (na: the duoyant iraing CoNG400s BXpananced in the fest hatl of 2003 woukd NGt 09
rapeaiad 1 e st g o 2004, a0 iNs @ releciact in 1he perormance,

As FICA18d 1 18 (BCOVery PrOGrRTING @1 chvisional COMMantary, Hadcor © cumerty (OGS on nCBesng NIR,
Foreign exchange transiation losses

The groun mourred @ loragn cumency Lansiaton ase of R213 milion {2003 R735 mion) owing 1o tha sirengih of
e 2t 30 Jine 2004. The group nas sioncaly nokd Bx08ss leves of Capial i ¢ ofisnor Oparalons 23] Ras
repErated, ressruciured andior acged farign candal 1 1he {151 sx moning of the yeer, &3 OUikAd E00V, &t iheredy
sackuced exposura {p foreign curmency oy 57%.

Thie Grou wh D0 v 73 Lpaiment of 2ocountng for '0reRn 8AChange IAnSLon GRNS £ 05588 1 18 weh ine
adopton of kiemalonal Fnancial Reporting Standards (IFRS) om 2006 omwarda, 1 s anucipetad ihat s wil iead 10 3
targer portion of these 27sation prohits and (osses beng VBaled a3 Mevemerts A tne Irarsiaon reserve

The restructung of the Gy end Mmemaiona DusnesIes Of the Wealh Management Divisan s lagoY compiete. As
relamed lo sangr, Crigwel AssoCs!es B0 e Stannam Groun nave Dien 80, 2nd good DrogGest NER Dean Mash o the
¢:800sal of Bok Lia intemationyl 80 BoE Funds Senaces

Tha currarm ringraiion of B0E Prvata Chenia wen Nedbani Pravaie B2k WRl ImivDve clén: sevos and AC8s0 08y
Se%g OpoouNes.

The process of mtegraung Peopies Bk nio Nethiank Limiad s17180 11 Aprd 2004 370 £aA D6 POGeEsad 10 ful
iagralon nty OACA raguAIory ANV N2 Dem receved. Ths N1egrason wl fa0uce SOSIS, 61r0aming Dusingss
aciivies s CUS e QTR (BtAd QoW iizives,

Wiio the Retal and Weath M2Aagmer. Dvision his & SOk Catnm (DM wikch [0 g/ow, Geronnancs  nal yet at

21 accanianin level and cOnpherade 610N 3 fAQUIS 10 VTXTVE 1118 COR-O-1ICOM raLK, Tuen on 8quty 850

Qe saistacton.
Sharsd Services, c.pltalManamenl and Central Funding
The vastus s4rvess Gvsions have &1 mducad cosie, wih ing expaation of Group Resk, wiien ncurrd agdiions

Wmmmmmsmmnwmm

FBINEr 1haN 83 1ACOMO E2IeMAN Prols anc 1o6vee.
Credit impairments
Tne bad-ceor wiin Naocor has igroved, wih 100D aSeats recuing kom RE 444 mlion
December 2003 |0 A7 331 meion and recovones of bed dabis ncreasng from Re7 miton a kne 2003 1o R!19 mikon,
The groxs Nas exporenced nO Maor craci anpsrents dung the peod, excect n Peofies Bark, wher a orce-o!f
2dustment of soma RED mBon resited lom hg comaction end mfinement of AG133 detaul ALaS 2nd the rREOGRLON o
‘carian conconialon £548 ¢1 e Morigags DOOK.
Ab TUATUM TR SOVSO0S N DOOR Mat By 146 QRS
1n the Ebserce of ony $grACant Geiesdralon 1 e2ONUMEC CoNGIONS, 1n8 Crea auiock kor the De:ance of g year
RMANS pOSING.
Expenses
OMNBWWWQE%IMWHZMW!MWRSWSM Expanses 214 1) ing wih

iafl expenses pertially e (0 povEdng or polenial Kt acentve
mwu:cnmmnn\umsommmmm\srmmuianwlmummolm &d 8 futner
R38 maton auing 10 &1 underaccsal of boruses 1 2000, EXRNses Nave 2isd been negaively moactecd by expenddure
ol RB2 mteon rB:ating 10 2050n3 COst for Base Il Complance and for Mooy Burderng PACIS 10 compty with FIGA,
2% aagiliona) 2003 Budi and constancy fees of R31 miton, Comrmertal Bank of Namvoa 8nd Tando wers conaoiciated
for ing fsst tme dunng (he se00nd nat of 2003, mmnnmwemmmmosmn.mmmm
2004, winen comparsd Wil he pcar pesad. Falowing 81 adusiment fx LTS, COAUON EXDANSES
mﬁmvnuy'g,moawwmmmowuyw‘mmommmummIaDecemeEm
THG Groun wik COnG 43 BEGIESSYE COR-CUlLAG RXBITS, WICH 13 uly Ctabed 1 ha FCOVEY DOGrEmITS,
Aance panner lees moved from & recovory of lossas 0! 41 miton 10 2 payment of a profl snaty of RE3 maon.
Reacovery expendiurd of R234 mivon inchudes reirenchen! 60s:s of RZ32 mition 27 oiher ENKCILING Costs of R2 mion.
Tha greus esimalos that luher resiructunng ¢osts for he baance of 2004 w amount 10 R225 maon,
Mergar costs neuradd turg the penod amountad 1o R84 milon, win futher costs of RR21 mibon expecied for the
‘D208 of the yeas, and 2 nal coningency amau of RES MBan reservod lor 2005, Thess COStB &8 1 08 win
expectlons nd ihe Group @ 10recast io Complate tne merger wihin ina RBBA mlion orewousty Commucaied 10 the
maskal,

The cost-Lo-iheams o has moved om 728% £ June 2007 10 80, 2% » Decemoer 2003 270 18 now 79,8%. Sgndcan:

moOvEmENts 10 LS ralo &8 ar.coaiad oS A /s O 1N rCOvery PrOgTITIE from 2005 0awards, Exciudng tha once-

X (a0overy 2nd MRrGEr COs! 270 0N Curtency lransiaiion 0ases, (he eficancy mio & 73,0%.

Taxation

Tha low overad 18x raia of 10% & mainy dus 10 fha moact of a R171 mion [2003: R178 miion crad on (e 2x kne

MMAC\mmmmarmmmummms Ths tredt 8 oflse by fower pored Mergn coms on
these fransacions

Toe ansion crrgn a0 s ity aricomid e 2 e of v 0 scondy

penod
* Swascar s now fulty operztorel n Swizenand,
* A Dockup C23 antre hies deen ComMEssOned 1 DD,

« Alrackng e siorage st 123 baen st w0 the ACA

#nd iogsiatve

requrements.
« Crexa cartis 5re now processed On tha new CAMS 1 producton plaiio.
* Nadbani 8 one of 1 iest SO ATC2N DAIKS 10 58 SOMpkart wih (08 niow PASA roguremans for aasia oovesy

paming
Mmmxmm:mnm.nmumnwnmdmwm
K comghance.

o,
iiva MawTioad (he Mmoact of IO BLBNCHIAT 0N Gl8Y MO0,

Stalt roadishows were, ammm-uwbu mmmmwﬂmm.qmmhmuummm
DUrOtUCA the Group's vEkues PrOCESS.
« Building for the future
Neckcor nas Canited (e foRowg kay 51808 0 0uid or e luure:
* 10 Comue 10 1otus O the DASES DY DANKAD by CHD0SNG G NO0-CO' ESSILS, SMErklyng (e band Laagy,

OpUmisng tha a5set anG Lapkly management and Mux, a1 amprovng Ihe nomMEOn Fysleme:
* 10 OGS 00 Gowng 16 rad DISAESS ANG IBNSACLONS DEKANG i DG, whie DUGNG ON IS Group's SengIns n
he CODOraLe A COmMeNt’ Secior,
'obasmsmm—nnmwwmmmm
1D Bitract, Mtan 870 Soveiop S, whit buang  Chent- mma:ue Win B0 Mproveenars m S monte Mg
& ey foous:
* 10 RSirUCIure DROGUCES 810 FOCESSES 1O FTIDVE Chen: bervol;
* 10 monior cient sastacion On a Consia mvwmmnmmmm’ymmmm

amme,

progri

10 ampend

* 10 owe trngtonmzion and mwmwmmmnﬂoﬂ’ﬁw&um&mvﬁsq(mmma

0 ricra) 5 focus on 1 FSC sirategy, PCAKENG 8 BYTA0-0XS6 EXACK SCONOTIC STCOWRTN (BEE] ownarsnn
siraiegy, 1 ('@ 360003 it of 2004);

10 e 1he MANEGETATL SLCIIE wiren D8 OXZCHeS 10 ennanca Cient senvos hurhex;

* g wih 1ha MOve 10 3 ChT!-CvEN DUBNESS MOGt, 1 (XS O UM COrE Dusness of Danking 87 Ove 108 sngia-

trand sirategy, Butyed! 10 rRQUAICY 2nd Enarancier 20ovai,

O Prospects
1 18 AQPLS SI0e, 138 GrOuD SO BLaT 10 Show Qrowih m advanoes dung ha

87 due
10 the larga taie-up of ha acripy dvciend azemaive 1o the 2003 final dhvcend,

2 siméar 1180 10f (anSaon gans ad 0s3es, memmummumawmmmnnmaw
10%, Wi the BuSLBRa (B 18 Irerding Figher 10 25% 10 30% w1 (e hext lew yetrs, OnGe
(inance irmnsacions have «un down.
Excoptional items
The exceptonal ¢ems COMPAse Goodwd amonsauon and mpairment of A235 mkSon, tna mpemmant o software and
dovelopmert costs of R41 Mikon 10 G impesTienta of R34 miion. Thase costs war of'se! by g et (ot ansng
trom 1ho 6ale of non-00r ssats af A1L53 miion, Goodwdl wil GOTAUE 10 D AMOriised vy he 2004 lnencial yes.
Durng 2005 anice:ed Changes n accouning praciics, 10 &5gn the group wan FRS. wil resi 1 goodwil beng sunject
10 21 KIOasTTIent R55ESSTAN & i 8N 0! Bach epioving DK,

Capital

Tna ngnta ssus rased addiona caprar of RS, 15 odion. Tha, togathar with trazkng prots, mmmwmm
wvesimenis, ine locus On managing rowih and e faduction ol fomign ouTency exasres, hava
oanmmammmsmmgm.mmwwumymmmmmmmsmua\umwmmpx
2 30 June 2004,

Deposits

Al exparisie umnodged xad-raia dundng, 1 e form of NCOa, PR and Lead 6eposca of approwmaiely R24 biton n
Decemoar 2003, nad matured. Siructurl BAiE 2 the grous's hundng trom NCDs 10 el acoour and cal and tem
depasty nave unher reducad the cost af funds.

Advances

Advances have shown & deckne of © A%Lmﬂiﬁ\umnmwmnmanm&mmm Tre

GO0 has acivety 10ans and forowed & Qenaraly CALOUS SODAC
mmmmmxommalmmumu
Rl average gruw Dy 12,5% 20van0ES rBGuoe0 Dy 5,85%, Masty B3 0 e Of b DaCe

Enoat eficiency programims liaed 10 0pUTESS he st of Capial

O Divisional overview

As re‘errad 10 200v0, MBTagaMent NIGMALON SysieTs &8 DB.g ennanced whih iha FEALON of lunds Lransier preng
lrom the and of 2004, whch wi Zow for MO accuraid SegMental EPOMANG N (Ut reparing penods.

Nedbank Corparats

Nedbanx Corperatn exoenancad a dacine i ngl apgraling ncoma, Tnammamwn

» aBgaficant dacing in (ha endowman! earned 0n the CAD!E! BMDIOYSd 11 119 GUSHESS:

U the DORCIVE rACUCION 1T IOW-MA'RN COMARE 2OVAICES N ENG WaN 1B DAANCE Shedt 6iCency Mogramme;

1 alowsr AC 133 far-vaiue scusiment ¢f R4Z midon {2003 R34 maton),

Thiare has baen an wOVenant n cdi mpaiments, &iven oy
memwmmw“mm!mmﬂwﬁmmymmd

2rdl afecs

Amnqu:nubnnm.udmmwnmmmmsmm%mwﬁnnmmw«w
markat share ang erEncNg NIR. Tha chuster uccessiuly compieted e transter of BoE Business Bankng clants on (o
Nadbank sysiems a3 wel 23 I remasnng RS baon Migraton of Nadterk and NIB properly nance Cients 05 16 the
Propenty Frnance SAP systam. Tris process largaly Gompieted the merger-misiad cient mifation ¢ Nadbank Comare.
Aocus on asset qualty. boih a1 lems of cradi Guasdy B0 UM 0N eguly, GEve 158 10 & (FOCVE BGLCTON 11 he logn
ook ol appuxsmasy R64 blion.

Nadank Comorares €xec.tve COMITiTes waS RESIUCILADd, whh resAied 1 (ha pponyman of a §Kded Laam win

&8 thal primary Dener, Tha viow 0! N8 mremeLotal operaions has fesuiad i (e Sczkng btk of most of I Asen
ctviies, which w rexhuoe the sk 0roite &Kl aprove the 1 on caotal.
Nodbsnkcspltal

Nadoank Capitals resuls lor the fivs! i monins were dehind Tradng orofis ward iower than

MANEQEMEN'S RXSOCIALONS.
i tha firs) naif of 200, 2 10 budyant Irading CONTENS 1D 18 S5t nE ot 200 wers nat repesied i1 2004 Whis revenus

w2 DEloW ©XDECIaIONS, EXPRNGILE Vs Wet-Conoaad.

Wnis ihe sgrican dring 2003, conseratie

manegerment g has D68 8x08N0Rd 1 GBI 178 a0 1 £ Wi e e NSOk OPErRng SIKHLD. A P
DUSNBSSES wert Mmovadt £ 1hi NSO NERD HCe 319G The dwson

Was resinctured 0 BTinate (pICaon nd Se rOSArES,

An iegraied dent 7 euly capdal markets busnass Nas been cretied (0 A4 the VRGN and STLEaNg tunctons.

GO0 pogress has een Mmate n deivirng 2 Sngs NOuSS BDDMACH 10 200 \alus 10 tne ciet hase. The mnonly ntemsts

1 NIS NETSDA have D860 DOUGHT 0ut 270 1he Dus:oeses 13 DRBN consoutzied. A Morg Agordus SInCIUE PrOCEss Nas

‘0een Dul 1 piace for devepng, Mondoting 87 COMeNg INe IASAZIN DOKE.

impeniai Bank

impanas Bank pertaned wed 8l 1N 161 0BFELNG NCOME 18VE, bl EXDBNSA Gowin was Iigh. Ths a targely the resul

o ire uphon! Gosts A390Ci21ed Wih PCRasSd Gla' And rakEad GPRTEIONY] FESYLTLLR N1 ShOU yeid beetas in

thg futurs.

Retadl and Weaith Mansgement

The perirmznce of Retad s Weakh Management, nchuding Pachies Bari, was negalvely mpacted oy the cast of

expanzve fxad-aie denosia and I addiional mpanments rqust n Peosies Bank {23 outinad b iha Secton on crodd

lm&m':mxnwummmmmwm

A Cetaled rovaw has Dosn of Nedoaniy assnces:

* ine Go Banking afience win Pk 'n Pay 8 fufiing maqmwsmw-owmnmnm 25 well 25 prowdng a low-
cos: piaiiom for ¢AHAG Ihe 1ENSACLONS DATKIQ S6VOLS:

+ 18 01 M) Benk Dv.s0n 0f Necoa comaiuss 10 Sovels Bcioni s8:vce and U G workng wel win
0 Mutua! 10 ACrea84 8 [6avance Of 1ns Dusess 10 ihe Chent bzse and rtammedary nework - Ol Mulual Bax 3
forpcast lo prod.ca 8 15t for [0 ful yoar dug 10 Makaling 800 Ca0 BOQUSHCN ACtves:

* the alanca raiat onsnps wiin Capial One 218 8l uncer ravew.

Fotowrg

5800nd &t of 2004 Margns sHoutd ITOOvE &s & remd of:

* Geposi Bdl savance Muces wiNA L bank beng betler placed (D 63AACE BATIGS;

* e m3turing of expeEMe ue0gad ©xad-rale indng:

* ihe repzraion I hadgirg of 290 amounts of ofishone capda; 3

* e endiowmen: eflac o ina righls ofter.

Tr drectos end 2% mwars thal 2 Congcie20ie amout ol etoxt fes anead v I racovery BrogruTme end
inat Ina it of ihese endesvoud wa HOt 08 iy re%ecled in tha lancal resurs ths yesr, The dusness has tumed 1ha
Cornes 01 1ha 160 10 BCOvery 10 8 wel-20ad L0 deiver ITOIVEK €27MG GTOWEN B Y, 21 581 Ut I INa rocovery
programma,

The group GonNbrues 16 puriue LS 13781 Of 8CNEVING 3 1B Of SVSTGH OTNYY Sha/BnOTN' ey of 20%, 01 8 run-
rate besis, by M & of 2006. £ 0T 1 00 173 6 QOLD & CoMMied 10;

* coverng is con of capua, 1orBg1 EXCNge Iosses B0 MeTgar and Moovery Casia Iha yeu,
o mamanng ar 1 Ca adacuaCy abows 7.5%;

v atanng mankel relaied assal growd,

* lowary i o of kg g8 experan und 1 0%

> gowng througn va &vov;

Qrowing Expenses & B iovel DGO vene row.

A3 rGcalad anave, ihe DEngis M e Merger and he raOvEry [XDGTETITG wi emarge only 4 2005.
Aganst ns Heokground, the Groun NES foricast hesding earangs, NCKISVE 5f DO Margar and fSUClUNNg 008 (o
BTN YENSALON GANS Of iosses), for tha year o 31 Decomber 2004 10 ba batween 0% anc 15% gradter than
2003. However, 0ue 10 the Gonary moact 10m ncraesed Shares Saued f050wng (70 (G- Offer, Nea0ing GATITGS Der
share, NCSvE 0f DT Merper 3nC rests oosta RASALON paNns o i0SS08), 70 Gxpecied Lo ba
vetween 6% and 19% lowar (ng” Ihe rasiaied 2003 fgure of 502 CATS e share. The GO 18 IOrCESINg PaSitve
alintwietie parmngs kor 2004, COMDETEC win 81053 1 2000, Snarahcikdens a0 a0visad Ihat inesa forecasis have not besn
rEwes 0 1EpOried O by 1 O B,

The drecions and Management BXTES Lher LR3NKS 10 CIeTS e CINer SIEKERCIDD 1Or INev CONIIES SN, 10 8lsS
ihani a1 statmempers (or L ACTECOM 100 they Nave Hona ding 13 10ugh orod.

O Reviewed resutts - auditors’ opinion

Thase reastis have bean mvawed Dy (e Groups 2udlons, KPMG e 810 Dexdla & Touchs, BAG 1he rwew D0Nan 8
‘evatabia 1o wIpacion & ihe companys regsiaad cifice.

O Dividend
muawwmmnmdmvummrm‘mmmmmnmﬂmmm
momhs endad 30 Jue

7mrqnmsw»immm SaiEmen: wihn ive DLINESS AZyy, I SCCOTANCR Wi I8 setiament
woenmsiSTRATEWmmmmmwumxnwwnmmmﬂmdwum
3 Sepramber 2004, Tha shares wil COMMance L #x-gvdend! on Mondiay, & September 2004, anc e Mo dale
m\u;nuay \owmm Payiant vrd bo made o1 Monday, 13 Septemoer 2004,
betwesn Mondsy, € Seiamoar 2004, and Frday,

msaa\mm.mmaapm\m

The ramsts nave beon prepared ™ 8C00TNCH with Sauth Aingan Stztemants of Generaly ACGeDInd ACcuning Practice.
For and on banaft a! ih board
WAM Ciowiow TA Boardman
Chatrman Crief Exocutivg

4 Augus: 2002

Transter secretaries

mlmummwmwn
Strwat, Jonamesourg, 200

Pohﬁ\ﬁl Masnatiown, 2107

Directors.

WAM Ciawiow (Charmarg, Proi MM Keiz ) ML Ndiows TH Nyasubi )
TA Boerman (Chel , CUW Bat, MWT Brown (Crief Anancial Glicer], FIG Catirod, 8E Davacn,
Nonm:smm Prof 8 Fgap, MJ Lavest, JB Magwaza, ME Mewanaz, PF Kiiaxo, JVF Roers (Brishy, G, Savage,
JH Sucite (Bt

Sponory
Merr3 Lynch South Alnca (P Lmited
Negbank Capss

Compeny Secretary: GS Nanaver
brcomoried n (ne Reoudic of Seuin Atica

Registration number 1956/010630/08 Share cede: NED  1SIN: ZAEO0004875

Ths 8n0DuACeMent and adI0NAl INTONMALON & aveiidie DA 118 JOUD'S webale ~ WWW.NBdcor.com -
togeiner wih (% (DI adGiOns! OMEION:

* 0eisie0 inlervn ERancal s1AIMONts 450 Gner inanca) aiormation 1 HTML, PDF and Excel fomais:
financial resuita pressnalaon 10 nBYBis:

* k10 8 wabcas! Of Loe PBSSRALON 16 AAdYSS,

For turtner informason andly contact Nedoor tvesior Reaions Oy 8-mai 3l nedcorr@n edcor,com

e < et i ==
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Nedcor

Reviewed Financial Results
six months ended 30 June 2004

Headline earnings R500 million

Earnings volatility significantly reduced

Capital base strengthened by R5,15 billion

Recovery programme delivering tangible benefits

Merger and recovery programme expected to lift earnings from
2005

Earnings impacted by once-off recovery programme costs of
R234 million and merger costs of R94 million

Overview

The first six months of the 2004 financial year have seen
Nedcor make good progress in restoring the performance of
the group and laying a foundation for growth. An intensive
recovery programme has been initiated. All work streams have
been assigned accountability within specific timeframes, and
the programme is being monitored and rigorously managed.

Specific achievements against the five-point recovery
programme are as follows:

1. Review of strategy and position for earnings recovery -
capital base strengthened through rights issue and sale of
non core businesses; exchange rate and interest rate
volatility reduced; risk processes strengthened;

2. Deliver merger benefits - retrenchment process under way;
BoE merger nearing completion and integration of Peoples
Bank started;

3. Review executive management team - composition of new
Group Executive Committee finalised;

4. Focus on client service -~ client retention and expansion
programme on target; client satisfaction levels stable;
focusing on improving levels of cross-selling:

5. Adopt open and transparent policies - progress made in
improving transparency both internally and externally, with
more accurate and meaningful segmental analysis by vear end.

While it will take time for the full benefits of the
recovery programme to emerge in the financial results, the
progress and improvements made to date have been
encouraging. The financial performance in this six-month
period has been in line with the recovery programme targets.
However, management acknowledges that more needs to be
achieved to meet return-on-equity targets.

Delivery on commitments to shareholders

Nedcor has given shareholders a firm commitment to resolve
the strategic, financial and risk management issues that
affected the performance of the group. Good progress has



been made in addressing these issues over the past six
months.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in
accordance with, and comply with, South African Statements
of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and the
requirements of the South African Companies Act and Banks
Act. The accounting policies adopted are in all material
respects consistent with those applied at 31 December 2003,
with the exception of the change in the basis of accounting
for pension fund assets gross-up in terms of ACll1l6 and
certain restatements as noted in these financial results.

Stabilising the group’s capital base and proactively
managing capital

Strong support from parent company 0Old Mutual plc and other
shareholders ensured that the Nedcor rights issue was
successful, raising R5,15 billion and strengthening the
group’s capital base. As communicated to shareholders,
during the period R2,5 billion of the bank’s tier 2 capital
was repaid from the proceeds of the rights issue, thereby
achieving an improved mix between the bank’s tier 1 and tier
2 capital.

In line with the commitment to improve the yield on and
reduce the currency volatility of foreign capital, the group
has repatriated, restructured and hedged offshore capital to
reduce foreign currency exposure from R7,1 billion to a net
R3,1 billion during the past six months. The capital
volatility arising from foreign exchange movements has now
been substantially neutralised.

Capital adequacy ratios have been further improved by the
reduction of low-yielding advances and the disposal of non-
core assets. The group’s indicative regulatory capital at 30
June 2004 was 12,3%, with tier 1 capital at 7,9%. Nedbank'’'s
tier 1 capital is currently 7,2% and is on track to achieve
its 7,5% tier 1 capital target by the end of 2004.

Digposal of non-core coperations and assets

The planned disposal of non-core operations and assets is
progressing well. The group has sold its offshore subsidiary
Chiswell Associates for £20,9 million (book value £9
million). The Stenham Group has been sold, subject to
certain conditions precedent, for £19 million (book value
£19 million). BoE Life International has implemented a
capital reduction programme pricr to sale, amounting to £22
million.

Onshore non-core investments disposed to date include the
vacant land at the Century City development near Cape Town
(sold for R82 million, with a book value of R80 million),
and 75 Grayston Drive in Sandton (sold for R20 million, with
a book value of R17 million). Following the partial sale and



restructuring of Netl Applied Technology Holdings (Aplitec)
into Netl UEPS Technologies (NEUP), Nedcor has effectively
reduced its shareholding in this group by 40%. This
restructuring resulted in a mark-to-market increase of R489
million in the value of the remaining investment at 30 June
2004 and therefore has been taken directly to reserves in
terms of group accounting policies.

The group aims to reduce non-core assets, including the
transactions concluded to date, by approximately R2 billion
over the next two years.

Risk and financial management

During the period Mike Brown was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer and Philip Wessels as Chief Risk Officer.
The enterprise-wide risk management framework has been
enhanced and management processes have been redesigned to
ensure there is a logical and streamlined framework to
control risk and ensure proper governance. Interest rate,
liquidity, foreign exchange, capital and market risks are
now being controlled within the Asset and Liability
Division. Interest rate and currency risks have been reduced
during the period, with a large portion of the expensive
unhedged fixed-rate negotiable certificates of deposit
(NCDs), promissory notes (PNs) and retail fixed deposits
having matured by April 2004 and excess offshore capital
having been repatriated or hedged. In addition, the group’s
R6 billion fixed-rate subordinated debt issued in 2001 and
2002 has been fully hedged against further interest rate
movements.

The group has completed its Financial Advisory and
Intermediary Services Act (FAIS) licensing requirements.
Progress has been made in complying with the Financial
Intelligence Centre Act (FICA), the deadline for which has
been extended to 31 October 2004. The group is on track to
meet its January 2007 Basel 11 commitments.

Improved management information systems

The group has committed itself to improve financial
disclosure. Progress has been made with the phased
implementation of a new internal funds transfer pricing
system, which is scheduled to be completed by the end of
2004.

The implementation of activity-justified transfer pricing
between divisions for the group to allocate costs on a more
accurate basis is substantially complete. This will
facilitate more accurate product, channel and client
profitability measures.

A risk-weighted capital allocation and charging methodology
will be introduced before year-end. This will be used as a



foundation for more sophisticated risk-adjusted capital
allocation in line with the Basel II requirements.

These processes will result in more accurate and meaningful
segmental analysis from 2005, improving the group’s ability
of evaluating and managing investments and returns on equity
and helping management and investors to measure performance.

Merger completion

The merger of Nedbank, BoE, Nedcor Investment Bank (NIB) and
Cape of Good Hope Bank (CoGHB) is on track and nearing
completion. During the period one of the most crucial phases
of the merger - the system migration of all Property Finance
and Business Banking clients - was successfully completed.
The transfer of NBS clients is scheduled to take place
during the second half of 2004. The rationalisation of the
data centres in Paarl and Durban will be completed in early
2005.

As committed, annual steady-state synergies of R700 million
will be achieved. Management estimates that R624 million of
these will have been achieved by the end of 2004. Total
merger costs will be within budget.

Integration of Peoples Bank

Planning for the integration is well-advanced. Agreements
have been concluded for the purchase of minority interests,
the management has been integrated into the Retail and
Wealth Management Division and risk management has been
centralised. The group still requires final regulatory
approval to integrate the Peoples Bank clients fully into
Nedbank Limited.

Recovery programme - 2004

The recovery programme includes various revenue enhancement
initiatives, which are anticipated to increase revenue by
R204 million in 2004, with further improvements thereafter.
These include:

+ increasing the number of clients for whom we are the
primary banker;

» cross-selling;

. reduction in revenue leakage; and

« bancassurance.

Details of the recovery programme benefits and costs are
shown in the table below:

Recovery benefits (Rm - pre tax) June Dec Total
Revenue growth 43 161 204
Cost reduction 137 409 546
Total benefits 180 570 750
Once-off recovery cost (234) (225) (459)

Net (cost)/benefit (54) 345 291



As staff account for the largest component of costs, it is
regrettable that the major contribution to savings is of
necessity a reduction in staff numbers. The reductions come
mainly from staff in the central services areas and not
those in client-facing roles. Permanent staff numbers were
reduced by a net 1 033, and temporary staff numbers by 121,
in the first half. Total retrenchments for the year are
estimated at 2 300. This, together with limited rehiring,
natural attrition and the effect of business disposals, will
result in a headcount reduction of approximately 2 500.

These initiatives are discussed in more detail in the
divisional overview.

Financial performance

Income of R380 million attributable to ordinary sharehclders
shows a significant turnaround from the loss of R1,6 billion
for the vear to 31 December 2003. Attributable income for
the periocd showed a 5,9% decrease from the R404 million
restated attributable earnings reported for June 2003.

Headline earnings of R500 million showed a similar
turnaround, compared with the R55 million reported in
December 2003. However, headline earnings showed a decrease
of 29,9% from the R713 million reported in June 2003.

As indicated in the above recovery programme table, earnings
from 2005 onwards will be enhanced as most of the merger
expenses and the current recovery programme costs will have
been incurred, and the ongoing synergies will start to be
realised. In addition, the drag on net interest income from
expensive funding has decreased.

The published June 2003 figures have been adjusted to
reflect the effects of the accounting policy adjustments
disclosed at the end of December 2003. The impact of these
changes is reflected in the restated income statement.

Net interest income

Net interest income (NII) for the group increased by 10, 4%
from R3 246 million for the period to June 2003 to R3 585
million. The group’s net interest margin improved from 2,96%
for the six months to June 2003 to 3,05% for the period to
June 2004. This is in line with the trading update issued in
May.

There is potential for margin improvement as a result of

» most of the expensive fixed rate funding having matured;
« the rights offer funds resulting in a positive endowment
effect;

» offshore capital being repatriated; and

« the hedging of the fixed-rate subordinated debt and its

maturity profile.



Non- interest revenue ,

Non-interest revenue (NIR), excluding foreign currency
translation losses, declined by 12,2% from R4 119 million
for June 2003 to R3 617 million. This is primarily
attributable to a reduction in profits from exchange and
securities trading, which includes a significant change in
the ACl133 fair-value adjustment from R344 million in the
first half of 2003 to R114 million.

Management had anticipated that the buoyant trading
conditions experienced in the first half of 2003 would not
be repeated in the first half of 2004, and this is reflected
in the performance.

As indicated in the recovery programme and divisional
commentary, Nedcor is currently focusing on increasing NIR.

Foreign exchange translatiocn losses

The group incurred a foreign currency translation loss of
R213 million (2003: R735 million) owing to the strength of
the rand at 30 June 2004. The group has historically held
excess levels of capital in its offshore operations and has
repatriated, restructured and/or hedged foreign capital in
the first six months of the year, as outlined above, and
thereby reduced exposure to foreign currency by 57%.

The group will be reviewing its treatment of accounting for
foreign exchange translation gains and losses in line with
the adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) from 2005 onwards. It is anticipated that this will
lead to a larger portion of these translation profits and
losses being treated as movements in the foreign currency
translation reserve rather than as income statement profits
and losses.

Credit impairments

The bad-debt experience within Nedcor has improved, with
non-performing assets reducing from R8 444 million in
December 2003 to R7 351 million and recoveries of bad debts
increasing from R47 million in June 2003 to R119 million.
The group has seen no major credit impairments during the
period, except in Peoples Bank, where a once-off adjustment
of some RS0 million resulted from the correction and
refinement of AC133 default ratios and the recognition of
certain concentration risks in the mortgage book.

All minimum regulatory provisions have been met by the
group.

In the absence of any significant deterioration in economic
conditions, the credit outlook for the balance of the year
remains positive.

Expenses



Operating expenses increased by 9,6% from R4 722 million in
2003 to R5 175 million. Expenses are in line with
management’'s expectations. Staff expenses have increased,
partially due to provisions for potential staff incentive
remuneration amounting to R150 million, which were not
similarly provided for in the first six months of 2003, and
a further R38 million relating to an under accrual of
bonuses in 2003. Expenses have also been negatively impacted
by expenditure of R62 million relating to additional costs
for Basel II compliance and for money laundering projects to
comply with FICA, and additional 2003 audit and consultancy
fees of R31 million. Commercial Bank of Namibia and Tando
were consolidated for the first time during the second half
of 2003, resulting in additional expenses of R108 million in
the results to June 2004, when compared with the prior
pericd. Following an adjustment for the abovementioned
items, operating expenses remained virtually flat, compared
with the same period last year, and are down on the six
months to December 2003.

The group will continue its aggressive cost-cutting
exercise, which is fully detailed in the recovery programme.

Alliance partner fees moved from a recovery of losses of R4l
million to a payment of a profit share of R83 million.

Recovery expenditure of R234 million includes retrenchment
costs of R232 million and other restructuring costs of R2
million. The group estimates that further restructuring
costs for the balance of 2004 will amount to R225 million.

Merger costs incurred during the period amounted to R94
million, with further costs of R221 million expected for the
balance of the year, and a final contingency amount of R68
million reserved for 2005. These costs are in line with
expectations and the group is forecast to complete the
merger within the R868 million previously communicated to
the market.

The cost-to-income ratio has moved from 72,6% in June 2003
to 80,2% in December 2003 and is now 79,9%. Significant
improvements to this ratio are anticipated as a result of
the recovery programme from 2005 onwards. Excluding the
once-off recovery and merger cost and foreign currency
translation losses, the efficiency ratio is 73,0%.

Taxation

The low overall tax rate of 10% is mainly due to the impact
of a R171 million (2003: R178 million) credit on the tax
line arising from ACl102 treatment of structured finance
transactions. This credit is offset by lower reported margin
income on these transactions.




The taxation charge is also lower than initially anticipated
as a result of a saving in secondary tax on companies (STC)
due to the large take-up of the scrip dividend alternative
to the 2003 final dividend.

Assuming a similar trend for translation gains and losses,
the tax rate for the full year is expected to be in the
region of 10%, with the sustainable tax rate trending higher
to 25% to 30% in the next few years, once the historical
structured finance transactions have run down.

Exceptional items

The exceptional items comprise goodwill amortisation and
impairment of R235 million, the impairment of scftware and
development costs of R41 million and other impairments of
R14 million. These costs were offset by the net profits
arising from the sale of non-core assets of R153 million.
Goodwill will continue to be amortised during the 2004
financial year. During 2005 anticipated changes in
accounting practice, to align the group with IFRS, will
result in goodwill being subject to an impairment assessment
at the end of each reporting periocd.

Balance sheet

Capital

The rights issue raised additional capital of R5,15 billion.
This, together with trading profits, the realisation of non-
core investments, the focus on managing advances growth and
‘the reduction of foreign currency exposures, have all
contributed to increasing the group’s indicative primary
capital adequacy ratio from 5,0% at 31 December 2003 to 7,9%
at 30 June 2004.

Deposits

All expensive unhedged fixed-rate funding, in the form of
NCDs, PNs and fixed deposits of approximately R24 billion in
December 2003, has matured. Structural shifts in the group’s
funding from NCDs to current account and call and term
deposits have further reduced the cost of funds.

Advances

Advances have shown a decline of 1,8% from R210,1 billion in
December 2003 to R206,3 billion at 30 June 2004. The group
has actively reduced certain categories of low-margin
corpcocrate loans and followed a generally cautious approach
to asset growth prior to completion of the rights issue.

Retail average advances grew by 12,5%, while corporate
advances reduced by 5,9%, mainly as a result of the balance
sheet efficiency programme initiated to optimise the use of
capital.

Divisional overview



As referred to above, management information systems are
being enhanced with the introduction of funds transfer
pricing from the end of 2004, which will allow for more
accurate segmental reporting in future reporting periods.

Nedbank Corporate

Nedbank Corporate experienced a decline in net operating
income. This arose mainly from:

e a significant decline in the endowment earned on the
capital employed in the business;

« the proactive reduction in low-margin corporate advances
in line with the balance sheet efficiency programme;

« a lower AC 133 fair-value adjustment of R42 million (2003:
R134 million).

There has been an improvement in credit impairments, driven
by healthy recoveries and effective credit management.
Operating expenses were well-contained, but the division’s
results were impacted by recovery programme expenses of RéS
million.

A major project has been initiated to consolidate and
improve the bank’s electronic banking systems with a view to
growing market share and enhancing NIR. The cluster
successfully completed the transfer of BoE Business Banking
clients on to Nedbank systems as well as the remaining R8
billion migration of Nedbank and NIB property finance
clients on to the Property Finance SAP system. This process
largely completed the merger-related client migration in
Nedbank Corporate. A focus on asset quality, both in terms
of credit quality and return on equity, gave rise to a
proactive reduction in the loan book of approximately R6,4
billion.

Nedbank Corporate’s executive committee was restructured,
which resulted in the appointment of a skilled team with
experience in client value management and risk management
methodologies aligned with the Basel II framework. The
restructure also resulted in the consolidation of Asset
Based Finance into Business Banking, and the establishment
of a focused transactional banking sales division to enhance
cross-selling and increase our market share of clients of
whom we are the primary banker. The review of the
international operations has resulted in the scaling back of
most of the Asian activities, which will reduce the risk
profile and improve the return on capital.

Nedbank Capital

Nedbank Capital’'s results for the first six months were
behind management’s expectations. Trading profits were lower
than in the first half of 2003, as the buoyant trading
conditions in the first half of 2003 were not repeated in
2004. While revenue was below expectations, expenditure was



well-controlled.

While the division‘s most significant merger-related
integration issues were completed during 2003, considerable
management effort has been expended in restructuring the
division in line with the new Nedbank operating structure. A
new executive committee was established, the component
businesses were moved into the Nedcor head office and the
division was restructured to eliminate duplication and
optimise resources.

An integrated debt and equity capital markets business has
been created to align the trading and structuring functions.
Good progress has been made in delivering a single house
approach to add value to the client base. The minority
interests in NIB Namibia have been bought out and the
business has been consolidated. A more rigorous structural
process has been put in place for developing, monitoring and
converting the transaction pipeline.

Imperial Bank

Imperial Bank performed well at the net operating income
level, but expense growth was high. This is largely the
result of the upfront costs associated with increased staff
and related operational infrastructure that should vield
benefits in the future.

Retail and Wealth Management

The performance of Retail and Wealth Management, including
Peoples Bank, was negatively impacted by the cost of
expensive fixed-rate deposits and the additional impairments
required in Peoples Bank (as outlined in the section on
credit Impairments above), as well as recovery programme
expenses of R52 million.

A detailed review has been undertaken of Nedbank’s
alliances:

« the Go Banking alliance with Pick 'nm Pay is fulfilling the
objectives of growing the client base, as well as providing
a low-cost platform for enhancing the transactional banking
services;

« the 014 Mutual Bank Division of Nedbank continues to
provide excellent service and the division is working well
with 0Old Mutual to increase the relevance of this business
to the client base and intermediary network - 0ld Mutual
Bank is forecast to produce a loss for the full year due to
marketing and client acquisition activities; and

e the alliance relationships with Capital One are still
under review.

The restructuring of the local and international businesses
of the Wealth Management Division 1s largely complete. As
referred to earlier, Chiswell Associates and the Stenham



Group have been sold, and good progress has been made on the
disposal of BoE Life Internaticnal and BoE Funds Services.

The current integration of BoE Private Clients with Nedbank
Private Bank will improve client service and increase cross-
selling opportunities.

The process of integrating Peoples Bank into Nedbank Limited
started in April 2004 and can be progressed to full
integration only once regulatory approval has been received.
This integration will reduce costs, streamline business
activities and focus the group’s retail growth initiatives.

While the Retail and Wealth Management Division has a solid
platform from which to grow, performance is not yet at an
acceptable level and considerable effort is required to
improve the cost-to-income ratio, return on equity and
client satisfaction.

Shared services, capital management and central funding

The various services divisions have all reduced costs, with
the exception of Group Risk, which incurred additional
expenses from the money laundering projects and Basel IT
implementation costs.

Achievements over the period include:

+ Swisscard is now fully operational in Switzerland.

« A back-up call centre has been commissioned in Durban.

« A tracking and storage infrastructure has been set up to
accommeodate the FICA documentation and legislative
requirements.

» Credit cards are now processed on the new CAMS1l
production platform.

e Nedbank is one of the first South African banks to be
compliant with the new PASA requirements for disaster
recovery planning.

* Group Operations Division is on track to achieve a fifth
successive year of zero-cost growth.

+ Progress was made with procedures to ensure Basel 11
compliance.

e Progress was made on an optimal economic capital model, in
conjunction with 01d Mutual.

* A high level of activity in client verification processes
was achieved for FICA compliance.

« The low number of armed robberies and burglaries was
maintained.

e The focus on reducing the high level of card fraud was
sustained.

*» A standardised remuneration policy has been implemented
throughout the group.

» The voluntary retrenchment initiative minimised the impact
of forced retrenchments on staff morale.




sStaff roadsheows were, and are planned to be, undertaken
nationally to discuss strategy, staff issues and introduce
the group’s values process.

Building for the future

Nedcor has identified the following key steps to build for
the future:

e to continue to focus on the basics of banking by disposing
of non-core assets, simplifying the brand strategy,
optimising the asset and liability management and mix, and
improving the management information systems;

» to focus on growing the retail business and transactional
banking in particular, while building on the group’s
strengths in the corporate and commercial sector;

« to focus on Southern Africa and retain only core offshore
operations;

e to attract, retain and develop staff, while building a
client~centred culture, with an improvement in staff morale
remaining a key focus;

« to restructure products and processes to improve client
service;

« to monitor client satisfaction on a constant basis, with
client retention strategies firmly embedded in the recovery
programme;

+ to expand bancassurance;

e to drive transformation and sustainability and to comply
with the spirit of the Financial Sector Charter (FSC)
{(Nedcor will be increasing its focus on its FSC strategy,
including a broad-based black economic empowerment (BEE)
ownership strategy, in the second half of 2004);

e to redesign the management structure within the branches
to enhance client service further;

« in line with the move to a client-driven business model,
to focus on the core business of banking and move to a
single-brand strategy, subject to regulatory and shareholder
approval.

Prospects

Following the successful completion of the rights issue, the
group should start to show growth in advances during the
second half of 2004. Margins should improve as a result of:
e deposit and advance mixes within the bank being better
placed to enhance earnings;

« the maturing of expensive unhedged fixed-rate funding;

« the repatriation or hedging of large amounts of offshore
capital; and

+ the endowment effect of the rights offer.

The directors and management are aware that a considerable
amount of effort lies ahead in the recovery programme and
that the fruit of these endeavours will not be fully

reflected in the financial results this year. The business
has turned the corner on the road to recovery and is well-



placed to deliver improved earnings growth next year, as set
out in the recovery programme.

The group continues to pursue its target of achieving a
return on average ordinary shareholders’ equity of 20%, on a
run-rate basis, by the end of 2006. In order to do this, the
group is committed to:

» covering its cost of capital, excluding foreign exchange
losses and merger and recovery costs this year:;

» maintaining tier 1 capital adequacy above 7,5%;

» attaining a market related asset growth;

+ lowering the cost of funding as expensive funding rolls
off;

« growing non-interest-revenue through various initiatives
outlined above;

e growing expenses at a level below revenue growth.

As indicated above, the benefits from the merger and the
recovery programme will emerge only in 2005.

Against this background, the group has forecast headline
earnings, inclusive of both merger and restructuring costs
{(but excluding translation gains or losses), for the year to
31 December 2004 to be between 0% and 15% greater than in
2003. However, due to the dilutionary impact from increased
shares issued following the rights offer, headline earnings
per share, inclusive of both merger and restructuring costs
(but excluding translation gains or losses), are expected to
be between 6% and 19% lower than the restated 2003 figure of
502 cents per share. The group is forecasting positive
attributable earnings for 2004, compared with a loss in
2003. Shareholders are advised that these forecasts have not
been reviewed and reported on by the group’s auditors.

The directors and management express their thanks to clients
and other stakeholders for their continued support, and also
thank all staff members for the incredible job they have
done during this tough period.

Reviewed results - auditors’ opinion

These results have been reviewed by the group’s auditors,
KPMG Inc and Deloitte & Touche, and the review opinion is
available for inspection at the company’'s registered office.

Dividend

Notice is hereby given that an interim dividend of 44 cents
per ordinary share has been declared in respect of the six
months ended 30 June 2004.

Trading in the STRATE environment requires settlement within
five business days. In accordance with the settlement
procedures of STRATE, Nedcor has determined the last day for
trading to participate in the interim dividend to be Friday,
3 September 2004. The shares will commence trading ex-



dividend on Monday, 6 September 2004, and the record date
will be Friday, 10 September 2004. Payment will be made on
Monday, 13 September 2004.

Share certificates may not be dematerialised or
rematerialised between Monday, 6 September 2004, and Friday,
10 September 2004, both days inclusive.

The results have been prepared in accordance with South
African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice.

For and on behalf of the board
WAM Clewlow TA Boardman
Chairman Chief Executive

4 August 2004
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Financial highlights

Rm

Headline earnings
reconciliation

Income/ (loss)
attributable to
shareholders

Less: Non-headline
earning items
Exceptional capital
items

Taxation on exceptional
items

Headline earnings

Key ratios

Return on ordinary
shareholders’ equity
Return, excluding
foreign currency
translation losses, on
ordinary shareholders’
equity

Return on total assets
Return, excluding
foreign currency
translation losses, on
total assets

Net interest income to
interest-earning assets
Non-interest revenue toc
total income
Impairments to total
advances

Efficiency ratio
Efficiency ratio
{excluding foreign
currency translation
losses)

Share statistics
Number of shares in
issue

Weighted average number
of shares

Fully diluted weighted

average number of shares

Headline earnings per
share

Fully diluted headline
earnings per share
Attributable earnings
per share

oo

oP oe

o

a0 0o

m

m

cents

cents

cents

Reviewed
30 June

2004

380

(120)
(137)

17

392,9
327,8
330,1
153
151

1le

Restated
30 June

2003

404

(309)

(309)

713

274,7
292,3
292,5
244
244

138

Audited
31
December
2003

(1 600)

(1 655)
{1 693)
| 38

55

274,8
293,0
293,4
19
19

(546)



Fully diluted
attributable earnings
per share

Dividends declared per
share

Dividend paid per share
Dividend cover

Net asset value per
share

(Investments at market
value)

Tangible net asset wvalue
per share (Investments
at market value)

‘cents

cents
cents
times
cents

cents

115

44
35
3,5
4 444
3 132

5 154
3 206

4 240

2 247



Income statement

for the period
ended

Rm

Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Non-interest
revenue

Foreign currency
translation losses
Gross operating
income

Impairment of
advances

Income after
impairment of
advances
Operating expenses
Fees due to/ (from)
alliance partners
Recovery programme
expenses

Merger expenses
Profit/ (loss) from
operations before
exceptional items
Exceptional items
Amortisation and
impairment of
goodwill
Profit/(loss) on
sale of
subsidiaries,
investments and
property and
equipment

Net impairment of
investments,
property and
equipment and
capitalised
development costs
Profit/ (loss) from
operations
Attributable
earnings of
associates and
joint ventures
Profit/(loss)
before taxation
Taxation

Reviéwed
30 June
2004

11 707
8 122

3 585

3 617
(213)

6 989
719

6 270

5 175
83

234

684

547

79

626
80

Restated
30 June
2003

14 474
11 228
3 246

4 119
(735)

6 630
891

5 739

4 722
(41)

134
924

(309)
(209)

(100)

615
70

685
205

6 months
to

31
December
2003

13 667
10 105

3 562

3 834
(681)

6 715

1 172

5 543

5 618
10

260
(345)

(1 384)
(1 594)

449

(239)

(1 729)

62

(1 667)
185

Audited
31
December
2003
28 141
21 333
6 808

7 953
(1 416)
13 345
2 063
11 282
10 340
(31)
394

579

(1 693)
(1 803)
349
{239)
(1 114)
132
(982)
3390



Taxation on (17)

exceptional items
Profit/ (loss) after
taxation

Minority interest
income attributable

to

- ordinary (73)
shareholders

- preference (110)
shareholders

Income/ (loss)
attributable to
shareholders

Cash flow statement
for the period ended

Rm

Cash and short-term funds
at beginning of period
Cash flow from operating
activities

Increase in working funds
Taxation paid

Cash flows from investment
activities

Cash flows from financing
activities

Cash and short-term funds
at end of period

480

(76)

404

Reviewed
30 June

2004
12 227

2 663
(6 345)
(285)
1 228
2 321

11 809

(38)

(1 814)

{(57)
(133)

(2 004)

Restated
30 June

2003
16 607

2 344
(9 655)
(307)
1 287
(871)

9 405

(38)

(1 334)

(133)
(133)

(1 600)

Audited
31
December
2003

16 607

5 281
(13 762)
(616)
2 654
2 063

12 227



AC133: Balance sheet classification
as at 30 June 2004

Rm

Fair value

Held for trading

Available for sale

Amortised cost

Originated loans and receivables
Held to maturity

Non-trading liabilities

Other assets and liabilities

Total shareholders’ equity and
minority shareholders’ equity

Reviewed

Assets Liabilities
56 939 27 137
54 369 27 137

2 570
243 414 252 284

232 458

1 350
250 725
9 606 1 559
20 932

300 353 300 353



Group balance sheet
as at

Rm
Assets
Cash and short-term funds

Other short-term securities.

Government and other
securities

Derivative instruments
Advances

Sundry debtors

Deferred taxation asset
Current taxation prepaid
Investments in associate
companies and joint ventures
Other investments
Insurance assets

Property and equipment
Computer software and
capitalised development
costs

Goodwill

Customers’ indebtedness for
acceptances

Total assets

Shareholders’ equity and
liabilities

Ordinary share capital
Ordinary share premium
Reserves

Ordinary shareholders’
equity

Minority shareholders’
equity

Attributable to preference
shareholders

Attributable to ordinary
shareholders

Total shareholders’ equity
and minority shareholders’
equity

Derivative instruments
Deposits, current accounts
and other liabilities
Sundry creditors

Deferred taxation
liabilities

Current taxation liabilities
Insurance funds

Long-term debt instruments
Liabilities under
acceptances

Reviewed
30 June

2004

11 809
9 549
22 322

21 509
206 294
9 161

1 253
174

1 433

364
803
517
558

=N Wl

598
009

— W

300 353

393
832
238
463

~3 1w

2 770
699

20 932
19 856
236 618

9 585
864

189
803
497
00S

Lol IOV

Rest
30

19
15

37
204

=

R NOu

316

16

38
240

~ U

ated
June

2003

405
385
282

132
580
875
156
396
547

064
276
851
471

881
822
123
271
625

261
157

982
561
700
094
978

295
336

175
276
447
822

audited

31

December

12
10
21

28
210

313

15

28
238

2003

227
610
333

496
096
463
074
256
627

788
152
684
710

762
835
113
275
801

571
647

802
652
101
206
813

045
731

144
152
086
835



Total shareholders’ equity 300 353 316 123 313 113
and liabilities
Guarantees on behalf of 10 429 10 703 12 403
customers excluded from
assets
Segmental analysis 2004 2003 2004
as at 30 June Reviewed Restated Reviewed
Average Average Operating
Rm assets Rbn assets Rbn income
Nedbank Corporate 124 112 3 224
Nedbank Capital 58 61 1 087
Imperial Bank 14 10 393
Retail and Wealth 77 75 3 616
Management
Shared Services 30 28 50
Capital Management 25 29 (1 005)
and Central Funding
Preference share
dividend
Foreign currency (58) (56) (376)
translation losses
270 259 6 989
By geography
South Africa 6 217
Business operations 6 217
Recovery program
expenses
Minority interest
income attributable
to preference
shareholders
Rest of Africa 225
Rest of World 547
Business operations 547
Recovery program
expenses
6 989
Segmental analysis 2003 2004 2003
as at 30 June Restated Reviewed Restated
Operating Headline Headline
Rm income earnings earnings
Nedbank Corporate 3 303 1 149 1 365
Nedbank Capital 1 370 448 697
Imperial Bank 307 52 67
Retail and Wealth 3 720 270 437
Management
Shared Services (108) (432) (396)
Capital Management (1 078) (664) (722)

and Central Funding



Preference share
dividend

Foreign currency
translation losses

By geography

South Africa
Business operations
Recovery program
expenses

Minority interest
income attributable
to preference
shareholders

Rest of Africa

Rest of World
Business operations
Recovery program
expenses

(884)
6 630

5 897
5 897

85
648
648

6 630

(110)
(213)
500
248
500
(141)

(110)

101
150
173
(23)

500

(735)
713

432
432

68
213
213

713

Segmental results have been restated to align with current

management structures and reporting methodologies.



Statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity

Rm

Balance at 31 December
2002

as previously reported
Impairment of advances
Fair value adjustment
Taxation

Minority interest
Restated balance at 31
December 2002

Net profit for the
period

Dividends to
shareholders

Issue of shares

Shares acquired by
subsidiary

Release of reserves
previously not available
Foreign currency
translation reserves and
other movements

Restated balance at 30
June 2003

Net loss for the period
Dividends to
shareholders

Issue of shares

Shares sold by
subsidiary

Release of reserves
previously not available
Foreign currency
translation reserves and
other movements

Balance at 31 December
2003

Net profit for the
period

Dividends to
shareholders

Issue of shares

Release of reserves
previously not available
Available for sale
reserve movement

Foreign currency
translation reserves and
other movements

Balance at 30 June 2004

Ordinary
shareholders’

equity

17 046
(1 700)
(1 177)
787

(4)

14 952
404
(839)

373
(284)

(356)
(93)

14 157

(2 004)
(556)

11
170

Preference
shareholders’

equity

1 987

1 987

(5)

1 982

133
(133)

820

2 802
110

(142)

2 770



Statement of changes in
shareholders’ equity

Rm

Balance at 31 December
2002

as previously reported
Impairment of advances
Fair value adjustment
Taxation

Minority interest
Restated balance at 31
December 2002

Net profit for the
period

Dividends to
shareholders

Issue of shares

Shares acquired by
subsidiary

Release of reserves
previously not available
Foreign currency
translation reserves and
other movements

Restated balance at 30
June 2003

Net loss for the period
Dividends to
shareholders

Issue of shares

Shares sold by
subsidiary

Release of reserves
previously not available
Foreign currency
translation reserves and
other movements

Balance at 31 December
2003

Net profit for the
period

Dividends to
shareholders

Issue of shares

Release of reserves
previously not available
Available for sale
reserve movement

Foreign currency
translation reserves and
other movements

Balance at 30 June 2004

Minority
shareholders’
equity

503

503
76

561
57

34

652

73

Total

19 536
(1 700)
(1 177)
787

(4)

17 442
480
(8389)

368
(284)

(356)

(111)

15 101
563
(239)

5 149
(25)

416



Income
statement
(restated)
for the
period ended
30 June 2003

Rm

Interest
income
Interest
expense

Net interest
income
Non-interest
revenue
Foreign
currency
translation
losses
Gross
operating
income
Impairment
of advances
Income after
impairment
of advances
Operating
expenses
Fees due to
alliance
partners
Merger
expenses
Profit from
operations
before
exceptional
items
Exceptional
ltems
Profit from
operations
Attributable
earnings of
associates
and joint
ventures
Profit
before

As

previously AC133
restatements

reported
14 669

11 180
3 489
4 239

(735)

6 993

891

6 102

(309)
1 097

70

1 167

(20)

(20)

(20)

(20)

(20)

Peoples

Bank
put
option

48

(48)

(48)

(48)

(48)

Change in

basis of

accounting
relating to
AC105/AC102
(178)

(178)

(178)

(178)

(178)

(178)

(178)



taxation
Taxation
Profit after
taxation
Minority
interest
income
attributable
to

- ordinary
shareholders
- preference
shareholders
Income
attributable
to
shareholders
Less:
Exceptional
items
Headline
earnings

Income
statement
(restated)
for the
period ended
30 June 2003

Rm

Interest
income
Interest
expense

Net interest
income
Non-interest
revenue
Foreign
currency
translation
losses

Gross
operating
income
Impairment
of advances
Income after

592
575

(309)

661

Change in

basis of

accounting
relating
to

joint
ventures
(17)

(117)

(117)

(6) ,
(14) (48)
(4) 18
(18) (30)
(18) (30)
Reclassification

(178)

Change in

treatment
of

Nedbank

of transaction preference

taxes

share



impairment
of advances
Operating
expenses
Fees due to
alliance
partners
Merger
expenses
Profit from
operations
before
exceptional
items
Exceptional
items

Profit from
operations
Attributable
earnings of
associates
and joint
ventures
Profit
before
taxation
Taxation
Profit after
taxation
Minority
interest
income
attributable
to

- ordinary
shareholders
- preference
shareholders
Income
attributable
to
shareholders
Less:
Exceptional
items
Headline
earnings

Income
statement
(restated)

{109)

180

(180)

(180)

(180)

(180)

133

133

133



for the
period ended
30 June 2003

Rm

Interest
income
Interest
expense

Net interest
income
Non-interest
revenue
Foreign
currency
translation
losses

Gross
operating
income
Impairment
of advances
Income after
impairment
of advances
Operating
expenses
Fees due
alliance
partners
Merger
expenses
Profit from
operations
before
exceptional
items
Exceptional
items

Profit from
operations
Attributable
earnings of
associates
and joint
ventures
Profit
before
taxation
Taxation
Profit after
taxation
Minority

to

Change in

depreciation
rate from

7 to 5 years

48

(48)

(48)

(48)

(15)
(33)

Restated
14 474

11 228
3 246
4 119

(735)

6 630

891

5 739

4 722

(41)

134

924

(309)
615
70

685

205
480



interest

income

attributable

to

- ordinary (76)
shareholders

- preference

shareholders

Income (33) 404
attributable

to

shareholders

Less: (309)
Exceptional

items

Headline (33) 713
earnings

This and additional information is available on our website:
www . nedcor.com




Ola Mutual pic
Results for the six months ended 30 June 2004

Building Momentum

HIGHLIGHTS
O Adjusted operating earnings per share™: 6.8p (2003; 5.6p), an increase of 21% in Sterli

Q Basic loss per share: 1.8p (2003: Earnings of 5.6p**)
21.9c¢ (2003: Earnings of 72.1¢**)

Q Life sales of £262m on an annual premium equivalent basis (2003: £261m)

Q Return on equity 19% (2003: 16%™*)

O Total assets under management £130bn at 30 June 2004 (£125bn at 31 December 2003)

a Adjusted embedded value: 114p per share (31 December 2003: 105p***)
R12.86 per share (31 December 2003: R12.49***)

a Interim dividend of 1.75p (2003: 1.7p), 19.8 cents in Rand**** (2003; 19.5 cents)

Jim Sutcliffe, Chief Executive, commented:

“Through our strategy of diversity we have built momentum in the first half, taking advantage of improved
conditions in some key markets. Our US asset management and South African general insurance businesses
had a particularly good half-year, although there is still work to be done to improve life sales in South Africa and
to deliver recovery at Nedcor. We look forward to the rest of 2004 with confidence.”

Wherever the items asterisked in the Highlights are used, whether in the Highlights or the Operating and Financial Review, the following
apply:

* Adjusted operating profit represents the directors’ view of the underlying performance of the Group. For life assurance and general
insurance businesses, adjusted operating profit is based on a long-term investment return and includes investment return on own shares
held in policyholders' funds. For banking business, adjusted operating profit excludes the loss on disposalfwrite-down of investment in
Dimension Data Holdings ple, restructuring and integration costs and the transitional impact of the change in credit provisioning
methodology. For all businesses, adjusted operating profit excludes goodwill amortisation and impairment and fines and penalties. Adjusted
operating earnings per share is similarly based, but is stated after tax and minority interests, with the calculation of the weighted average
number of shares including own shares held in policyholders’ funds.

The segmental adjusted operating profit for 2004 is shown before elimination of inter-segment results.

** Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of Urgent Issues Taskforce Abstract 37 “Purchases and Sales of Own
Shares”. Details of the changes are set out in notes 1, 3, 4 and 5(b)(iv) to the attached Financial Statements.

*** Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of Urgent Issues Taskforce Abstract 38 “Accounting for ESOP Trusts”.
Details of the changes are set out in note 1 to the attached Financial Statements.

**** Indicative only, being the Rand equivalent of 1.75p converted at the exchange rate prevailing on 30 June 2004. The actual amount to be
paid by way of interim dividend to holders of shares on the South African branch register will be by reference to the exchange rate prevaifling
at the close of business on 7 October 2004, as determined by the Company, and will be announced on 8 October 2004.
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Old Mutual plc
Results for the six months ended 30 June 2004 continued

ENQUIRIES:

Old Mutual plc Investors
Andrew Parkins Tel: +44 (0) 20 7002 7264
Tel: +44 (0) 7789 927 764

Old Mutual plc Media UK
Miranda Bellord Tel: +44 (0) 20 7002 7133
:Tony Friend, College Hill Tel: +44 (0) 20 7457 2020

Old Mutual plc Media SA
Nad Pillay Tel: +27 (0) 82 553 7980

Notes to editors:

A webcast of the analysts presentation and Q&A will be broadcast live at 9.30 a.m. (UK time) today on our
website at www.oldmutual.com.

High-resolution images are available for the media to view and download on www.uppa.co.uk. To access these,
please register, log in and then search on ‘Old Mutual'. Alternatively, you can contact UPPA directly on
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Operating and Financial Review
Chief Executive’s Statement

Our adjusted operating earnings for the first half of 2004 improved to 6.8p / 82.7¢ per share (2003: 5.6p / 73.4¢).
Return on average equity was a creditable 19%, helped by strong growth at our US businesses, recovery at
Nedcor, another solid profit contribution from our South African life business and an excellent first half at Mutual
& Federal. We have shown our confidence in the strength of the Group’s business and our generally positive
results for the half-year by declaring an increased interim dividend of 1.75p (2003: 1.7p) per share, which will be
paid on 30 November 2004.

These improved operating results have been accompanied by progress in our journey to develop a powerful
international financial services business from our South African core. We have invested further in our US life
business, and our UK distribution and asset management businesses have built their teams and capabilities. We
have also been working hard at our Black Economic Empowerment (BEE) pians in South Africa and remain
committed to introducing BEE shareholdings at the South African level to support our continuing efforts to
normalise our staff complement and procurement practices.

Adjusted embedded value grew over the period by 9% in Sterling terms and 3% in Rand.

Basic earnings per share were negative, mainly as a result of short term market fluctuations in the value of US
life’s bond portfolio and the impact of the $90 million regulatory settlement at our US asset management affiliate
Pilgrim Baxter.

The Group's net fund flow from customers was healthy around the world, with a net positive total of £4.0 biilion,
including a record $5.3 billion from our US asset management business. Investment performance continues to
be the key for our businesses to attract client assets. On a three-year basis, more than three-quarters of our US
funds under management and more than two-thirds of our South African third party asset management clients
have received returns above benchmark and more than 70% of our UK unit trusts were in the top half of their
comparator groups.

Markets remained at higher levels than in the equivalent period in 2003. Together with the strong net cash flow,

this led to assets under management, the driver for much of our revenues, being up 12% on 30 June 2003
levels.

Nedcor stabilised through the early stages of its recovery programme during the first half. Our target for Nedcor
remains to achieve a run-rate Return on Equity of 20% by the end of 2006 for delivery in 2007. Adjusted
operating profit (under UK GAAP) of R712 million was below that for the equivalent period in 2003 (R1,308
million), but was a substantial improvement on the loss incurred in the second half of 2003. Before restructuring
costs, Nedcor covered its cost of capital and we expect it to make steady progress to our goal over the next
three years.
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Operating and Financial Review
Chief Executive's Statement continued

Important steps were also taken by Nedcor during the period to fulfil the strategic imperatives that we had
agreed with management. These included: the strengthening of capital through the completion of its R5.2 billion
rights issue; disposal of non-core operations outside South Africa; the installation of a new executive team; the
reduction of risk and volatility through the repatriation of surplus capital and an interest rate hedging programme;

and tackling the expense base through retrenchments announced in the first quarter.

Life sales for the Group as a whole were flat overall. A 21% increase in sales in US Dollar terms at our US life
business offset disappointing sales at our South African life business, so that 53% of our sales came from the
US in this period. Margins were well above our long-term expectations in the US life business at 22%. In South
Africa, margins were in line with our long-term expectations at a product level, but our product mix produced a
lower result than last year. In the UK, Selestia continued to make strong progress by building its sales (£197

million, as compared with £86 million in the equivalent period in 2003).

We were very pleased with the results from our now 88%-owned South African general insurance subsidiary,
Mutual & Federal, as it achieved top-of-the-cycle underwriting results and benefited from favourable claims
conditions. These excellent results have enabled Mutual & Federal to declare a special dividend, of which some

R753 million will be for our benefit.

Our total gearing* was 17.5% at the end of June, compared to 21.7% at the end of 2003. In South Africa, we
have 2.5 times the statutory requirements in our life company, and Nedcor’s capital adequacy ratio was 12.3% at
30 June 2004. A M Best have confirmed our US life business’s credit ratings.

Outlook

We expect the momentum built up in the period to June will continue and that our results for the year will benefit
from management action initiated in the first half. We shalli be making further investment in our strategic
development, including the launch of a new retail strategy at our US asset management business. Volatility of
currencies and markets will affect us, as usual, but the benefits of our diversity will continue to mitigate this.

Jim Suftcliffe
Chief Executive

10 August 2004

* As defined in the footnote on page 12.
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Operating and Financial Review
Group Finance Director's Review

SEGMENTAL REVIEW - SOUTH AFRICA

LIFE ASSURANCE

Our South African life assurance business continued to deliver strong profit, although sales were lower than
planned. Adjusted operating profit, excluding long term investment return (LTIR), of R1,825 million was up 15%
on the R1,592 million recorded in the same period for 2003, driven by tighter expense control, favourable
experience variances and a 10% increase in average asset levels.

The LTIR of R1,023 million declined by 5% from R1,075 million for the comparative period. This reduction
reflects the impact that the investments in Nedcor and Mutual & Federal, outlined under Capital below, had on
the average shareholder assets used in the calculation, as well as the reduction in the effective LTIR rate arising
from an increase in the cash component of the portfolio.

Total life sales on an Annual Premium Egquivalent (APE) basis for the period were R1,356 miilion, 14% lower
than the corresponding period last year principally caused by significantly lower Group Business sales. Individual
Business and Group Business contributed R1,158 million (2003: R1,196 million) and R198 million (2003: R380
million) respectively to this result.

Individual Business single premiums were flat at R3,099 million when compared to the equivalent period last
year, with higher annuity sales being offset by lower investment business. individual Business recurring
premiums of R848 million were 5% down on the R888 million in the same period last year, with significantly
higher Group Schemes sales offset by lower investment business in the middle market. Individual Business
sales were achieved despite the negative productivity impact of completing accreditation for advisors and
brokers in line with the Financial Advisory and Intermediary Services Act. The successful launch of Masthead for
the broker market is designed to strengthen the position of independent brokers, who remain a key channel.
While life Individual Business was disappointing, non-life sales in Unit Trusts and Fairbairn Capital increased by
28% over the prior period.

Group Business single premiums fell 60% from the equivalent period last year with no significant large flows in
the period, while Group Business recurring premiums of R93 million were 21% behind the R117 million in the
same period last year. Progress on the pipeline for Group Business has been disappointing, aithough the
pipeline remains significant and is subject to an unpredictable sales pattern.

The after-tax value of new business at R264 million was 7% lower than the comparative period in 2003, although
total margins improved slightly from 18% in 2003 to 19% for the current period due to tight expense
management in the distribution business. The value of in-force business of R9,190 million at 30 June 2004
decreased from R9,832 million at 31 December 2003 due to the negative effect of economic assumption
changes and investment variances.
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Operating and Financial Review
Group Finance Director's Review continued

Life company net cash flow was a negative R2.8 billion in the six months, including a negative R0.9 billion in
respect of life wrapped asset management flows. The remaining life result reflects a positive R0.3 billion in
respect of Individual Business (2003: negative RO.7 billion) and a negative R2.2 biliion for Group Business
(2003: positive R0.2 billion) as a result of significantly lower Group Business single premiums.

The life company’s capital on the relevant local basis increased by R1.9 billion during the period to R31.0 billion
at 30 June 2004, and the company remains well capitalised with excess assets of 2.5 times the required
statutory capital.

ASSET MANAGEMENT

Adjusted operating profit for the South African asset management businesses, excluding Nedcor, decreased to
R217 million in 2004, compared to R233 million in the equivalent period in 2003. Higher asset levels and
improved performance fees were offset by lower trading fees in the unit trust company following changes to
industry guidelines regarding trading in units, charges relating to share incentive arrangements and development
of administration infrastructure.

Total net client inflows to the asset management businesses were R4.8 biilion, excluding the R0.9 biilion of life
wrapped assets noted under life above. This included R2.6 billion of inflows following the successful transfer of
mandates from Quaystone clients.

BANKING — NEDCOR

The first six months of 2004 have seen Nedcor make good progress in restoring the performance of the Group
and laying a foundation for growth. As previously noted, it is going to take time for the full benefits of the
recovery programme to emerge, although the progress and improvements made to date have been encouraging.

Nedcor's adjusted operating profit, which includes its asset management operations, of R712 million was a

decrease of 46% compared to the same period last year, but an improvement on the second half of 2003.

Nedcor's net interest income of R3,549 million reflects an increase of 2% over the first half of 2003. Improved
margins at 3.05% were the primary drivers as expensive fixed rate funding started to unwind. Non-interest
revenue at R3,156 million was a decrease of 5% over R3,332 million in the second half of 2003 (based on a
reclassification of asset management result). This is primarily attributable to a reduction in profits from exchange

and securities trading.
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Operating and Financial Review
Group Finance Director's Review continued

Translation losses are substantially lower at R213 million (2003: R658 million). Nedcor has repatriated,
restructured and hedged offshore capital to reduce foreign currency exposure from R7.1 billion to a net
R3.1 billion during the past six months. The capital volatility arising from foreign exchange movements has now
been substantially neutralised.

The cost-to-income ratio, on an SA GAAP basis and excluding the effect of translation losses, at 77.6% reflects
a deterioration from the 2003 ratio of 65.4% mainly due to lower revenue growth and re-engineering expenses.
This negative gearing effect of expense growth exceeding income growth has accordingly impacted earnings.
The headcount reductions will only impact the cost base from the second half of the year. Nedcor continues to
focus on internal expense reduction as a key part of its recovery programme.

In February, Nedcor launched a rights issue which raised R5.2 billion of additional ordinary capital. Part of the
net proceeds were used to repay the R2 billion advanced by Old Mutual in December and other short term
financing of RO.5 billion. This, together with the realisation of non-core investments, the focus on managing
advances growth and the reduction of foreign currency exposure through the repatriation of offshore capital,
have all contributed to increasing the primary capital adequacy ratio from 10.1% at 31 December 2003 to 12.3%
at 30 June 2004.

GENERAL INSURANCE - MUTUAL & FEDERAL

Mutual & Federal, the Group’'s 88% owned South African general insurance operation, has had an exceptional
six months with an adjusted operating profit of R569 million, including long term investment return, representing
an increase of 556% from R368 miillion last year.

The strong performance was principally attributable to an improvement in the underwriting surplus to
R266 miltion (2003: R93 million). This represented an underwriting ratio of 8.5% to net earned premiums (10.7%
on an SA GAAP basis), which was a marked improvement over the 3.5% achieved in the equivalent period in
2003. This has been aided by the strong underwriting cycle in the first half of 2004, combined with an absence of

severe weather-related claims and strong claims control with a focus on quality and speed of claims settlement.

Gross premium income of R3,592 million was 19% higher than last year as a result of new business acquired
and rating adjustments in unprofitable segments of the business.
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Operating and Financial Review
Group Finance Director's Review continued

SEGMENTAL REVIEW - UNITED STATES
US LIFE

Our US life business’s adjusted operating profit of $73 million was 18% up on the $62 million achieved in 2003.
This increase was driven by the impact of the continued growth in scale of the business, with funds under
management increasing by 22% to $15.3 billion.

Over the past year the business has demonstrated its ability to exploit opportunities in changing market
conditions by adding pertinent new distribution and through rapid product development. In distribution we added
a corporate and offshore channel. In products, the business has used its traditional equity index competence to
produce both profitable annuity and life products, which respectively took second and fifth place market share
nationally for the period. Total APE for the first half of 2004, at $251 miillion, was 21% higher than achieved in the
first half of 2003. The average margin on new business after tax increased from 11% to 22% of APE and the
value of new business after tax at $54 million was $32 million higher than in 2003 driven mainly by movements in

interest rates, the change in product mix and a reduction in the costs of gathering new business.

US life continue to manage the capital efficiently and $16 million was injected to support new business volumes.
The business is now generating positive statutory profits, reducing the business’s need for future capital support
from the Group. The Risk Based Capital (RBC) remains in excess of 200% of the statutory requirement.

US ASSET MANAGEMENT

The Group's US asset management business delivered adjusted operating profit of $87 million, an increase of
43% on the equivalent period in 2003. The stable equity markets in the first half of 2004, in conjunction with
strong transaction and performance fees and positive net fund inflows, were the key factors driving this positive
result. Average asset levels for 2004 were $159 billion, compared to $127 billion, adjusted for sold firms, for the
comparative 2003 period.

Funds under management increased in the first half of 2004 by 6% from $154 billion to $163 billion following net
client inflows of $5.3 billion and positive market movements of $4.1 billion. These inflows were achieved in both
equity and fixed income portfolios and included $1.5 billion from the US life business and $2.0 billion in cash
collateral assets for eSecLending, our securities lending business. Our strategy of maintaining a diversity of
separate specialist affiliates has ensured that the issues affecting Pilgrim Baxter & Associates (PBA) had no
material impact on other affiliates. At 30 June 2004, the funds under management remain well diversified,
comprising 45% US equities, 10% international equities, 34% fixed income and 11% alternative and other
assets.
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Operating and Financial Review
Group Finance Director's Review continued

Strong investment performance has been maintained at previously high levels. 81% and 93% of mandates
outperformed their respective benchmarks on an asset weighted basis over three and five years respectively.
Over 70% of these funds also achieved top quartile performance relative to their peers over the same periods.

In June, PBA reached agreements with the US Securities and Exchange Commission and the Office of the New
York State Attorney General to settle the regulatory actions against the firm. The agreements settled charges
brought against PBA in November 2003 in relation to past trading activity in the PBHG Funds permitted by the
former management of the firm. New leadership appointed at PBA in November has instituted significant reforms
at the firm and worked with the authorities to settle the charges. Total fines and penalties agreed by PBA were
$90 million. PBA has also committed to future fee reductions of $10 million.

SEGMENTAL REVIEW - UK & REST OF WORLD

Adjusted operating profit from the Group’s UK and Rest of World asset management and life assurance
businesses, excluding Nedcor, was £4 million in the first half of 2004, lower than the £9 million earned in the
equivalent period in 2003. This result includes the adjusted operating profit from Bermuda (£5 million) and
African countries other than South Africa (£4 million), offset by an adjusted operating loss from the Group’s
operations in the UK (£5 million).

Selestia’s business continues to grow, with funds under management increasing by 65% in 2004 to £477 million
as a result of sales reaching £197 million, 49% higher than the second half of 2003.

OMAM(UK) has achieved adjusted operating profits of £3 million compared to a loss of £1 million in the
equivalent period in 2003, with average assets 7% higher and a larger proportion of high margin hedge fund
assets driving this increase, despite net external client outflows of £54 million for the period. Investment
performance remains strong with 77% of unit trust assets above the peer comparative median over three years.

GROUP RESULTS

Solid performances across each of our business units have contributed to Old Mutual's improved results during
the first haif of 2004, with adjusted operating profits before tax of £422 million increasing by 7% from £395 million
in the equivalent period of 2003.

Net fund flows remain strong on a Group basis with increased sales in the US market for both life and asset
management more than offsetting the impact of lower sales in South Africa. Following stable financial markets,
total funds under management for the Group increased steadily to £130 billion from £125 billion at the end of
2003.
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Operating and Financial Review
Group Finance Director's Review continued

Adjusted operating earnings per share improved to 6.8p per share (2003: 5.6p), representing a 21% increase
over the first half of 2003. The basic loss per share was 1.8p compared to basic earnings of 5.6p in 2003. Basic
earnings have been impacted by the fines and penalties relating to PBA and negative short term fluctuations
arising predominantly from the impact on our US Life portfolio of higher prevailing yields.

Operating profit on ordinary activities before tax, which includes goodwill amortisation and impairment,
restructuring and integration costs, fines and penalties, short term fluctuations in investment return and
adjustments for investment return for own shares held in the policyholders’ funds, similarly declined to a loss of
£10 million compared to a profit of £392 million in 2003.

ACHIEVED PROFITS

The Group’s adjusted operating profit on an achieved profits basis of £468 million increased by 9% from
£429 million in 2003. Adjusted operating profit for life assurance of £326 million was up by 14% from £287 million
in the first half of 2003, driven by increased new business in the US and improved experience variances in South
Africa. Adjusted operating earnings per share on an achieved profits basis rose from 6.0p to 7.4p. Achieved
profits equity shareholders’ funds (adjusted for own shares held in policyholder funds and to bring listed Group
subsidiaries to market value) of £4,380 million at 30 June 2004 increased by 9% from £4,015 million at
31 December 2003, benefiting from an improvement in the Rand exchange rate, an increase in the share price
of Mutual & Federal and the impact of the Nedcor rights issue. The resultant adjusted embedded value per share
increased to 114p from 105p.

CAPITAL

The Group's gearing level remains favourable, with senior debt gearing* at 30 June 2004 of 11% (15% at
31 December 2003) and total gearing*, including hybrid capital, of 17.5% (21.7% at 31 December 2003). Hybrid
capital excludes hybrid debt from banking activities and comprises the $750 million of Guaranteed Cumulative
Perpetual Preferred Securities issued during May 2003 that are reported as part of non-equity minority interests
in the financial statements. The increased stake in Mutual & Federal and our participation in the Nedcor rights
issue were funded from the Group's existing financial resources. We continue to monitor the potential

implications of all new regulations including the Financial Groups Directive.

Strong support from Old Mutual ensured that Nedcor's rights offer was a success, raising R5.2 billion and
restoring Nedcor’s capital base resulting in a capital adequacy ratio of 12.3% (10.1% at 31 December 2003).
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Operating and Financial Review
Group Finance Director's Review continued

The Group's investment in Mutual & Federal was increased to 88% as a result of the offer to acquire the
outstanding minority interests, which resulted in acceptances representing 37% of Mutual & Federal's issued
share capital. Mutual & Federal's solvency margin, being the ratio of net assets to net premiums, is anticipated to
reduce to 43% following the payment of a special dividend in November. This remains comfortably above the
minimum required to support current operations and facilitate the future growth of the business.

The solvency ratios of the Group’s major life businesses at 30 June 2004 remain weli above the minimum
statutory requirements, with South Africa’s excess assets (before regulatory asset limitations) equivalent to
2.5 times the statutory minimum, and the US business in excess of 200% RBC requirement.

In May 2004, Old Mutual plc raised a new £1.1 billion five-year syndicated revolving credit facility and at the

same time retired a number of existing bank credit facilities. The new facility was undrawn at 30 June 2004.

TAXATION

The Group's effective tax rate (based on the tax charge as a proportion of adjusted operating profit) of 25%
represents a decrease from 33% in the first half of 2003. The rate is primarily lower as a result of a lower
effective tax rate at Nedcor, which reflects the decision to report certain transactional taxes as an expense in
adjusted operating profit. The rate was also favourably affected by a reduction in Secondary Tax on Companies
(Nedcor paid a scrip dividend this year) and by an increase in the proportion of low tax income earned relative to
income taxed at the standard South African tax rate.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRS)

We are continuing to make good progress towards the transition to IFRS across the Group by 1 January 2005.
Our IFRS project, established in 2002, has now started focusing on the systems, process and reporting changes
required for compliance with IFRS. The International Financial Reporting Standards that will have the most
impact on the Group, in common with our peers, are those that deat with financial instruments and insurance and
investment contracts. We are concerned by the uncertainty in accounting for financial instruments resulting from
continued changes by the International Accounting Standards Board to IAS 39 and the fact that the European
Commission is yet to endorse the standard. Until IAS 39 is endorsed, there remains considerable uncertainty as
to the impact and timing of implementation.
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Operating and rinancial Review
Group Finance Director’'s Review continued

DIVIDEND

The Board has declared an interim dividend of 1.75p per share (2003: 1.7p), which will be paid on 30 November
2004 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 22 October 2004. The equivalent of this
dividend in the local currencies of South Africa, Malawi, Namibia and Zimbabwe will be determined by the
Company on 7 October 2004 and will be announced to the markets on 8 October 2004. The Company’s shares
will trade ex-dividend from the opening of business on 18 October 2004 on the JSE Securities Exchange South
Africa and the Malawi, Namibian and Zimbabwe Stock Exchanges, and from the opening of business on
20 October 2004 on the London Stock Exchange. The last dates to trade cum-dividend will therefore be
15 QOctober 2004 in South Africa, Malawi, Namibia and Zimbabwe and 19 October 2004 in London.

No dematerialisation or rematerialisation of shares within the South African STRATE system may take place
between 18 October 2004 and 22 October 2004 (both dates inclusive).

Julian V F Roberts
Group Finance Director
10 August 2004

* Senior debt gearing is defined as senior debt over senior debt plus adjusted embedded value on an achieved profits basis. Senior debt
excludes debt from banking activities and is net of cash and short term investments which are immediately available to repay debt. Total
gearing is similarly based but includes hybrid capital instruments within debt.
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Independent Review Report by KPMG Audit Plc to Old Mutual plc

Introduction

We have been engaged by the Company to review the financial information set out on pages 14 to 49 and the
supplementary financial information set out on pages 50 to 64 prepared on an achieved profits basis, and we
have read the other information contained in the interim report and considered whether it contains any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial information.

This report is made solely to the Company in accordance with the terms of our engagement to assist the
Company in meeting the requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority. Our review has
been undertaken so that we rﬁight state to the Company those matters we are required to state to it in this report
and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the Company for our review work, for this report, or for the conclusions we have reached.

Directors' responsibilities

The interim report, including the financial information contained therein, is the responsibility of, and has been
approved by, the directors. The directors are responsible for preparing the interim report in accordance with the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority which require that the accounting policies and presentation
applied to the interim figures should be consistent with those applied in preparing the preceding annual accounts
except where they are to be changed in the next annual accounts in which case any changes, and the reasons
for them, are to be disclosed.

Review work performed

We conducted our review in accordance with guidance contained in Bulletin 1999/4: Review of interim financial
information issued by the Auditing Practices Board for use in the United Kingdom. A review consists principally
of making enquiries of management and applying analytical procedures to the financial information and
underlying financial data and, based thereon, assessing whether the accounting policies and presentation have
been consistently applied unless otherwise disclosed. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit
performed in accordance with United Kingdom Auditing Standards and therefore provides a lower level of
assurance than an audit. Accordingly we do not express an audit opinion on the financial information.

Review conclusion

On the basis of our review we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial
information as presented for the six months ended 30 June 2004.

KPMG Audit Plc

Chartered Accountants
London
10 August 2004
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

6 months to 6 months to YearE(n; 6 months to 6 months to Yea??;
Vome  wom o s aoe ams o hoos
Notes (Restated)*** (R d)y~
Operating income
Life assurance — gross written premiums 2,425 2,193 4,577 29,481 28,382 56,520
General insurance - gross written premiums 296 233 526 3,592 3,010 6,486
Asset management — total revenue 308 291 684 3,743 3,768 8,448
Banking - total operating income 552 568 1,107 6,705 7,348 13,671
Profit and loss account
South Africa
Technical result 148 123 253 1,801 1,592 3,124
Long term investment return 84 83 178 1,023 1,075 2,198
Life assurance S{b)iii) 232 2086 431 2,824 2,667 5,322
Asset management 5(c) 14 18 53 156 233 656
Banking 5(d)(i) 33 74 (10) 401 959 (118)
General insurance 5(e) 47 28 73 569 368 809
326 326 547 3,950 4,227 6,769
United States
Life assurance 5(b)(ii) 43 39 86 522 505 1,062
Asset management 5(c) 44 37 81 544 479 1,000
87 76 167 1,066 984 2,062
United Kingdom & Rest of World
Life assurance 5(b)iii) 5 8 24 62 104 297
Asset management 5(c) 10 1 4) 121 14 (48)
Banking 5(d)(i) 22 27 4 263 349 48
37 36 24 446 467 297
450 438 738 5,462 5,678 9,128
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) 5() (8) 13) (40) (97) (168) (494)
Debt service costs (20) (30) (48) (243) (388) (593)
Adjusted operating profit * 5(a) 422 395 650 5,122 5122 8,041
Goodwill amortisation and impairment 10 (66) 47) (206) (802) (608) (2,544)
Loss on disposal / write-down of investment in Dimension
Data Holdings plc - (11 (5) - (136) (60)
Restructuring and integration costs 5(d)i) (8) (10) (32) (94) (134) (394)
Change in credit provisioning methodology 5(d)ii) - (74) (87) - (963) (1,074)
Fines and penalties 7 (49) - - (596) - -
Short term fluctuations in investment return 6 (287) 125 143 (3,486) 1,618 1,767
Investment return adjustment for own shares held in
policyholders' funds 5(b)(iv) (22) 14 12 (266) 181 148
Operating (loss) / profit on ordinary activities before
tax (10) 392 475 (122) 5,080 5,884
Non-operating items 9(b) 12 (13) (32) 149 (168) (404)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2 379 443 27 4,912 5,480
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 8 (22) (191) (241) (267) (2,472) (2,976)
(Loss) / profit on ordinary activities after tax (20) 188 202 (240) 2,440 2,504
Minority interests — equity 11(a) (13) 15 117 (158) 194 1,445
Minority interests — non-equity (29) (14) (46) (352) (181) (568)
(Loss) / profit for the financial period (62) 189 273 (750) 2,453 3,381
Dividends paid and proposed 4 (60) (60) (166) (678) (741) (2,008)
Retained (loss) / profit for the financial period (122) 129 107 (1,428) 1,712 1,375
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

£m Ri
6 monthsto 6 months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year:g
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Notes (Restated)*** (Restated)™
The adjusted operating profit on an after-tax and minority
interest basis is determined as follows:
Adjusted operating profit 422 395 650 5,122 5,122 8,041
Tax on adjusted operating profit 8 (1086) (129) (224) (1,290) (1,673) (2,763)
316 266 426 3,832 3,449 5,278
Minority interests - equity 11(a) (31) (42) (7) (379) (538) (96)
— non-equity (29) (14) (46) (352) (181) (568)
Adjusted operating profit after tax and minority interests 256 210 373 3,101 2,730 4,614
Earnings per share p c
Adjusted operating earnings per share” 3 6.8 56 10.0 82.7 73.4 123.8
Basic (loss) / earnings per share 3 (1.8) 5.6 8.0 (21.9) 721 99.1
Diluted (loss) / earnings per share 3 (1.8) 5.5 8.0 (21.9) 71.0 99.1
Dividend per share 4 1.75 1.70 4.8 19.8** 18.5 56.0
Adjusted weighted average number of shares - millions 3,745 3,717 3,727 3,745 3,717 3,727
Weighted average number of shares ~ millions 3,429 3,401 3,411 3,429 3,401 3,411

*k

16 .

Adjusted operating profit represents the directors' view of the underlying performance of the Group. For life assurance and general
insurance businesses, adjusted operating profit is based on a long term investment return and includes investment return on own shares
held in policyholders' funds. For banking business, adjusted operating profit excludes the loss on disposal / write down of investment in
Dimension Data Holdings plc, restructuring and integration costs and the transitional impact of the change in credit provisioning
methodology. For all businesses, adjusted operating profit excludes goodwill amortisation and impairment and fines and penalties.

Adjusted operating earnings per share is similarly based, but is stated after tax and minority interests, with the calculation of the weighted
average number of shares including own shares held in policyholders' funds.

The segmentai analysis within the consolidated profit and loss account has been prepared after eliminating inter-segment results. Details
of the total segmental results are set out in note 5.

Indicative only — the actual amount of the dividend per share in Rand will be determined by reference to the exchange rate prevailing on
7 October 2004 and announced by the Company on 8 October 2004.

Comparative figures for the six months ended 30 June 2003 have been restated to reflect the adoption of Urgent issues Taskforce
Abstracts 37 "Purchases and Sales of Own shares" and 38 "Accounting for ESOP Trusts" (UITF38). Comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2003 have been restated to reflect the adoption of UITF38. Details of the changes are set out in notes 1, 3, 4 and
5(b)(iv).
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Consolidated Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses

for the six months ended 30 June 2004

£m Rm
6 months to & months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year to
30 June 30June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Notes (Restated) (Restated) (Restated) {Restated)
(Loss) / profit for the financial period (62) 189 273 (750) 2,453 3,381
Foreign exchange movements 98 138 176 (591) (1,918) (2,574)
Total recognised gains and losses for the period 36 328 449 (1,341) 535 807
Prior period adjustment 1 109 1,301
Total recognised gains and losses since last
annual report _____1_{.5_ 40)
HH 4 M H H '
Reconciliation of Movements in Consolidated Equity Shareholders' Funds
for the six months ended 30 June 2004
£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Notes (Restated) (Restated) (R d) (Restated)
Total recognised gains and losses for the period 36 _328 449 (1,341) 535 807
Dividends paid and proposed 4 {60) (60) (166) (678) (741) (2,006)
(24) 268 283 (2,019) (206) (1,199)
Issue of new capital _ - 37 37 - 479 457
Net sale of shares held in ESOP Trusts 3 2 6 31 21 76
Shares issued under employee incentive schemes 8 - 4 97 - 49
Net (decrease) / increase to equity shareholders' funds (13) 307 330 {1,891) 294 (617)
Equity shareholders' funds at the beginning of the period
(originally £2,863 million (R34,175 million) befare prior
year adjustment of £109 million (R1,301 million)) 2,754 2,424 2,424 32,874 33,491 33,491
Equity shareholders' funds at the end of the period 2,741 2,731 2,754 30,983 33,785 32,874
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

at 30 June 2004
£m Rm
At At Al At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Notes (Restated)  (Restated) (Restated) _ (Restated)
Intangible assets
Goodwill 10 1,229 1,264 1,552 13,892 15,088 19,198
Insurance and other assets
investments 24,582 23,433 21,415 277,868 279,712 264,886
Assets held to cover linked liabilities 6,141 5,860 4,716 69,416 69,049 ~ 58,333
5(g) 30,723 29,293 26,131 347,284 349,661 323,219
Reinsurers’ share of technical provisions 384 374 385 4,341 4,465 4,762
Debtors 665 702 1,177 7,517 8,380 14,557
Other assets 659 607 778 7,449 7,244 9,628
Cash at bank and in hand 540 895 614 6,104 8,296 7,595
Prepayments and accrued income 868 738 683 9,812 8,809 8,448
Total insurance and other assets 33,839 32,409 29,768 382,507 386,855 368,209
Banking assets
Cash and balances at central banks 1,045 1,025 760 11,812 12,235 9,401
Treasury bills and other eligible bills 845 888 1,566 9,552 10,600 19,370
Loans and advances to banks 1,178 2,092 1,467 13,316 24,972 18,146
Loans and advances to customers 16,263 15,136 14,679 183,832 180,674 181,567
Debt securities 1,493 1,420 886 16,876 16,952 10,859
Equity securities 342 317 411 3,866 3,784 5,084
Interest in associated undertakings 134 144 132 1,515 1,719 1,633
Other assets 2,684 2,758 1,858 30,339 32,923 22,981
Prepayments and accrued income 323 262 539 3,651 3,126 6,667
Total banking assets 24,307 24,042 22,298 274,759 286,985 275,808
Total assets 59,375 57,715 53,618 671,158 688,928 663,215
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Consolidated Balance Sheet continued
at 30 June 2004

£m Rm
At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Notes {Restated) (R d) (Restated) (Restated)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 384 384 383 4,341 4,584 4,737
Share premium account 595 587 584 6,726 7.007 7,224
Merger reserve 184 184 184 2,080 2,196 2,276
Profit and loss account 1,979 2,000 1,981 21,744 22,995 23,456
Reserve in respect of own shares held in policyholders’
funds (401) (401) (401) (3,908) (3,908) (3.908)
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,741 2,754 2,731 30,983 32,874 33,785
Minority interests
Equity 11(2) 815 652 795 9,213 7,783 9,834
Non-equity 11(0) 666 658 806 7,528 7,854 7,402
1,481 1,310 1,401 16,741 15,637 17,326
Subordinated liabilities - 15 17 - 179 210
Insurance and other liabilities
Technical provisions 22,389 21,157 19,381 253,079 252,545 239,727
Technical provisions for linked liabilities 6,141 5,860 4716 69,416 69,949 58,333
Provisions for other risks and charges 485 551 575 5,482 6,576 7,112
Creditors 2,506 2,287 2,607 28,327 27,292 32,250
Amounts owed to credit institutions 12 359 377 497 4,063 4,501 6,147
Convertible loan stock 13(a) 351 357 385 3,968 4,261 4,762
Accruals and deferred income 114 135 140 1,289 1,611 1,732
Total insurance and other liabilities 32,345 30,724 28,301 365,624 366,735 350,063
Banking liabilities
Deposits by banks 1,698 4,381 3,348 19,194 52,295 41,412
Customer accounts 15,773 13,976 14,057 178,293 166,827 173,874
Debt securities in issue 1,615 468 1,111 18,255 5,586 13,742
Other liabilities 3,030 3,200 1,847 34,250 38,199 24,083
Provision for liabilities and charges 29 229 103 328 2,732 1,274
Subordinated liabilities 654 648 588 7,393 7,745 7,273
Convertible loan stock 13(b) 9 10 14 97 119 173
Total banking liabilities 22,808 22,912 21,168 257,810 273,503 261,831
Total liabilities 59,375 57,715 53,618 671,158 688,928 663,215
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

for the six months ended 30 June 2004

£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to 8 months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Net cash (outfiow) / inflow from operating activities (117) (631) 237 (1,422) (8,164) 2,925
Net cash outflow from returns on investments and servicing of
finance (including dividends paid to minority interests) (50) (61) (128) (608) (790) (1,580)
Total tax paid (137) (90) (174) (1,665) (1,165) (2,149)
Net cash inflow from capital expenditure and financial
investment 58 64 227 705 829 2,804
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from acquisitions and disposals (66) (23) 83 (802) (298) 1,025
Equity dividends paid (115) (114) (178) (1,398) (1,476) (2,198)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 124 165 231 1,507 2,136 2,851
Net cash (outfiow) / inflow excluding long term business (303) (690) 298 (3,683) (8,928) 3,678
Cash flows relating to insurance and other activities were
invested as follows:
(Decrease) / increase in cash holdings (153) 102 36 (1,859) 1,320 445
{Decrease) / increase in net portfolio investments (115) (233) 616 (1,399) (3,016) 7,605
(268) (131) 652 (3,258) (1,696) 8,050
Cash flows relating to banking activities were invested as
follows:
Decrease in cash and balances at central banks (35) {559) (354) (425) (7,232) (4,372)
Net cash (outflow} / inflow excluding long term business (303) (690) 298 (3,769) (8,928) 3,678
Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash flow
Operating profit / (loss) from insurance and other activities 47) 384 690 (571) 4978 8,521
Operating profit / (loss) from banking activities (5) ) (144) (61) (79) (1,778)
Operating (loss) / profit on ordinary activities before tax (52) 378 546 (632) 4,899 6,743
Unrealised investment (gains) / losses 150 (185) (161) 1,823 (2,395) (1,988)
Other insurance and other activities non cash flow items 146 (246) 387 1,775 (3,185) 4,779
Other banking non cash flow items (361) (578) (535) (4,388) (7,483) (6,609)
Net cash (outflow) / inflow from operating activities (117) (631) 237 (1,422) (8,164) 2,925

The cash flows presented in this statement exclude all cash flows relating to policyholders' funds for the long term business.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

1 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

The results for the six months to 30 June 2004 and the position at that date have been prepared using accounting policies
consistent with those used in the Group 2003 Annual Report except for:

Q the adoption of Urgent Issues Task Force (UITF) Abstract 38 "Accounting for ESOP Trusts”, the effects of which are
described below.

O the adoption of the Statement of Recommended Practice on "Accounting for Insurance Business" issued by the
Association of British Insurers in November 2003 ("ABI SORP") (previously December 1998 version), the
implementation of which does not impact the interim financial statements.

The results of the Group's banking operations have been prepared in accordance with the British Bankers' Association
Statements of Recommended Practice on Advances (1997), Securities (1990), Derivatives (2001), Contingent Liabilities and
Commitments (1996) and Segmental Reporting (1993).

Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of UITF Abstract 38 "Accounting for ESOP Trusts". This
abstract requires that the Group's holdings in own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Trusts (ESOPs) be accounted
for as a deduction from shareholders’ funds (profit and loss account) rather than recorded as an asset. In addition, purchases
and sales of such own shares should be shown as changes in shareholders’ funds such that no profit or loss is recognised. In
the majority of cases, the ESOP Trusts have waived their rights to dividends such that there is no impact on operating profit
after tax. The reductions in equity shareholders' funds at 30 June 2004, 31 December 2003 and 30 June 2003 were £113
million (R1,270 million), £109 million (R1,301 million) and £110 million (R1,356 million) respectively, representing the original
cost of these shares.

in the second half of 2003 the Group adopted UITF Abstract 37 "Purchases and Sales of Own Shares". As a result, shares of
the Company held by the Group's long term policyholders’ funds were accounted for as a deduction from equity rather than
as an asset and the investment return earned and dividends paid on these shares were no longer shown in the profit and loss
account. The 30 June 2003 comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of this Abstract. For the six
months ended 30 June 2003, operating profit after tax increased by £14 million (R181 million) and dividends paid have been
restated to exclude dividends in respect of own shares, resulting in an overall increase in retained profit of £18 million (R232
million). Basic earnings per share have been restated to reflect a reduction in the weighted average number of shares in
issue of 316 million. At 30 June 2003, the reduction in equity shareholders' funds was £267 million (R3,303 million). Full
details of the changes are set out in notes 3, 4 and 5(b)(iv).

The results for the six months ended 30 June 2004 and 2003 are unaudited, but have been reviewed by the auditors whose
report is presented on page 13. The auditors have reported on the statutory accounts for the year ended 31 December 2003
and the accounts have been delivered to the Registrar of Companies. The auditors’ report in respect of the year ended 31

December 2003 was ungualified and did not contain a statement under section 237 (2) or (3) of the UK Companies Act 1985.

These financial statements do not constitute statutory accounts as described in section 240 of the UK Companies Act 1985.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

2 FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The information contained in these financial statements is expressed in both Sterling and South African Rand. This is in order
to meet both the legal requirements of the UK Companies Act 1985 and to provide the users of the accounts in South Africa
with illustrative information.

The principal exchange rates used to translate the operating results, assets and liabilities of key foreign business segments
to Sterling are:

Rand uss

6 months to 8 months to Year to 6 months to & months to Year to

30 June 30June 31 December 30 June 30June 31 December

2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

Profit and loss account (average rate) 12.1544 129459 12.3487 1.8222 1.6110 1.6354
Balance sheet (closing rate) 11.3037  12.3692 11.9367 1.8144 1.6528 1.7833

3 EARNINGS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated based upon the profit after tax attributable to equity shareholders.

The directors’ view is that adjusted operating earnings per share derived from adjusted operating profit or loss after tax and
minority interests provides a better indication of the underlying performance of the Group. For life assurance and general
insurance businesses, adjusted operating profit is based on a long term investment return and includes investment return on
own shares held in policyholders' funds. For banking business, adjusted operating profit excludes the loss on disposal / write
down of investment in Dimension Data Holdings ple, restructuring and integration costs and the transitional impact of the
change in credit provisioning methodology. For all businesses, adjusted operating profit excludes goodwill amortisation and
impairment and fines and penalties.

Adjusted operating earnings per shares is similarly based, but is stated after tax and minority interests, with the calculation of
the weighted average number of shares including own shares held in policyholders' funds.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

3 EARNINGS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE continved

A table reconciling operating profit on ordinary activities after tax and minority interests to adjusted operating profit after tax
and minority interests is set out below.

£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year to
30 June 30 June 3% December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Notes (Restated) (Restated)
(Loss) / profit on ordinary activities after tax and
minority interests (62) 189 273 (750) 2,453 3,381
Goodwill amortisation and impairment net of minority
interests 47 40 128 571 518 1,581
Loss on disposal / write-down of investment in Dimension
Data Holdings plc net of minority interests - 6 3 - 78 30
Restructuring and integration costs net of tax and
minority interests 5(d)(ii) 3 5 13 34 69 160
Change in credit provisioning methodology net of tax and
minority interests S(d)iii) - 24 31 - 311 376
Fines and penalties net of tax 7 Y| - - 499 - -
Short term fluctuations in investment returns net of tax
and minority interests 211 (55) (95) 2,563 (712) (1,170)
Investment return adjustment for own shares held in
policyholders' funds 5(b)(iv) 22 (14) (12) 266 (181) (148)
Non-operating items net of tax and minority interests 9 (6) 15 32 (82) 194 404
Adjusted operating profit after tax and minority
interests 256 210 373 3,101 2,730 4,614
p [
Basic (loss) / earnings per share (1.8) 5.6 8.0 (21.9) 721 99.1
Impact of exclusion of own shares held in policyholders’
funds on weighted average number of shares 0.1 (0.5) 0.7) 1.9 6.1) (8.4)
(1.7) 5.1 7.3 (20.0) 66.0 90.7
Goodwill amortisation and impairment net of minority
interests 1.3 1.1 3.4 15.2 13.9 424
Loss on disposal / write-down of investment in Dimension
Data Holdings plc net of minority interests - 0.2 0.1 - 21 0.8
Restructuring and integration costs net of tax and
minority interests 0.1 0.1 0.3 0.9 1.9 43
Change in credit provisioning methodology net of tax and
minority interests - 0.6 0.8 - 8.4 10.1
Fines and penalties net of tax 1.1 - - 13.3 - -
Short term fluctuations in investment returns net of tax
and minority interests 5.6 (1.5) (2.5) 68.4 (19.2) (31.3)
Investment return adjustment for own shares held in
policyholders' funds 0.6 (0.4) (0.3) 71 (4.9) (4.0)
Non-operating items net of tax and minority interests (0.2) 0.4 0.9 (2.2) 52 10.8
Adjusted operating earnings per share after tax and
minority interests 6.8 5.6 10.0 82.7 73.4 123.8

23 OLD MUTUAL PLC INTERIM RESULTS 2004 FINAL DOC




Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

3 EARNINGS AND EARNINGS PER SHARE continued

Basic loss per share is calculated by reference to the loss on ordinary activities after tax and minority interests of £62 million
(R750 million) for the six months ended 30 June 2004 (June 2003 (restated): profit of £189 million (R2,453 million);
December 2003: profit of £273 million (R3,381 million)) and a weighted average number of shares in issue of 3,429 million
(June 2003 (restated): 3,401 million; December 2003: 3,411 million). The weighted average number of shares is calculated
as follows;

millions
At At At
30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003
{Restated)

Total weighted average number of shares in issue 3,840 3,814 3,824
Shares held in ESOP Trusts (95) (97) (97)
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 3,745 3,717 3,727
Shares held in policyholders' funds (318) (318) (318)
Weighted average number of shares 3,429 3,401 3,411

In accordance with UITF Abstract 37 "Purchases and Sales of Own Shares", shares in the Company held in policyholders’
funds are not included in the weighted average number of shares used in basic earnings per share calculations. No
adjustment is required for UITF Abstract 38 "Accounting for ESOP Trusts" as the shares in the Company held in ESOP
Trusts have already been excluded from the calculation as, in the majority of cases, the ESOP Trusts have waived their
rights to dividends on these shares.

The diluted earnings per share calculation reflects the impact of the potential issue of shares in respect of ESOP Trusts and
the US Dollar Guaranteed Convertible Bond.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

4 DIVIDEND
£m Rm
6 months to 8 months to Year to 6 months to € months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

(Restated) ___{Restaleg)

2004 interim dividend proposed: 1.75p (19.8¢c*) 60 - - 678 - -
2003 final dividend paid: 3.1p (36.50) - - 106 . - 1268
2003 interim dividend paid: 1.7p (19.5¢) - 60 60 - 741 741
60 60 166 678 741 2,006

Provision has been made for an interim dividend of 1.75p (19.8¢*} per share calculated using the number of shares in issue
at 30 June 2004 of 3,849 million less 95 million shares in Employee Share Ownership Plans and 316 million shares held in
policyholders' funds of Group companies. The dividend will be paid on 30 November 2004 to all shareholders on the register
at the close of business on 17 October 2004, being the record date for the dividend.

As a consequence of the exchange control arrangements in place in South Africa and other relevant African territories,
dividends to shareholders on the branch registers in those countries (or in the case of Namibia, the Namibian section of the
principal register) are settled through Dividend Access Trusts established for that purpose.

As described in note 1, in accordance with UITF Abstract 37 ‘Purchases and Sales of Own Shares”, dividends paid have
been restated to exclude dividends on shares in the Company held in policyholders’ funds.

* Indicative only - the actual amount of the dividend per share in Rand will be determined by reference to the exchange rate prevailing on
7 October 2004 and announced by the Company on 8 October 2004.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS
: . £m Rm
5(a) Summary of operating profit on South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
ordinary activities before tax Notes Africa States  of Word Total Africa States __ of World Total
6 months to 30 June 2004
Life assurance S(b)(iii)
Total segmental result 234 40 4 278 2,848 486 50 3,384
Inter-segment result (2) 3 1 2 (24) 36 12 24
Result from third parties 232 43 5 280 2,824 522 62 3,408
Asset management 5(c)
Total segmental result 21 47 8 76 241 580 97 918
Inter-segment result (7) (3) 2 (8) (85) (36) 24 (97)
Result from third parties 14 44 10 68 156 544 121 821
Banking 5(9)()
Total segmental result 27 - 22 49 328 - 263 591
Inter-segment result 8 - - 6 73 . - 73
Result from third parties 33 - 22 55 401 - 263 664
General insurance business 5(e) 47 - - 47 569 - - 569
Other shareholders' income / (expenses) 5(f) 1 - (9) (8) 12 - (109) 97)
Debt service costs (2) - (18) (20) (24) - (219) (243)
Adjusted operating profit 325 87 10 422 3,938 1,066 118 5,122
Goodwill amortisation and impairment 10 (39) (26) 1) (66) (474) (316) (12) (802)
Restructuring and integration costs 5(d)(ii) (8) - - (8} (94) - - (94)
Fines and penalties 7 - (49) - (49) - (596) - (596)
Short term fluctuations in investment return 3 (85) (201) (1) (287)  (1,032) (2,443) (11) (3,486)
Investment return adjustment for own shares held in
policyholders’ funds 5(b)iv) (22) - - (22) (266) - - (266)
Operating (loss) / profit on ordinary activities
before tax 171 (189) 8 (10) 2,072 (2,289) 95 (122)
Analysed as:
Life assurance 143 (160) 4 (13) 1,744  (1,945) 51 (150)
Asset management 14 (29) 9 (6) 156 (344) 108 (79)
Banking (13) - 22 9 (155) - 263 108
General insurance business 28 - - 28 339 - - 339
Other shareholders' income / (expenses) 1 - (9) (8) 12 - (109) (97)
Debt service costs 2) - (18) (20 (24) - (219)  (243)
Operating (loss) / profit on ordinary activities
before tax 171 (189) 8 (10) 2,072 (2,289) 95 (122)
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

. . £m Rm
5(a) Summary of operating profit on South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
ordinary activities before tax continued Notes Africa States o World Total Africa Stales __of Word Tolal
6 months to 30 June 2003 (restated)
Life assurance 5(b)(ii) 206 39 8 253 2,667 505 104 3,276
Asset management 5(c) 18 37 1 56 233 479 14 726
Banking 5(d)i) 74 - 27 101 859 - 349 1,308
General insurance business S(e) 28 - - 28 368 - - 368
Other shareholders' income / (expenses) 5(f) 2 - (15) (13) 26 - (194) (168)
Debt service costs - - (30) (30) - - (388) (388)
Adjusted operating profit 328 76 9) 395 4,253 984 (115) 5,122
Goodwill amortisation 10 (13) 29) (5) (CY)] (187) (376) (65) (608)
Write-down of investment in Dimension Data
Holdings plc (11) - - (11) (136) - - (136)
Restructuring and integration costs ()i (10) - - (10) (134) - - (134)
Change in credit provisioning methodology S(d)ii) (74) - - (74) (963) (963)
Short term fluctuations in investment return 6 (168) 303 (10) 125 (2,175) 3,922 (129) 1,618
Investment return adjustment for own shares held in
policyholders' funds 5(b)(iv) 14 - - 14 181 - - 181
Operating profit / (loss) on ordinary activities
before tax &6 350 (24) 392 859 4,520 {309) 5,080
Analysed as:
Life assurance 72 340 8 420 932 4,401 104 5,437
Asset management 18 10 (4) 24 233 129 (51) 311
Banking (33) - 27 (6) (428) - 349 (79)
General insurance business 7 - - 7 96 - - 96
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) 2 - (25) (23) 26 - (323) (297)
Debt service costs - - (30) (30) - - (388) (388)
Operating profit / (loss) on ordinary activities
before tax . 66 350 (24) 392 859 4,530 (309) 5,080
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Notes to the Financial Statemenfts continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

A . £m Rm
5(a) Summary of operating profit on South  United UK & Rest South  United UK & Rest
ordinary activities before tax continued Notes Africa States  of World Total Africa Slates __ of World Total
Year to 31 December 2003
Life assurance S(b)(i) 431 86 24 541 5,322 1,062 207 - 6,681
Asset management 5(c) 53 81 (4) 130 656 1,000 (48) 1,608
Banking 5(d)(i) (10) - 4 (6) {118) - 48 (70)
General insurance business 5(e) 73 - - 73 809 - - 909
Other shareholders’ income / (expenses) 5(7) - - (40) (40) - - (494)  (494)
Debt service costs (4) - (44) (48) (49) - (544)  (593)
Adjusted operating profit 543 167 (60) 650 6,720 2,062 (741) 8,041
Goodwill amortisation and impairment 10 (140) (57) (9) (206) (1,729) (703) . (112) (2,544)
Loss on disposal of investment in Dimension Data
Holdings pic (5) - - (5) (60} - - (60)
Restructuring and integration costs 5(d)(ii) (32) - - (32) (394) . - (394)
Change in credit provisioning methodology 5(d)(iil) (87) - - (87) (1,074) - - (1,074)
Short term fluctuations in investment return 8 (37) 196 (16) 143 (457) 2,420 (196) 1,767
Investment return adjustment for own shares held in
policyholders’ funds 5(b)(iv) 12 - - 12 148 - - 148
Operating profit / (loss) on ordinary activities
before tax 254 306 (85) 475 3,154 3,779 (1,049) 5884
Analysed as:
Life assurance 402 278 12 692 4964 3,433 149 8,546
Asset management 53 28 (13) 68 656 346 (159) 843
Banking (272) - 4 (268) (3,350) - 48 (3,302)
General insurance business 75 - - 75 933 - - 933
Other shareholders' income / (expenses) - - 44) (44) - - (543) (543)
Debt service costs (4) - (44) (48) (49) - (544)  (593)
Operating profit / (loss) on ordinary activities
before tax 254 306 (85) 475 3,154 3,779 (1,049) 5,884
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
5(b) Life assurance Affica States __ of World Total Africa States _of World Total
(i) Gross premiums written
6 months to 30 June 2004
Individual business
Single 295 1,131 58 1,484 3,580 13,747 711 18,038
Recurring 449 94 26 569 5,460 1,143 313 6,916
744 1,225 84 2,053 9,040 14,890 1,024 24,954
Group business
Single 210 - 7 217 2,547 - 92 2,639
Recurring 147 - 8 155 1,790 - 98 1,888
357 - 15 372 4,337 - 190 4,527
1,101 1,225 99 2,425 13,377 14,890 1,214 29,481
6 months to 30 June 2003
individual business
Single 282 873 41 1,196 3,644 11,302 531 15,477
Recurring 391 91 26 508 5,062 1,178 337 6,577
673 964 67 1,704 8,706 12,480 868 22,054
Group business
Single 325 - 8 333 4,204 - 104 4,308
Recurring 147 4 5 156 1,903 52 65 2,020
472 4 13 489 8,107 52 169 6,328
1,145 968 80 2,193 14,813 12,532 1,037 28,382
Year to 31 December 2003
Individual business
Single 563 1,815 87 2,465 6,952 22,413 1,074 30,439

Recurring 833 186 51 1,070 10,286 2,297 630 13,213
' 1,386 2,001 138 3,635 17,238 24,710 1,704 43,652

Group business

Single 715 - 20 735 8,829 - 247 9,076
Recurring 294 - 13 307 3,631 - 161 3,792
1,009 - 33 1,042 12,460 - 408 12,868

2,405 2,001 171 4577 296898 24710 2,112 56,520
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
. South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
5(b) Life assurance continued Africa States __of World Total Africa States  of World Total
(ii) Gross new business premiums written
6 months to 30 June 2004
Individual business
Single 295 1,131 58 1,484 3,580 13,747 711 18,038
Recurring 70 25 4 99 848 304 46 1,198
365 1,156 62 1,583 4,428 14,051 757 19,236
Group business
Single 210 - 7 217 2,547 - 92 2,639
Recurring 8 - 1 9 93 - 17 110
218 - 8 226 2,640 - 109 2,749
Total gross new business premiums written 583 1,156 70 1,809 7,068 14,051 866 21,985
Annual premium equivalent 129 138 12 279 1,554 1,679 143 3,376
Annual premium equivalent is defined as one tenth of single premiums plus recurring premiums.
6 months to 30 June 2003
Individual business
Single 282 873 41 1,196 3,644 11,302 531 15,477
Recurring 69 41 4 114 888 531 52 1,471
351 914 45 1,310 4,532 11,833 583 16,948
Group business
Single 325 - 8 333 4,204 - 104 4,308
Recurring 9 - 2 11 120 - 26 146
334 - 10 344 4,324 - 130 4,454
Total gross new business premiums written 685 914 55 1,654 8,856 11,833 713 21,402
Annual premium equivalent 139 128 11 278 1,793 1,661 142 3,596
Year to 31 December 2003
Individual business
Single 563 1,815 87 2,465 6,952 22,413 1,074 30,439
Recurring 158 76 7 241 1,951 939 86 2,976
721 1,891 94 2706 8,903 23,352 1,160 33,415
Group business
Single 715 - 20 735 8,829 - 247 9,076
Recurring 18 - 3 21 222 - 37 259
733 - 23 756 9,051 - 284 9,335
Total gross new business premiums written 1,454 1,891 117 3,462 17,954 23,352 1,444 42,750
Annual premium equivaient 304 258 21 583 3,751 3,180 255 7,186
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
. South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest

5(b) Life assurance continued Africa States of World Total Africa States _ of World Tolal
(iii) Life assurance adjusted operating profit
6 months to 30 June 2004
Individual business 103 40 1 144 1,252 436 15 1,753
Group business 47 - 1 48 573 - 14 587
Technical result 150 40 2 192 1,825 486 29 2,340
Long term investment return 84 - 2 86 1,023 - 21 1,044
Total segmental result 234 40 4 278 2,848 486 50 3,384
Inter-segment result 2) 3 1 2 (24) 36 12 24
Adjusted operating profit 232 43 5 280 2,824 522 62 3,408

Total segmental result includes administration fees paid to / received from other Group life companies and investment
management fees paid to the Group's asset management companies in respect of shareholders’ funds.

6 months to 30 June 2003

Individual business 89 39 6 134 1,152 505 78 1,735
Group business 34 - - 34 440 - - 440
Technical result 123 32 6 168 1,582 505 78 2,175
Long term investment return 83 - 2 85 1,075 - 26 1,101
Adjusted operating profit 208 39 8 253 2,667 505 104 3,276

Year to 31 December 2003

Individual business 183 86 17 286 2,260 1,062 210 3,532
Group business 70 - 2 72 864 - 25 889
Technical result 253 86 19 358 3,124 1,062 235 4,421
Long term investment return 178 - 5 183 2,198 - 62 2,260
Adjusted operating profit 431 86 24 541 5,322 1,062 297 6,681
£m Rm

6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year to

30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December

2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

(iv) Investment return adjustment for own shares held in
policyholders' funds

Dividend income 9 9 14 109 117 173
Unrealised gains / (losses) on investment in own shares 13 (23) (26) 157 (298) (321)
Net investment gains / (losses) 22 (14) (12) 266 (181) (148)

In accordance with UITF 37 "Sales and purchases of Own Shares", the net investment return on shares in the Company held
by policyholders' funds and shown above are not included within statutory operating profit. However, as described in note 3
above, the investment return for own shares held in policyholders' funds is included within the Group's adjusted operating
profit.
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
Adjusted Adjusted
operating operating
5(c)(i) Asset management Revenue  Expenses profit Revenue  Expenses profit
6 months to 30 June 2004
South Africa
Fund management
Old Mutual Asset Managers 20 (12) 8 243 (147) 96
Old Mutual Unit Trusts 10 (8) 2 122 (105) 17
Other 8 (7) 1 97 (82) 15
Other financial services 22 (14) 8 267 (178) 89
. 60 (41) 19 729 (512) 217
Nedcor Unit Trusts and Portfolio Management 21 (19) 2 255 (231) 24
81 (60) 21 984 (743) 241
US asset management 177 {130) 47 2,152 {1,572) 580
UK & Rest of World
Fund management 24 (16) 8 292 (194) 98
Selestia investment platform 3 (6) 3) 36 (73) (37)
Other financial services 7 (12) (5) 85 (146) (61)
Nedcoer Unit Trusts and Portfolio Management 27 (19) 8 328 (231) 97
’ 61 (53) 8 741 (644) 97
Total segmental result 319 (243) 76 3,877 (2,959) 918
inter-segment result
South Africa (8) 1 (7) (97) 12 (85)
US asset management ) (3) - 3 (36) - (36)
UK & Rest of World - 2 2 - 24 24
(11) 3 (8) (133) 36 97)
Adjusted operating profit
South Africa 73 (59) 14 887 (731) 156
US asset management 174 {130) 44 2,116 (1,572) 544
UK & Rest of World 61 (51) 10 741 (620) 121
308 (240) 68 3,744 {(2,923) 821

Total segmental result includes £6m (R73 million) in relation to interest received on short-term funding provided to the
Group's banking subsidiary. The remainder of the inter-segment elimination represents investment management fees paid to/
received from the Group's life assurance companies and other asset management companies.
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
Adjusted Adjusted
. operating operating
5{(c)(i) Asset management continued Revenue Expenses profit Revenue Expenses profit
6 months to 30 June 2003
South Africa
Fund management
Old Mutual Asset Managers 14 (8) 6 181 (104) 77
Old Mutual Unit Trusts 9 (6) 3 117 (78) 39
Other (6) 1 91 (78) 13
Other financial services 24 (16) 8 311 (207) 104
54 (36) 18 700 (467) 233
US asset management 159 (122) 37 2,058 (1,579) 479
UK & Rest of World
Fund management 20 {15) 5 259 (194) 65
Private client - Gerrard 51 (48) 3 660 (621) 39
Selestia investment platform 3 8) (5) 39 (99) (60)
Other financial services 4 (6) (2) 52 (82) (30)
78 (77 M 1,010 (996) 14
291 (235) 56 3,768 (3,042) 726
Year to 31 December 2003
South Africa
Fund management
Old Mutual Asset Managers 33 (20) 13 408 (247) 161
Old Mutual Unit Trusts 21 (13) 8 259 (161) 98
Other 16 (12) 4 198 (148) 50
Other financial services 42 (24) 18 519 (296) 223
112 (69) 43 1,384 (852) 532
Nedcor Unit Trusts and Portfolio Management 36 (26) 10 445 (321) 124
148 (95) 53 1,829 (1,173) 656
US asset management 347 (268) 81 4,285 (3,285) 1,000
UK & Rest of World
Fund management 43 (35) 8 531 (432) 99
Private client — Gerrard 91 (83) 8 1,124 (1,025) 99
Selestia investment platform 3 (10) 7) 37 (123) (86)
Other financial services 10 (24) (14) 123 (296) (173)
Nedcor Unit Trusts and Portfolio Management 42 41) 1 519 (506) 13
' 189 (193) 4) 2,334 (2,382) (48)
684 (554) 130 8,448 (6,840) 1,608
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Yeartc 6 monthsto 6 monthsto Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
5(c)(ii) US asset management 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Revenue
Investment management fees 153 145 304 1,860 1,880 3,754
Transaction, performance and other fees 24 14 43 292 178 531
177 159 347 2,152 2,058 4,285
Expenses
Remuneration 56 58 117 681 755 1,445
Other expenses 74 64 149 891 824 1,840
130 122 266 1,572 1,579 3,285
47 37 81 580 479 1,000
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
South UK & Rest South UK & Rest

5(d) Banking Africa of World Total Africa of World Total
(i) Banking adjusted operating profit
6 months to 30 June 2004
Interest receivable 917 59 976 11,146 77 11,863
Interest payable (647) (37) (684) (7,864) (450) (8,314)
Net interest income 270 22 292 3,282 267 3,549
Dividend income 4 - 4 49 - 49
Fees and commissions receivable 202 12 214 2,455 146 2,601
Fees and commissions payable (20} 2) (22) (243) (28) (271)
Net other operating income 55 9 64 668 109 77
Total operating income 511 41 552 6,211 494 6,705
Specific and general provisions charge (58) 1 (59) (705) (12) (717)
Net income 453 40 493 5,506 482 5,988
Operating expenses (431) (19) (450) (5,239) (231)  (5,470)

22 21 43 267 254 518
Share of associated undertakings' profit 5 1 6 61 12 73
Total segmental resut 27 22 49 328 263 591
Inter-segment result 6 - 6 73 - 73
Adjusted operating profit a3 22 55 401 263 664

Total segmental result includes £6 million (R73 million) in relation to inter-company interest payable for short term funding

now repaid.

6 months to 30 June 2003

Interest receivable
Interest payable

Net interest income

Dividend income

Fees and commissions receivable
Fees and commissions payable
Net other operating income

Total operating income
Specific and general provisions charge

Net income
Operating expenses

Share of associated undertakings' profit

Adjusted operating profit

1,062 71 1,133 13,750 919 14,669
(818) (46) (864)  (10,590) (596) {11,186)
244 25 269 3,160 323 3,483

8 - 6 78 - 78
196 5 201 2,537 65 2,602
(5) 4} (6) (65) (13) (78)
88 10 98 1,139 124 1,263
529 39 568 6,849 499 7,348
(69) - (69) (893) . (893)
460 39 499 5,956 499 6,455
(387) (18) (403) (5,010 @07) (5,217
73 23 96 946 292 1,238

1 4 5 13 57 70
74 27 101 959 349 1,308
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continved

£m Rm

South UK & Rest South UK & Rest
5(d) Banking continued Africa of World Total Africa of World Total
(i) Banking adjusted operating profit continued
Year to 31 December 2003
Interest receivable 2,156 114 2,270 26,619 1,411 28,030 '
Interest payable (1,643) (80} (1,723)  (20,295) (981) (21,276)
Net interest income 513 34 547 6,324 430 6,754
Dividend income 12 - 12 150 2 152
Fees and commissions receivable 396 19 415 4,891 229 5,120
Fees and commissions payable (38) 2) (38) (445) (28) (473)
Net other operating income 157 14 171 1,946 172 2,118
Total operating income 1,042 65 1,107 12,866 805 13,671
Specific and general provisions charge (232) (2) (234) (2,868) (18) (2,886)
Net income 810 63 873 9,998 787 10,785
Operating expenses (824) (65) (889)  (10,169) (807) (10,976)

(14) 2) (16) (171) (20) (191)
Share of associated undertakings' profit 4 8 10 53 68 121
Adjusted operating (loss) / profit (10) 4 (6) (118) 48 (70)

Operating expenses includes translation losses of £18 million (R213 million) (June 2003: £51 million (R658 million);
December 2003: £110 million (R1,356 million}).

£m Rm

6 months to & months to Yearto 6monthsto 6 monthsto Year to

30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December

2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

(ii) Restructuring and integration costs

Costs before tax and minority interests 8 10 32 94 134 394
Tax 2) - [{9)] 27) - (74)
Costs after tax and before minority interests 6 10 26 67 134 320
Minority interests (3 (5) (13) (33) (65) (160)
Costs after tax and minority interests 3 5 13 34 69 160

Restructuring and integration costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of BoE by Nedcor Limited have been excluded
from adjusted operating profit.

36 OLD MUTUAL PLC INTERIM RESULTS 2004 FINAL DOC



Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS conTINUED

£m Rm

6 months to 6 months to Yearto 6 monthsto 6 monthsto Year to

30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December

5(d) Banking continued 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
(iii) Change in credit provisioning methodology

Charge before tax and minority interests - 74 87 - 963 1,074

Tax , - (22) (26) - (289) (322)

Charge after tax and before minority interests - 52 61 - 674 752

Minority interests - (28) (30) - (363) (376)

Charge after tax and minority interests - 24 31 - 311 376

During 2003, the Group’s banking subsidiary, Nedcor Limited, implemented a revised methodology for the calculation of
credit provisions for loans and advances in accordance with changes to local reporting requirements (AC133; “Financial
Instruments — Recognition and Measurement”). The revised methodology requiring the discounting of future cash flows on
advances is acceptable under UK GAAP reporting and was therefore adopted in preparation of the Group’s 2003 financial
statements, resulting in a one-off increase in opening specific provisions due to the discounting effect. Further investigation of
the transitional adjustment following publication of the 2003 interim results resulted in an increased charge of £9 million
(R111 million) that was recognised in the second half of 2003.

This adjustment has been taken to the profit and ioss account in the Group's financial statements but excluded from adjusted
operating profit.
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
Earned Claims Adjusted Earned Claims Adjusted
premiums net incusred net operating premiums net incurred net operating
5(e) General insurance business of reinsurance _ of reinsurance profit _ of reinsurance  of reinsurance profit
6 months to 30 June 2004
Commercial 105 64 14 1,276 776 175
Corporate 9 5 1 109 63 14
Personal lines 116 82 5 1,410 999 54
Risk financing 28 - 17 2 340 205 23
258 168 22 3,135 2,043 266
Long term investment return 25 303
47 569
6 months to 30 June 2003
Commercial 85 58 5 1,101 750 63
Corporate 9 4 1 110 56 12
Personal lines 85 71 1 1,240 920 18
Risk financing 18 16 - 227 206 -
207 149 7 2,678 1,932 93
Long term investment return 21 275
28 368
Year to 31 December 2003
Commercial 185 123 17 2,284 1,516 216
Corporate 17 13 M 210 156 (15)
Personat lines 206 150 6 2,543 1,853 75
Risk financing 52 36 4 637 442 53
460 322 26 5,674 3,967 329
Long term investment return 47 580
73 909
£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
5(f) Other shareholders' income / (expenses) 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Interest receivable 4 1 6 49 13 74
Net other income / (expenses) 7 1 (5) 85 13 (62)
Net corporate expenses {19) (15) 41) (231) (194) (5086)
Other shareholders' income / (expenses) (8) (13) (40) (97) (168) (494)

Net corporate expenses include £2 million (R24 million) (June 2003: £1 million (R12 million); December 2003: £5 million (R62
million)) in connection with the International Financial Reporting Standards conversion project.
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continved

£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
5(g) Funds under management Africa States _of World Total Africa States _ of World Total
At 30 June 2004
Investments including assets held to cover
linked liabilities 18,937 9,477 2,309 30,723 214,059 107,125 26,100 347,284
SA asset management
Fund management
Old Mutual Asset Managers 6,318 - - 6,318 71,417 - - 71,417
Old Mutual Unit Trusts 351 - - 351 3,968 - - 3,968
6,669 - - 6,669 75,385 - - 75,385
Other financial services 803 - - 803 9,077 - - 9,077
Nedcor Unit Trusts 974 - - 974 11,010 - - 11,010
Nedcor Portfolio Management 2,970 - - 2,970 33,572 - - 33,572
11,416 - - 11,416 129,044 - - 129,044
US asset management - 75,559 5,761 81,320 - 854,096 65,121 919,217
UK & Rest of World asset management
Fund management - - 2,063 2,063 - - 23,320 23,320
Selestia investment platform - - 350 350 - - 3,956 3,956
Other financial services - - 281 284 - - 3,176 3,176
Nedcor Unit Trusts - - 539 539 - - 6,093 6,093
Nedcor Portfolio Management - - 3,264 3,264 - - 36,895 36,895
- - 6,497 6,497 - - 73,440 73,440
Total funds under management 30,353 85,036 14,567 129,956 343,103 961,221 164,661 1,468,985
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
5(g) Funds under management continued Africa States  of World Total Africa States  of World Total
At 31 December 2003
Investments including assets held to cover
linked liabilities 19,437 8,317 1,539 29,283 232,012 99,278 18,371 349,661
SA asset management
Fund management
Old Mutual Asset Managers 5,378 - - 5,378 64,196 - - 64,196
Old Mutual Unit Trusts 293 - - 293 3,497 - - 3,497
5,671 - - 5,671 67,693 - - 67,693
Other financial services 697 - - 697 8,320 - - 8,320
Nedcor Unit Trusts 865 - - 865 10,325 - - 10,325
Nedcor Portfolio Management 2,771 - - 2,771 33,077 - - 33,077
10,004 - - 10,004 119,415 - - 119,415
US asset management - 72,532 5895 78427 - 865793 70,367 936,160
UK & Rest of World asset management
Fund management - - 2,027 2,027 - - 24196 24,196
Selestia investment platform - - 213 213 - - 2,543 2,543
Other financial services - - 345 345 - - 4,118 4,118
Nedcor Unit Trusts - - 707 707 - - 8,439 8,439
Nedcor Portfolio Management - - 4,210 4,210 - - 50,254 50,254
- - 7,502 7,502 - - 89,550 89,550
Total funds under management 29,441 80,849 14,936 125,226 351,427 965,071 178,288 1,494,786
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5 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS continued

£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
i(g) Funds under management continued Africa States of World Total Africa States of World Total
At 30 June 2003 (restated)
Investments including assets held to cover
linked liabilities 16,011 7,823 2,297 26,131 198,043 96,764 28412 323,219
SA asset management
Fund management
Old Mutual Asset Managers 4,613 - - 4,613 57,063 - - 57,063
Old Mutual Unit Trusts 177 - - 177 2,186 - - 2,186
4,790 - - 4,790 59,249 - - 59,249
Other financial services 318 - - 318 3,833 - - 3,833
Nedcor Unit Trusts 335 - - 335 4,144 - - 4,144
‘Nedcor Portfolio Management 2,748 - - 2,748 33,991 - - 33,99
8,191 - - 8,181 101,317 - - 101,317
US asset management - 68,929 5,781 74,710 - 852,597 71,506 924,103
UK & Rest of World asset management
Fund management - - 1,889 1,889 - - 23,365 23,365
Other financial services - - 287 287 - - 3,550 3,550
Nedcor Unit Trusts - - 729 729 - - 9,017 9,017
Nedcor Portfolio Management - - 3,805 3,805 - - 47065 47,065
- - 6,710 6,710 - - 82,997 82,997
UK Private Client - Gerrard - - 11,892 11,992 - - 148,331 148,331
Total funds under management 24,202 76,752 26,780 127,734 299,360 949,361 331,246 1,579,967
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6 INSURANCE LONG TERM INVESTMENT RETURN ON SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

As permitted by the ABI SORP, balances on the long term business and general business technical accounts are stated after
allocating an investment return earned by the insurance businesses, based on a long term investment return, to/from the
non-technical account.

For the South African and Namibian long term business, the return is applied to an average value of investible shareholders'
assets. For general insurance business, the return is an average value of investible assets supporting shareholders' funds
and insurance liabilities. For the US long term business, the return earned by assets, mainly bonds, has been smoothed with
reference to the actual yield earned by the portfolio. Short term fluctuations in investment return represent the difference
between actual return and long term investment return.

The principal long term rates of investment return for equities and other investible assets are as follows:

6 months to 8 months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003

South Africa and Namibia long term and general insurance businesses -
weighted average return 13.0% 13.4% 13.4%
Equities 14.0% 14.0% 14.0%
Cash and other investible assets — Rand denominated 12.5% 12.5% 12.5%
Cash and other investible assets — other currencies 9.0% 9.0% 9.0%
United States 6.09% 6.04% 6.04%

The long term rates of return are based on achieved real rates of return adjusted for current inflation expectations and
consensus economic investment forecasts, and are reviewed annually for appropriateness. The directors are of the opinion
that these rates of return are appropriate and have been selected with a view to ensuring that returns credited to operating
earnings are not inconsistent with the actual returns expected to be earned over the long term.

. . o 6 months to 6 months to Yeareg 6 months to & months to Yea::'c:
Analy5|s of short term fluctuations in investment 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
return 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Life assurance
Actual investment return afttributable to shareholders (183) 240 326 (2,224) 3,107 4,026
Long term investment return credited to operating resuit 86 85 183 1,044 1,101 2,260

(269) - 155 143 (3,268) 2,006 1,766
General insurance

Actual investmentreturn attributable to shareholders 7 1 51 85 13 630
Long term investment return credited to operating result 25 21 47 303 272 580
(18) (20) 4 (218) (259) 50

Other shareholders’ income / (expenses)
Actual investment return attributable to shareholders - (10) (3) 5 (129) (37)
Long term investment return credited to operating resuit - - 1 5 - 12
- (10) 4) - (129) (49)
(Deficit) / excess of actual return over longer term return (287) 125 143 (3,486) 1,618 1,767

42 OLD MUTUAL PL.C INTERIM RESULTS 2004 FINAL DOC



Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

7 FINES AND PENALTIES

On 21 June 2004, one of the Group’s US asset management affiliates, Pilgrim Baxter & Associates Ltd (PBA),
reached agreements with the US Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Office of the New York
State Attorney General (NYAG) which settle all charges brought by these authorities against PBA in relation to
market timing in the US mutual fund business.

PBA agreed to pay $40 million in disgorgement of past fees, as well as $50 million in civil penalties. This has
resulted in a charge of £49 million (R596 million) for the period ended 30 June 2004, which has been taken to
the profit and loss account in the Group's financial statements, but exciuded from adjusted operating profit. Tax
deductions have been recognised on the disgorgement of past fees, resulting in a tax credit of £8 million
(R97 million).

In addition PBA will reduce fees to investors by approximately $10 million over the next five years.

There are several related private lawsuits arising from the conduct alleged in the civil suits filed by the SEC and
NYAG. These class action lawsuits are at a very early procedural stage and it is not possible to say, at this time,
whether or not the amount of the ultimate liability to be borne by the Group will be material. As a result, no
amount has been recognised for additional fines or other penalties that may arise, as significant uncertainty
remains over the quantum of any settlement.
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8 TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to & months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
United Kingdom tax
UK corporation tax 9 11 34 109 142 420
Double tax relief 7) (5) (24) (85) (65) (296)
2 6 10 24 77 124
Overseas tax
South African tax 72 76 160 875 984 1,976
United States tax 17 11 11 207 142 136
Rest of World tax 5 2 4 61 26 49
Secondary taxation on companies (STC) 7 5 14 85 65 173
101 94 189 1,228 1,217 2,334
Adjustment in respect of prior periods - 4 8) - 52 (99)
Current tax for period 103 104 191 1,252 1,346 2,359
Deferred tax 81) 87 50 (985) 1,126 617
Reported tax charge 22 191 241 267 2,472 2,976
The tax charge is analysed as follows:
Adjusted operating profit 106 129 224 1,290 1,673 2,763
Restructuring and integration costs (2) - ) (27) - (74)
Change in credit provisioning methodology - (22) (26) - (289) (322)
Short term fluctuations in investment return (74) 82 49 (899) 1,062 609
Fines and penalties (8) - - (97) - -
Non-operating items - 2 - - 26 -
Reported tax charge 22 191 241 267 2,472 2,976
£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to & months to Year to
o 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
Reconciliation of tax charge 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Tax at UK rate of 30.0 per cent. (2003: 30.0 per cent.) on
profit on ordinary activities before tax 1 110 133 8 1,419 1,644
Untaxed and low taxed income (including tax exempt
investment return) 27) (34) (113) (328) (440) (1,395)
Disailowable expenditure 49 86 179 596 1,113 2,210
STC 7 5 14 85 65 173
Movement in deferred tax 81 (87) (50) 985 (1,126) 617)
Other (8) 24 28 (94) 315 344
Current tax charge 103 104 191 1,252 1,346 2,359
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9 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS / NON OPERATING ITEMS

9(a) Acquisitions

Mutual and Federal Insurance Company Limited

During the period the Group acquired an additional 37.0% of the equity share capital of its general insurance subsidiary,
Mutual and Federal Insurance Company Limited, bringing its total holding to 87.6%. Cash consideration of £102 million
(R1,343 million) was paid.

The table below shows the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired.

£m Rm
Book value Fair value  Provisional fair  Provisional fair
on acquisitions adjustments  value to Group _ value to Group
Goodwill 10 (10) - -
Investments 304 - 304 4,214
Technical assets 73 - 73 1,006
Insurance debtors 28 " 28 394
All other assets 115 - 115 1,589
Minority interests (3) - (3) (38)
Technical provisions {266) - (266) {3,692)
Insurance creditors (12) - (12) (173)
Provisions {(11) - (11) (155)
All other liabilities (25) - (25) (363)
Total net assets of Mutual and Federal Insurance
Company Limited 213 {10) 203 2,782
Additional share acquired by the Group . 75 1,029
Cash consideration paid 102 1,343
Goodwill arising on acquisition 27 314

Fair Value Adjustments

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 7 "Fair Values in Acquisition Accounting”, the book value of goodwill has
been deducted in determining the fair value of the net assets acquired as it is not a separately identifiable asset. There were
no other fair value adjustments.
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9 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS / NON OPERATING ITEMS continued

9(b) Disposals / Non-operating items

The following gains and losses on the disposal of business operations have been disclosed as non-operating:

£m Rm

6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year to

30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December

2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

United States — asset management affiliates 1 (13) (15) 12 (168) (194)

South Africa — banking subsidiary 11 - - 137 - -

United Kingdom - asset management subsidiaries - - (17) - - (210)

Profit / (loss) on disposal before tax 12 (13) (32) 149 (168) (404)

Tax — United States asset management affiliates - 2) - - (26) -

Profit / (loss) on disposal after tax 12 (15) (32) 149 (194) (404)
Minority interest - South Africa banking subsidiary (6) - - (67) -

Profit / {loss) on disposal after tax and minority interests 6 (15) (32) 82 (194) (404)

United States — asset management affiliates

The gain for the period represents contingent consideration received on disposals made in prior periods.

South Africa — banking subsidiary

During the period Nedbank disposed of Chiswell Associates Lid for cash consideration of £20 million (R241 million). The
profit on disposal was £11 million (R137 million) after charging goodwill of £2 million (R20 million). No tax was payable and
the minority interest attributable was £6 million (R67 million).
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10 GOODWILL
£m Rm
At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
Notes 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
At beginning of period 1,264 1,598 1,598 15,088 22,075 22,075
Additions arising on acquisitions in period 9(a) 27 - 314 - -
Adjustment in respect of prior year acquisitions - 81 - - 1,000 -
Disposals 9(b) (2) (159) (20} (20) (1,898) (259)
Amortisation and impairment for the period (63) (194) (44) (766) (2,386) (570)
Foreign exchange and other movements 3 (62) 18 (724) (3,693) (2,048)
At end of period 1,229 1,264 1,552 13,892 15,088 19,198
Represented by:
Cost less impairments 1,518 1,508 1,817 17,159 18,001 22,476
Accumulated amortisation (289) (244) (265) (3,267)  (2,913) (3,278)
At end of period 1,229 1,264 1,552 13,892 15,088 19,198

Amortisation for the period

The goodwill amortisation charge for the period of £66m (R802 million) (June 2003: £47 million (R608 million); December
2003: £206 million (R2,544 million)) comprises £63 million (R766 million) (June 2003: £44 million (R570 million); December
2003:; £194 million (R2,396 miilion)) disclosed above, and £3 million (R36 million) (June 2003: £3 million (R38 million),
December 2003: £12 million (R148 million)) included within interests in associated undertakings. The charge for the period
includes an impairment of £26 million (R310 million) in respect of Group adjustments associated with our banking

subsidiaries.
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11 MINORITY INTERESTS

£m Rm
At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
11(a) Equity interests 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
At beginning of period 652 783 783 7,783 10,816 10,816
Minority interests' share of profit / (loss) 13 (117) (15) 158 (1,445) (194)
Minority interests' share of dividends paid {5) {61) (36) (61) (753) {466)
Net acquisition /(disposal) of interests 101 41) (5) 1,228 (506) (65)
Foreign exchange and other movements 54 88 68 105 (329) (257)
At end of period 815 652 795 9,213 7,783 9,834
£m Rm
are gt . ael® 6 months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to
Reconglllatlon of minority interests share - 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
of profit / (loss) 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
The minority interest charge / (credit) is analysed as follows:
Adjusted operating profit 31 7 42 379 96 538
Amortisation and impairment of goodwill (19) (78) 7) (231) (963) (90)
Loss on disposal / write-down of investment in Dimension
Data Holdings pic - (2) (5) - (30) (58)
Restructuring and integration costs (3) (13) (5) (33) (160) (65)
Change in credit provisioning methodology - (30) (28) - (376) (363)
Short term fluctuations (2) 6] (12) (24) (12) (156)
Non-operating items 6 - - 67 - -
Reported charge / (credit) 13 (117) (15) 158 (1,445) (194)
£m Rm
At At At At At At
. 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
11(b) Non-equity interests 2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
R2,000 million non-cumulative preference shares (banking
subsidiary)’ 177 168 162 2,000 2,000 2,000
R825 million non-cumulative preference shares (banking
subsidiary)® 73 69 - 825 825 -
US$750 million cumulative preferred securities” 413 421 454 4,668 5,020 5,624
Other (general insurance subsidiary)4 5 3 - 57 36 -
668 661 616 7,550 7,881 7,624
Unamortised issue costs (11) (12) (14) (124) (143) (181)
Undistributed profits due to non-equity minority interests ] 9 4 102 116 48
At end of period 666 658 606 7,528 7,854 7,492

200 miilion R10 preference shares issued by Nedbank Limited (Nedbank), a banking subsidiary of the Group. These shares are non-
redeemable and non-cumulative and pay a cash dividend equivalent to 75% of the prime overdraft interest rate of Nedbank. Preference
shareholders are only entitled to vote during periods when a dividend or any part of it remains unpaid after the due date for payment and
when resolutions are proposed that directly affect any rights attaching to the shares or the rights of the holders. Preference shareholders
will be entitled to receive their dividends in priority to any payment of dividends made in respect of any other class of Nedbank's shares.

77.3 million R10 preference shares issued at R10.68 per share by Nedbank during November 2003 on the same terms as the securities
described in 1 above.

® USS$750 million Guaranteed Cumulative Perpetual Preference Securities issued on 19 May 2003 by Old Mutual Capital Funding L.P., a
subsidiary of the Group. Subject to certain limitations, holders of these securities are entitled to receive preferential cash distributions at a
fixed rate of 8.0% per annum payable in arrear on a quarterly basis. The Group may defer payment of distributions in its sole discretion,
but such an act may restrict Old Mutua! plc frorn paying dividends on its ordinary shares for a period of 12 months. Arrears of distributions
are payable cumulatively only on redemption of the securities or at the Group's option. The securities are perpetual, but may be redeemed
at the discretion of the Group from 22 December 2008. The costs of issue are being amortised over the period to 22 December 2008.

The Group has a general insurance subsidiary that offers clients a share of underwriting surpluses which accrue in respect of certain
policies and which is payable in the form of a preference dividend.
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12 AMOUNTS OWED TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

£m Rm
At At At Al At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Bank and other loans
Repayable within one year:
Floating rate notes’ 17 11 - 192 131 -
Commercial paper - 17 155 - 203 1,917
17 28 155 192 334 1,917
Repayable between one and two years:
Floating rate notes' - - 12 - - 148
Repayable between two and five years:
Fioating rate notes' - 6 8 - 72 74
Term loan® 25 25 27 283 208 334
Fixed rate notes® 193 196 212 2,182 2,340 2,622
Other® 52 48 46 588 573 569
270 275 291 3,053 3,283 3,599
Repayable after five years:
Floating rate notes’ 29 31 33 328 370 408
Fixed rate notes® 37 37 8 418 442 75
Other 6 6 - 72 72 -
72 74 39 818 884 483
359 377 497 4,063 4,501 6,147

Floating rate notes:

* US$20 million repayable on 17 September 2004 and US$10.5 million repayable on 18 January 2005.

2 £29 million note repayable on 31 December 2010, with the holders having the option to elect for early redemption every six
months. '

Term loan:

8 US$45 million term loan repayable on 30 June 2006.

Fixed rate notes:

* €400 million Euro notes due 2007. The capital and interest on these were immediately swapped into US Dollars on issue.

$ Consists of a €30 million bond and a €10 million bond both due in 2010 and a €20 million bond due in 2013. These were all

issued during 2003 and the capital and interest were immediately swapped into US Dollars at a fixed rate.

Other:

& Other amounts owed to credit institutions consist principally of preference shares issued by a subsidiary of the Group.

During the period, the Company entered into a new £1,100 million 5 year multi-currency Revolving Credit Facility, which

matures during May 2009, and cancelled its existing £900 million, US$600 million and US$60 million facilities. The new
facility was undrawn at 30 June 2004.

49 . OLD MUTUAL PLC INTERIM RESULTS 2004 FINAL DOC



Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

13 CONVERTIBLE LOAN STOCK

13(a) Insurance and other assets
At 30 June 2004, the Group had in issue US$636 million 3.625 per cent. Convertible Bonds maturing on 2 May 2005, which

are guaranteed by Old Mutual plc. On maturity the holder has the right to elect to convert the loan stock into the ordinary
shares of Old Mutual pic at a conversion price of 190p per share and an exchange rate of one US dollar to 69.52p Sterling.

13(b) Banking

£m Rm
At At At At At Al
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
Compulsory convertible loan maturing 6 November 2005

(13.75 per cent.) 3 3 4 29 37 49

Compulsory convertible loan maturing 31 December 2005
(18.12 per cent.) 6 7 10 68 82 124
10 14 97 119 173

These debt instruments are convertible into BoE Bank Ltd ordinary shares. The Group has the option to purchase these
shares.
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1 CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ON AN ACHIEVED PROFITS BASIS

£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to & months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
(Restated)*** (Restated)***
South Africa
Life assurance 252 230 468 3,062 2977 5,786
Asset management 14 18 53 156 233 656
Banking 33 74 (10) 401 959 (118)
General insurance 47 28 73 569 368 909
346 350 584 4,188 4,537 7,233
United States
Life assurance 69 57 128 839 742 1,581
Asset management 44 37 81 544 479 1,000
143 94 209 1,383 1,221 2,581
United Kingdom & Rest of World
Life assurance 5 - 2 60 4 25
Asset management 10 1 (4) 121 14 (48)
Banking 22 27 4 263 349 48
37 28 444 367 25
496 472 795 6,015 6,125 9,839
Other shareholders' income / (expenses) (8) (13) (40) 97) (168) (494)
Debt service costs (20) (30) 48) (243) (388) (593)
Adjusted operating profit* 468 429 707 5,675 5,569 8,752
Goodwill amortisation and impairment » (66) (47) (206) (802) (608) (2,544)
Loss on disposal / write-down of investment in Dimension Data
Holdings plc - (11) (5) - (136) (60)
Restructuring and integration costs (8) (10) (32) (94) (134) (394)
Change in credit provisioning methodology - (74) (87) - (963) (1,074)
Fines and penalties (49) - - (596) - -
Short term fluctuations in investment return (including economic
assumption changes)
Life assurance (181) (104) 71 (2,200) (1,345) 872
Other (18) (30) - (219) (388) -
Investment return adjustment for own shares held in
policyholders' funds (22) 14 12 (266) 181 148
Other life assurance changes ** - (39) (86) - (508) (1,085)
Operating profit on ordinary activities before tax 124 128 374 1,498 1,670 4,635
Non-operating items 12 (13) (32) 149 (168) (404)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 136 115 342 1,647 1,502 4,231
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (83) (127) {211) (766) (1,650) (2,605)
Profit / (loss) on ordinary activities after tax 73 (12) 131 881 (148) 1,626
Minority interests - = equity (13) 14 115 (159) 183 1,420
Minority interests - non-equity (29) (14) (46) (352) (181) (568)
Profit / (loss) for the financial period 3 (12) 200 370 (146) 2,478
Dividends paid and proposed (60) (60) (166) (678) (741) (2,008)
Retained (loss) / profit for the financial period (29) (72) 34 (308) (887) 472
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1 CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT ON AN ACHIEVED PROFITS BASIS continued

£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to & months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
(Restated)™ (Restated)™
The adjusted operating profit on an after-tax and minority
interests basis is determined as follows:
Adjusted operating profit 468 429 707 5,675 5,569 8,752
Tax on adjusted operating profit (131) (148) (250) {1,595) (1,916) (3,087)
337 281 457 4,080 3,653 5,665
Minority interests - equity (31) 43) 9) (380) (557) (111)
- non-equity (29) (14) (46) (352) (181) (568)
Adjusted operating profit after tax and minority interests 277 224 402 3,348 2,915 4,986
Earnings per share — achieved profits basis p c
Adjusted operating earnings per share* 7.4 6.0 10.8 89.4 78.4 133.8
Basic earnings / (loss) per share 0.9 (0.4) 5.9 10.8 (4.3) 72.6
Adjusted weighted average number of shares — millions 3,745 3,717 3,727 3,745 3,717 3,727
Weighted average number of shares - millions 3,429 3,401 3,411 3,429 3,401 3,411

*  Adjusted operating profit represents the directors' view of the underlying performance of the Group. For life assurance and general
insurance businesses, adjusted operating profit is based on a long term investment return and includes investment returns on own
shares held within the policyholders' funds. For banking business, adjusted operating profit excludes the loss on disposal / write-down of
investment in Dimension Data Holdings plc, restructuring and integration costs and the transitional impact of the change of credit
provisioning methodology. For all businesses, adjusted operating profit excludes goodwill amortisation and impairment and fines and
penalties. Adjusted operating earnings per share are similarly based, but are stated after tax and minority interests, with the calculation
of the weighted average number of shares including own shares held in policyholders’ funds. The segmental analysis within the achieved
profits consolidated profit and loss account has been prepared after eliminating inter-segment results.

**  Refer to segmental analysis of results in section 7.
*** Comparative figures for the six months ended 30 June 2003 have been restated to reflect the adoption of Urgent Issues Taskforce

Abstract 37 “Purchases and Sales of Own Shares" and 38 “Accounting for ESOP Trusts” (UITF38). Comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2003 have been restated to reflect the adoption of UITF38.
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2 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES ON AN

ACHIEVED PROFITS BASIS

£m Rm

6 months to 6 months to Yeartc 6monthsto & months {o Year to

30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December

2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

(Restated) {Restated) {Restated) (Restated)

Profit / (loss) for the financial period 3 (12) 200 370 (146) 2,478

Foreign exchange movements 146 227 307 (556) (1,634) (2,186)

Total recognised gains and losses for the period 177 215 507 (186) (1,780) 292
Prior period adjustment 109 1,301
Total recognised gains and losses since last annual report 286 1,115

3 RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN THE CONSOLIDATED ACHIEVED PROFITS EQUITY

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

£m Rm

6 monthsto 6 months to Yearto 6monthsto & months to Year lo

30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December

2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

Total recognised gains and losses for the period 177 215 507 (186) (1,780) 292

Dividends paid and proposed (60) (60) (166) (678) (741) A (2,006)

17 155 341 (864) (2,521) (1,714)

Issue of new capital - 37 37 - 479 457

Net sale of shares held in ESOP Trusts 2 6 31 21 76

Shares issued under employee incentive schemes 8 - 97 - 49
Net increase / (decrease) in achieved profits equity shareholders’

funds 128 194 388 (736) (2,021) (1,132)
Achieved profits equity shareholders' funds at the beginning of the
period (originally £3,561 million (R42,503 millicn) before prior year

adjustment of £109 million (R1,301 million)) 3,452 3,064 3,064 41,202 42,334 42,334
Achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds at the end of the

period 3,580 3,258 3,452 40,466 40,313 41,202
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4 CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ON AN ACHIEVED PROFITS BASIS

£m Rm
At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated}
Assets:
Goodwill 1,229 1,264 1,552 13,892 15,088 19,198
Insurance and other assets 33,839 32,409 29,768 382,507 386,855 368,209
Banking assets 24,307 24,042 22,298 274,759 286,985 275,808
Total long term in-force business asset 841 700 528 9,509 8,353 6,539
Total assets 60,216 58,415 54,146 680,667 697,281 669,754
Liabilities:
Achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds 3,580 3,452 3,258 40,466 41,202 40,313
Minority interests 1,483 1,312 1,402 16,767 15,662 17,337
Subordinated liabilities - 15 17 - 179 210
Insurance and other liabilities 32,345 30,724 28,301 365,624 366,735 350,063
Banking liabilities 22,808 22,912 21,168 257,810 273,503 261,831
Total liabilities 80,216 58,415 54,146 680,667 697,281 669,754
Reconciliation of total long term in-force business asset
Value of in-force business 1,288 1,276 1,234 14,559 15,227 15,270
OMUSL statutory solvency adjustment (433) (566) (681) (4,895) (6,756) (8,420)
OMI life subsidiaries statutory solvency adjustment (18) (17) (19) (203) (203) (234)
Adjustment for discounting CGT 4 7 (6) 48 85 (77)
Total long term in-force business asset 841 700 528 9,509 8,353 6,539
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5 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The results for the six months to 30 June 2004 and the position at that date have been prepared on the same basis as those
used in the Group 2003 Annual Report, except as set out below. These supplementary financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the methodology for supplementary reporting for long term insurance business (the achieved
profits method) issued in December 2001 by the Association of British Insurers.

Changes in accounting policies

Comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of UITF Abstract 38 "Accounting for ESOP Trusts". This
Abstract requires that the Group's holdings in own shares held by Employee Share Ownership Trusts (ESOP Trusts) be
accounted for as a deduction from shareholders' funds (profit and loss account) rather than recorded as an asset. In addition,
purchases and sales of such own shares should be shown as changes in shareholders’ funds such that no profit or loss is
recognised. In the majority of cases, the ESOP Trusts have waived their rights to dividends such that there is no impact on
operating profit after tax. The reductions in achieved profits equity shareholders' funds at 30 June 2004, 31 December 2003
and 30 June 2003 were £113 million (R1,270 million), £109 million (R1,301 million) and £110 million (R1,356 million)
respectively, representing the original cost of these shares.

In the second half of 2003 the Group adopted UITF Abstract 37 "Purchases and Sales of Own Shares". As a result, shares of
the Company held by the Group's long term policyholders' funds were accounted for as a deduction from equity rather than
as an asset and the investment return earned and dividends paid on these shares were no longer shown in the profit and loss
account. The 30 June 2003 comparative figures have been restated to reflect the adoption of this Abstract. For the six
months ended 30 June 2003, operating profit after tax increased by £14 million (R181 million) and dividends paid have been
restated to exclude dividends in respect of own shares, resulting in an overall increase in retained profit of £18 million (R232
million). Basic earnings per share have been restated to reflect a reduction in the weighted average number of shares in

issue of 316 million. At 30 June 2003, the reduction in achieved profits equity shareholders' funds was £267 million (R3,303
million).

In determining the adjusted embedded value, a pro forma adjustment has been made to include the market value of own
shares held in policyholders’ funds.
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6 COMPONENTS OF ACHIEVED PROFITS EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

£m Rm
At At At At At At
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
(Restated) {Restated) {Restated) (Restated)
Shareholders’ adjusted net worth 2,294 2,178 2,025 25,933 26,000 25,054
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,741 2,754 2,731 30,983 32,874 33,785
Adjustment to include OMUSL on a statutory solvency basis (433) (566) (681) (4,895) (6,756) (8,420)
Adjustment to include OMI life subsidiaries on a statutory
solvency basis (18) 17) (19) (203) (203) (234)
Adjustment for discounting CGT 4 7 (6) 48 85 77
Value of in-force business 1,288 1,276 1,234 14,559 15,227 15,270
Value of in-force business before cost of solvency capital 1,466 1,450 1,377 16,567 17,304 17,041
Cost of solvency capital (178) (174) (143) (2,008) (2,077) (1,771)
Minority interest in value of in-force 2) 2 M (26) (25) (11)
Achieved profits equity shareholders’ funds 3,580 3,452 3,258 40,466 41,202 40,313
Pro-forma adjustment to bring Group investments to
market value
Achieved profits equity shareho!ders’ funds 3,580 3,452 3,258 40,466 41,202 40,313
Adjustment to bring listed subsidiaries to market value 488 288 424 5,517 3,444 5,240
Adjustment for market value of own shares held in
policyholders’ funds 312 275 267 3,527 3,283 3,303
Adjusted embedded value 4,380 4,015 3,949 49,510 47,929 48,856
P [
Adjusted embedded value per share 113.8 104.6 103.1 1,286 1,249 1,275
Number of shares in issue at the end of the period including
own shares held in policyholders’ funds - millions 3,849 3,837 3,832 3,849 3,837 3,832

The shareholders’ adjusted net worth includes goodwill relating to OMUSL of £60 million (R678 million) (December 2003: £63
million (R752 million); June 2003: £70 million (R866 million)).

The table below sets out a geographical analysis of the value of in-force business.

£m Rm

At Al Al At Al At

30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June

2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

South Africa 813 824 776 9,190 9,832 9,594
Individual business 513 507 476 5,799 6,053 5,881
Group business 300 317 300 3,391 3,779 3,713
United States 415 393 394 4,691 4,691 4,879
United Kingdom & Rest of World 60 59 64 678 704 797
Value of in-force business 1,288 1,276 1,234 14,559 15,227 15,270
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6 COMPONENTS OF ACHIEVED PROFITS EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS continued

The encumbered and unencumbered capital for South Africa and United States is shown in the table below.

£m Rm
At At At At At Al
30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003
South Africa

1,429 1,651 1,294 16,152 18,513 16,006
Encumbered capital 1,086 1,021 1,077 12,274 12,186 13,325
Unencumbered capital 343 530 217 3,881 6,327 2,681

United States
406 391 361 4,591 4,666 4,461
Encumbered capital 162 153 163 1,836 1,822 2,021
Unencumbered capital 244 238 198 2,755 2,844 2,440

For South Africa the average unencumbered capital applicable was £290 million (R3,522 million) (December 2003: £196
million (R2,419 million); June 2003: £159 million (R2,061 million)). These average figures were used to determine the

expected return on unencumbered capital.
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7 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF RESULTS

£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
Africa States of Wortd Total Africa States of World Total
6 months to 30 June 2004
New business contribution 35 43 1 79 425 523 12 960
Profits from existing business
Expected return on in-force business 91 26 3 120 1,106 316 36 1,458
Expected return on encumbered
capitat 55 4 2 61 668 49 24 741
Experience variances 48 1) - 47 583 (12) - 571
Operating assumption changes 4 (10) (1) (7 49 (122) (12) (85)
Expected return on unencumbered capital 19 7 - 26 231 85 - 316
Life assurance adjusted operating
profits before tax 252 69 5 326 3,062 839 60 3,961
Investment return variances
On value of in-force (49) 9 - (40) (596) 109 - (487)
On capital (57) (13) 2) (72) (693) (158) (24) (875)
Effect of economic assumption changes (61) (6) (2) (69) (741) (73) (24) (838)
Life assurance achieved profits before
tax 85 59 1 145 1,032 717 12 1,761
Attributed tax 27 (18) - (45) (328) (219) - (547)
Life assurance achieved profits after tax 58 41 1 100 704 498 12 1,214
£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
Africa States of World Tatal Affica States of Warld Tatal
6 months to 30 June 2003
New business contribution 35 28 1 64 459 357 16 832
Profits from existing business
Expected return on in-force business 86 18 3 108 1,115 246 40 1,401
Expected return on encumbered
capital 70 5 2 77 909 70 26 1,005
Experience variances 35 (2) 3) 30 451 21) (40) 390
Operating assumption changes (7 - (3) (10) (85) - (38) (133)
Expected return on unencumbered capital 11 7 - 18 138 80 - 228
Life assurance adjusted operating
profits before tax 230 57 - 287 2,977 742 4 3,723
Investment return variances
On value of in-force (18) “) 2 (20) (232) (52) 31 (253)
On capital (147) (13) 1 (159) (1,802) 171) 16 (2,057)
Effect of economic assumption changes 56 17 2 75 720 217 28 965
Effect of changes in and cost of solvency
capital (44) - - (44) (565) - - (565)
Effect of BoE Life 5 - - 5 59 - - 59
Life assurance achieved profits before
tax 82 57 5 144 1,057 736 79 1,872
Attributed tax (67) (17) 3) {87) (867) (221) (39) (1,127)
Life assurance achieved profits after tax 15 40 2 57 190 515 40 745
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

7 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF RESULTS continued

£m Rm
South United UK & Rest South United UK & Rest
Africa States of World Total Africa States of World Total
Year to 31 December 2003
New business contribution 108 57 2 167 1,334 704 25 2,063
Profits from existing business
Expected return on in-force business 188 39 6 233 2,322 482 74 2,878
Expected return on encumbered
capital 147 11 5 163 1,818 136 62 2,016
Experience variances 22 (8) (5) g 272 (99) (62) 111
Operating assumption changes (23) 15 6) (14) (284) 185 (74) (173)
Expected return on unencumbered capital 26 14 - 40 324 173 - 497
Life assurance adjusted operating
profits before tax 468 128 2 598 5,786 1,581 25 7,392
Investment return variances
On value of in-force 27 20 3 50 333 247 37 617
On capital (36) (1) (12) 49) (450) (12) (148) (610)
Effect of economic assumption changes 79 (11) 2 70 q76 (136) 25 865
Effect of changes in and cost of sclvency
capital (59) (59) (729) - - (729)
Effect of FSV economic assumption
changes (32) - (32) (395) - - (395)
Effect of BoE Life 5 5 59 - - 59
Life assurance achieved profits before
tax 452 136 5) 583 5,580 1,680 61) 7,199
Attributed tax (127) (34) - (181) (1,568) (420) - (1,988)
Life assurance achieved profits after tax 325 102 (5) 422 4,012 1,260 (61) 5,211

Expected return on the unencumbered capital for South Africa and the United States is 13.0% p.a. (December 2003: 13.4%;
June 2003: 13.4%) and 6.0% p.a. (December 2003: 7.0%; June 2003: 7.0%) respectively. For South Africa the expected
return is applied to the average unencumbered capital given in section 6.

The segmental results of the United States include the operating profit generated by Old Mutual Reassurance in Ireland,

which provides reinsurance to the United States life companies, and OMNIA Life (Bermuda) Ltd.

The effect of changes in and cost of solvency capital for South Africa reflects changes in the amount of solvency capital

required and in the mix of assets backing the solvency capital.

The effect of FSV economic assumption changes reflects the impact of reducing the economic assumptions for the South

African actuarial liability valuation by 3% p.a.

The effect of BoE Life reflects the recognition of the initial value of the in-force business on acquisition.
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

7 SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS OF RESULTS continued

The difference between the total tax charge shown in the above segmental analysis and the total tax charge shown in the
profit and loss account in section 1, represents the tax charge on the non-life businesses.

£m Rm
6 months to 6 months to Year to 6 months to 6 months to Year to
30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June 30June 31 December
2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

Tax on life assurance achieved profit
South Africa - value of in-force 24 56 119 292 723 1,469
- capital 3 11 8 36 144 99
United States 18 17 34 219 221 420
UK & Rest of World - 3 - - 39 -
45 87 161 547 1,127 1,988
Tax on other business 18 40 50 219 523 617
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 63 127 21 766 1,650 2,605

60 OLD MUTUAL PLC INTERIM RESULTS 2004 FINAL DOC



Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information continued
for the six months ended 30 June 2004

8 VALUE OF NEW BUSINESS

The tables below set out a geographical analysis of the value of new business (VNB) for the six months to 30 June 2004, six
months to 30 June 2003 and the year to 31 December 2003. Annual Premium Equivalent (APE) is calculated as recurring
premiums plus 10% of single premiums. New business profitability, as measured by the ratio of the VNB to the APE, is also
shown under "Margin" below.

The value of new business is shown both on a gross and after tax basis. The assumptions and tax rates used to calculate the
value of new business are set out in section 9.

Individual Group South United UK & Rest

business business Africa States of World Total
6 months to 30 June 2004
£m
Recurring premiums 70 8 78 25 5 108
Single premiums 255 86 341 1,127 62 1,530
Annual Premium Equivalent 96 17 113 138 11 262
Value of new business before tax 27 8 35 43 1 79
Value of new business after tax 17 5 22 30 1 53
Margin before tax 28% 48% 31% 31% 9% 30%
Margin after tax 18% 30% 19% 22% 9% 20%
Rm
Recurring premiums 848 93 941 304 63 1,308
Single premiums 3,099 1,049 4,148 13,698 759 18,605
Annual Premium Equivalent 1,158 198 1,356 1,674 139 3,169
Value of new business before tax 328 97 425 523 12 960
Value of new business after tax 204 60 264 365 12 641
6 months to 30 June 2003
£m
Recurring premiums 68 9 77 40 6 123
Single premiums 238 203 441 892 44 1,377
Annual Premium Equivalent 92 29 121 129 il 261
Value of new business before tax 22 13 35 20 1 56
Value of new business after tax 14 8 22 14 1 37
Margin before tax 24% 46% 29% 15% 12% 22%
Margin after tax 15% 28% 18% 1% 12% 14%
Rm
Recurring premiums 888 117 1,005 513 81 1,589
Single premiums 3,084 2,626 5,710 11,547 569 17,826
Annual Premium Equivalent 1,196 380 1,576 1,668 138 3,382
Value of new business before tax 285 174 459 253 16 728
Value of new business after tax 177 108 285 177 16 478
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8 VALUE OF NEW BUSINESS continued

Individual Group South United UK & Rest

business business Africa States of World Total
Year to 31 December 2003
£m
Recurring premiums 157 18 175 67 11 283
Single premiums 475 472 947 1,715 100 2,762
Annual Premium Equivalent 205 65 270 238 21 529
Value of new business before tax 68 40 108 49 2 159
Value of new business after tax 42 25 67 36 2 105
Margin before tax 33% 61% 40% 21% 10% 30%
Margin after tax 21% 38% 25% 15% 10% 20%
Rm
Recurring premiums 1,933 227 2,160 827 134 3,121
Single premiums 5,867 5,823 11,890 21,178 1,242 34,110
Annual Premium Equivalent 2,520 809 3,329 2,945 258 6,532
Value of new business before tax 840 494 1,334 605 25 1,964
Value of new business after tax 519 309 828 445 25 1,298

The new business shown above for 30 June 2004 for South African Group recurring premium business includes bulk new
business into existing schemes, with value of new business of £1 miliion (R10 million) after tax and APE of £3 million (R33
miltion).

The new business shown above for the United States for 31 December 2003 and 30 June 2003 excludes the value of OMNIA
Life (Bermuda} business that was acquired during 2003, and which is included within the value of new business shown in
section 7.

The value of new individual unit trust and some group market-linked business written by the life companies is excluded, as
the profits on this business arise in the asset management subsidiaries. The value of new business also excludes premium
increases arising from indexation arrangements in respect of existing business, as these are aiready included in the value of
in-force business. The premiums shown for the United States exclude reinsurance ceded externally.

A reconciliation of the new business premiums shown in the notes to the financial statements to those shown above, for the
six months to 30 June 2004, is set out below.

£m Rm
Recurring Single Recurring Single
premiums premiums premiums premiums

6 months to 30 June 2004
New business premiums in the notes to the financial statements 108 1,701 1,308 20,677

Less:

United States reinsurance ceded externally - 4) - (49)
Group market-linked business not valued - (127) - (1,542)
Unit trust business not valued - (40) - (481)
New business premiums as per achieved profits supplementary statements 108 1,530 1,308 18,605
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Achieved Profits Basis Supplementary Information continued
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9 ASSUMPTIONS

The principal assumptions used in the calculation of the value of in-force business and the value of new business are set out

below.

Q@ The pre-tax investment and economic assumptions used for South African and United States businesses were as
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follows:
At At At
A 30 June 31 December 30 June
South Africa 2004 2003 2003
Fixed interest return 10.4% 9.4% 9.4%
Equity return 12.4% 11.4% 11.4%
Property return 11.4% 10.4% 10.4%
Inflation 6.9% 6.4% 6.4%
Risk discount rate 12.9% 11.9% 11.9%
At Al At
N 30 June 31 December 30 June
United States 2004 2003 2003
Treasury yield 4.6% 4.3% 3.6%
Inflation 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%
New money yield assumed 6.4% 6.0% 5.8%
Net portfolio earned rate 6.2% 6.4% . 6.6%
Risk discount rate 8.6% 8.3% 7.6%

For the other operations, appropriate investment and economic assumptions were chosen on bases consistent with
those adopted in South Africa. Where applicable, rates of future bonuses have been set at levels consistent with the
investment retum assumptions. Projected company taxation is based on the current tax basis that applies in each
country.

For the South African business, full allowance has been made for STC that may be payable in South Africa. Account
has been taken of the impact of CGT in South Africa. It has been assumed that 10% of the equity portfolio {(excluding
group subsidiaries) will be traded each year. For the United States business full allowance has been made for existing
tax aftributes of the companies, including the use of existing carry forwards and preferred tax credit investments.
Achieved profits results are initially calculated on an after tax basis and are then grossed up to the pre-tax level for
presentation in the profit and loss account and the segmental analysis of results. The tax rates used were the effective
corporation tax rates of 37.8% for South African business (December 2003; 37.8%; June 2003: 37.8%), 30% for United
States business (December 2003: 25%; June 2003: 30%) and 0% for United Kingdom and Rest of World business
(December 2003: 0%; June 2003: 0%) except for the investment return on South African capital, for which the attributed
tax was derived from the primary accounts.

The assumed future mortality, morbidity and voluntary discontinuance rates have been based as far as possible on
analyses of recent operating experience. Allowance has been made where appropriate for the effect of expected AIDS-
related claims.

The management expenses attributable to life assurance business have been analysed between expenses relating to
the acquisition of new business and the maintenance of business in-force. The future expenses attributable to life
assurance business do not include Group holding company expenses.

No allowance has been made for future development costs.

Future investment expenses are based on the current scales of fees payable by the life assurance companies to the
asset management subsidiaries. To the extent that these fees include profit margins for the asset management
subsidiaries, these margins have not been included in the value of in-force business or the value of new business.

The effect of increases in premiums over the period for policies in-force has been included in the value of in-force

business only where such increases are associated with indexation arrangements. Other increases in premiums of
existing policies are included in the value of new business.
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9 ASSUMPTIONS continued

Q New schemes written on which recurring single premiums are expected to be received on a regular basis are treated as
new business. The annualised premium is recognised as recurring premium new business at inception of the scheme
and is determined by annualising the actual premiums received during the year in question. Subsequent recurring single
premiums received in future years are not treated as new business, as these have already been provided for in
calculating the value of in-force business.

O The sensitivity of the value of in-force and value of new business to changes in the central risk discount rate are set out
in section 10.

The principal exchange rates used to translate the operating results of key foreign business segments to Sterling are:

Rand uss

6 months to Year to 6 months to & months to Year to 6 months to

30 June 31 December 30 June 30 June 31 December 30 June

2004 2003 2003 2004 2003 2003

Profit and loss account (average rate) 12.1544 12.3487 12.9459 1.8222 1.6354 1.6110
Balance sheet (closing rate) 11.3037 11.9367 12.3692 1.8144 1.7833 1.6528
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10 ALTERNATIVE ASSUMPTIONS

The tables below for South Africa and the United States show the sensitivity of the value of in-force at 30 June 2004 and the
value of new business for the six months to 30 June 2004 to changes in the central risk discount rate. In determining the
values at different central discount rates, all other assumptions have been left unchanged. The value of new business is
shown before tax.

The sensitivity of the adjustment for discounting CGT, which is included in the shareholders' adjusted net worth, to changes
in the central discount rate is not material and is not included in the table below.

£m Rm
Value of Value of Value of Value of

in-force new life inforce new life

business at business at business at business at

30 June 30 June 30 June 30 June

2004 2004 2004 2004

South Africa

Central assumptions 813 35 9,190 425
Value before cost of solvency capital 964 40 10,897 486
Cost of solvency capital (151) (5) (1,707) (61)

Effect of:

Central discount rate +1% 706 30 7,980 363
Value before cost of solvency capital 910 37 10,282 451
Cost of solvency capital (204) (N (2,302) (88)

Central discount rate -1% 942 41 10,649 500
Value before cost of solvency capital 1,027 44 11,614 540
Cost of solvency capital (85) (3) (965) {40)

United States

Central assumptions 415 43 4,691 523
Value hefore cost of solvency capital 440 49 4,974 596
Cost of solvency capital (25) (6) (283) {73)

Effect of:

Central discount rate +1% 396 37 4,476 450
Value before cost of solvency capital 426 44 4,815 535
Cost of solvency capital (30) {7) {339) {85)

Central discount rate -1% 435 50 4,917 608
Value before cost of solvency capital 455 55 5,143 668
Cost of solvency capital (20) (5) (226) (60)
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Share interests

Old Mutual ple (the “Company”) announces that it was notified on 10 September
2004 that Public Investment Commissioners of the Republic of South Africa (“PIC”)
had a notifiable interest, for the purposes of Part VI of the UK Companies Act 1985,
in 382,584,914 shares in the Company, representing approximately 9.97% of the
Company’s current issued ordinary share capital.

PIC is a non-banking financial intermediary responsible for the investment of public
sector pension and provident funds and various social security and trust funds in
South Africa. At 31 December 2003 its disclosed shareholding in the Company was
285,726,184 shares, representing approximately 7.4% of the then issued capital.

13 September 2004

Enquiries:

Old Mutual plc UK
Miranda Bellord +44 (0) 20 7002 7133

Old Mutual plc SA
Nad Pillay +27 (0) 82 553 7980
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Old Mutual plc

Extension of arrangements for claiming demutualisation benefits

Further to its related announcement on 23 February 2004 and approval by shareholders
of a scheme of arrangement at a meeting held on 14 May 2004, Old Mutual plc (the
“Company”) announces that it has today implemented proposals to extend the period
within which claims can be made to certain entitlements that have not yet been claimed
under the terms of the demutualisation of the Old Mutual Group in 1999.

Under the terms of the demutualisation, unclaimed shares trusts were set up in each of
South Africa, Malawi, Namibia, Zimbabwe and Bermuda (the “Original Unclaimed
Shares Trusts™). The purpose of those trusts was to provide qualifying members of the
South African Mutual Life Assurance Society (the “Society”) with the opportunity, in
the five-year period following listing of the Company, to claim their entitlements to
shares or proceeds of the sale of shares by confirming certain details. That claims
period expired, following the placing of final advertisements by the trustees of the
Original Unclaimed Shares Trusts, on 18 August 2004.

In accordance with the scheme of arrangement approved by the Company’s
shareholders on 14 May 2004, the Directors of the Company have today approved an
extension of the claims period on the following terms:

o demutualisation entitlements not claimed by 18 August 2004 will be held for the
benefit of the relevant qualifying members of the Society under the terms of new
unclaimed shares trusts and such members will have a further two-year period
expiring on 31 August 2006 in which to come forward and claim those benefits;

o as indicated in the Company’s announcement of 23 February 2004 and approved
in the scheme of arrangement, claimants during the further two-year period will be
entitled to receive their shares or the proceeds of the sale of shares, but nothing in
respect of accumulated dividends or interest up to the date of their claim.

The Company has indicated that it intends to arrange for amounts equal to the net
unclaimed accumulated dividends, interest accrued on such dividends and interest
accrued on unclaimed cash proceeds held by the Original Unclaimed Shares Trusts to be
paid to the Old Mutual Foundations and/or to new public benefit organisations
established by the Group in each of the territories concerned.

23 August 2004
Enquiries:

Old Mutual plc UK
Corporate Affairs +44 (0) 20 7002 7150

Old Mutual plc SA
Nad Pillay +27 (0) 82 553 7980




Old Mutual plc
Directors’ share interests

Mr J V F Roberts, Group Finance Director of Old Mutual plc (“the Company™), has today
had released to him under the terms of the Company’s Restricted Share Plan 50,200
shares in the Company. An award of 150,600 restricted shares was made to Mr Roberts
on 8 September 2000 on terms that one-third of them would be released to him on each of
the third, fourth and fifth anniversaries of his appointment to the Board of the Company.
The fourth anniversary of that appointment fell on 21 August 2004.

Mr Roberts has agreed to discharge the tax and employee’s national insurance arising on
the release of these shares to him out of his own resources.

Following the above release of restricted shares, Mr Roberts (together with his connected
persons, for the purposes of section 346 of the UK Companies Act 1985) now owns a
total of 250,103 shares in the Company. He also has a contingent interest in a further
233,403 shares in the Company under the terms of the Company’s Restricted Share Plan:
these are, firstly, the balance of 50,200 shares under the Restricted Share Plan award
made on 8 September 2000 mentioned above, and, secondly a total of 183,203 shares
awarded under bonus matching arrangements applicable to the performance years ended
31 December 2001, 2002 and 2003, release of which is subject to the fulfilment of
performance conditions.

23 August 2004
Enquiries:

Old Mutual ple UK
Corporate Affairs +44 (0)20 7002 7150




Old Mutual ple
Interim Dividend 2004

The Directors of Old Mutual plc (“the Company”) have declared an interim dividend of
1.75p per share for the six months to 30 June 2004, to be paid on Tuesday, 30 November
2004.

The record date for this dividend payment is the close of business on Friday, 22 October
2004 for all the Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed. The last day to trade
cum-dividend on the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa (“JSE”) and other African
Exchanges will be Friday, 15 October 2004. The shares will trade ex-dividend from the
opening of business on Monday, 18 October 2004 on the JSE and the other African
Exchanges and from the opening of business on Wednesday, 20 October 2004 on the
London Stock Exchange.

Shareholders on the South African, Zimbabwe and Malawi branch registers and the
Namibian section of the principal register will be paid the local currency equivalent of the
dividend under the Dividend Access Trust arrangements established in each country.
Local currency equivalents of the dividend will be determined by the Company using
exchange rates prevailing at close of business on Thursday, 7 October 2004 and will be
announced by the Company on Friday, 8 October 2004.

Share certificates may not be dematerialised or rematerialised on the South African

branch register between Monday, 18 October and Friday, 22 October 2004, both dates
inclusive, and transfers between the registers may not take place during that period.

10 August 2004
Enquiries:

Old Mutual plc UK
Miranda Bellord +44 (0) 20 7002 7133

Old Mutual plc SA
Nad Pillay +27 (0) 82 553 7980
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Director’s retirement

Mr Chris Liebenberg, a non-executive Director of Old Mutual ple, retired from the
Board of Old Mutual plc on 2 October 2004 upon reaching the age of seventy. He
also then ceased to be a member of the Company’s Nomination Committee. He had
been a Director of the Company since March 1999, and was until earlier this year
Chairman of the Company’s 53%-owned banking subsidiary, Nedcor Limited.

Commenting on Mr Liebenberg’s retirement, Mike Levett, Chairman of Old Mutual
plc, said: “I would like to thank Chris for his valuable contribution to the Board over
the past five years. We shall miss his wisdom and experience. We wish him a long
and happy retirement.”

4 October 2004

Enquiries:

Old Mutual plc UK
Corporate Affairs +44 (0) 20 7002 7150

Old Mutual plec SA
Nad Pillay +27 (0) 82 553 7980
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Shares in issue and applications for block listing

Old Mutual plc (the “Company”) announces that the number of shares in the
Company in issue at 8 October 2004 was 3,852,199,983.

Applications have been made by the Company to the UK Listing Authority and the
London Stock Exchange for the admission to listing and trading, under the block
listing procedure, of up to 17,308,268 shares in the Company pursuant to the Group’s
share option schemes (King & Shaxson Executive Share Option Scheme, 15,791; The
Gerrard Group 1996 Company Share Option Scheme, 229,909; The Old Mutual Share
Option and Deferred Delivery Plan, 17,062,568).

2,691,732 of those shares are issued to cover shares already allotted, mainly by way of
-recent exercises of options under the Company’s share option schemes by employees
of Gerrard Limited, a former subsidiary of the Company, and are included in the
Company’s issued share capital at 8 October 2004 detailed above.

Applications are also being made to each of the other exchanges on which the

Company’s shares are listed for the additional issued shares to be admitted to listing.

18 October 2004
Enquiries:

Old Mutual ple UK
Miranda Bellord +44 (0) 20 7002 7133
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Shares in issue at 30 June 2004

Old Mutual plc (the “Company’) announces that a total of 3,848,834,209 shares in the
Company were in issue at 30 June 2004. Changes since 31 December 2003 were
made up as follows:

Number of shares in issue at 31 December 2003: 3,836,895,811

Shares issued during the period on exercise of
executive share options: 9,804,749

Shares issued during the period on exercise of

sharesave options: 2,133,649
Shares in issue at 30 June 2004: 3,848,834,209

12 October 2004
Enquiries:
Old Mutual plc UK

Miranda Bellord +44 (0) 20 7002 7133
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Interim Dividend 2004 (No. 10)
Currency Conversion

In the interim results announcement by Old Mutual plc for the six months ended 30
June 2004 published on 10 August 2004, the company announced an interim dividend
of 1.75p per share or its equivalent in other currencies of payment using the exchange
rates prevailing on 7 October 2004.

The local currency equivalents of the dividend have now been established and are as
follows:

South Africa 20.54 South African cents per share
Malawi 3.3060 Malawi Kwacha per share
Namibia 20.54 Namibian cents per share
Zimbabwe 175.1833 Zimbabwean dollars per share

The interim dividend will be paid on 30 November 2004.

The record date for this dividend payment is the close of business on Friday, 22
October 2004 for all the Exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed. The last
day to trade cum-dividend on the JSE Securities Exchange South Africa (“JSE”) and
other African Exchanges will be Friday, 15 October 2004. The shares will trade ex-
dividend from the opening of business on Monday, 18 October 2004 on the JSE and
the other African Exchanges and from the opening of business on Wednesday, 20
October 2004 on the London Stock Exchange.

Share certificates may not be dematerialised or rematerialised on the South African

branch register between Monday, 18 October and Friday, 22 October 2004, both dates
inclusive, and transfers between the registers may not take place during that period.

8 October 2004

Enquiries:

Old Mutual plc UK
Miranda Bellord +44 (0) 20 7002 7133

Old Mutual plc SA
Nad Pillay +27 (0) 82 553 7980
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Old Mutual Asset Management Reports Assets Under
Management for Third Quarter 2004

BOSTON--October 25, 2004--Old Mutual Asset Management, the U.S. asset management group
of Old Mutual plc (LSE: OML), today announced assets under management for the group at the
end of the third quarter of 2004. Assets managed by the group's member firms increased 3.1% in
the quarter, from $163.4 billion on June 30, 2004, to $168.4 billion on September 30, 2004. Net
inflows of client assets contributed $3.3 billion, or 2.0% of the increase over AUM at the
beginning of the period, while investment performance in the funds under management at
member firms accounted for the remaining 1.1% increase for the quarter. Overall in the first
three quarters of 2004, the group's member firms in aggregate had net inflows of client assets of

$8.5 billion, including $2.4 billion in cash collateral assets.

"Our success is dependent on the ability of our member firms to meet clients' investment
objectives and provide exceptional service," said Scott Powers, chief executive of Old Mutual
Asset Management. "We're committed to creating an environment in which our firms can do their

best work for clients by focusing on their strengths as money managers."

About Old Mutual Asset Management
The member firms of Old Mutual Asset Management provide high-quality, actively managed
investment products in all major asset classes and investment styles, with each firm focusing on
its own specialized area of expertise. More information on member firms, and their investment
teams and strategies, is available from the group's Web site at www.oldmutualus.com. The
group's parent is Old Mutual plc, an international financial services company based in London,
with operations in asset management, life assurance, banking and general insurance. More

information on Old Mutual is available at www.oldmutual.com.

Contact:
Media: Tucker Hewes, (212) 207-9451, tucker@hewescomm.com
Investors: James Poole, 44 (0)20 7002 7000, james.poole@omg.co.uk
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